交际英语（共10题，每题3分）

第1题

1.   ---- Hello, my name’s Zhao Yuefei. Are you a new student? ---- Yes, I am. ( ) Xiao Zhao. I’m Wang Wei. 

[image: image1.wmf] 

 

   A. How are you? [image: image2.jpg]


 

   B. I’m fine. Thank you. 

   C. How do you do? 

   D. Nice to meet you [image: image3.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查问候语的题目。当对方主动做出自我介绍并打招呼时，应该用Nice / Glad to meet you.这样的方式回应。答案A是主动问候语；答案B是对How are you?的回答；答案C是对How do you do?问候的回答，且只用于第一次见面问候的情景。对话上半部分是“你好，我叫赵悦菲。你是新生吗？”，按照英语问候的习惯只要以“很高兴遇到你。”这样的方式打招呼就可以了。所以答案D最符合。
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2.   ---- How are you doing? ---- ( ) 

[image: image5.wmf] 

 

   A. Nice to meet you. 

   B. Not too bad. [image: image6.jpg]


 

   C. How do you do? 

   D. I’m doing my homework. 
答案为B。这是一道考查问候语的题目。回答对话中“How are you doing?”“最近怎么样？”这一问候时，答案B “还好，不是很糟。”最适合。“How are you doing?”相当于“How are you?”。其他答案中A “Nice to meet you.”不用于回答“How are you doing?”，它一般是在对方自我介绍后使用；C是回答“How do you do?”问候语的；D不是对问候语的回答，而是对“What are you doing?”的回答。
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3.   ---- Hi, Anita! What’s new with you? ---- ( ) 

[image: image8.wmf] 

 

   A. Nothing much. [image: image9.jpg]


 

   B. So bad. [image: image10.jpg]


 

   C. This book is new. 

   D. Nice to meet you. 
答案为A。这是一道考查问候语的题目。对话中“What’s new with you?”表示“最近有什么新鲜事？”，针对这样的问候语可以用答案A “Nothing much.”“没有什么新鲜事发生。”来回复，符合交际的情景。答案B和C都是回答How are you?问候语的；答案D “很高兴见到你。”不用于回复“有什么新鲜事？”的问候语。
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4.   ---- Hello, Bob, I haven’t seen you for ages. How’s everything going? ---- ( ) 
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   A. Oh, I agree. 

   B. Good for you. 

   C. Just so so. [image: image13.jpg]


 

   D. That’s right. 
答案为C。这是一道考查问候语的题目。问候语“How’s everything going?”是表示“最近一切可好？”，回答中可以使用到形容词“Fine / Just so so / Very bad.”。所以答案C “一般般”符合交际的要求。而其他答案A“我同意”，B“真了不起”和D“那好”都不符合题意。
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5.   ---- ( ) ---- I am terribly busy these days. 
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   A. How are you? 

   B. How are things with you, Bill? [image: image16.jpg]


 

   C. What are you doing? [image: image17.jpg]


 

   D. How do you do? 
答案为B。这是一道考查问候语的题目。根据对话下文的意思“我这些天都很忙。”判断对方问的是“最近怎么样？”，答案B “How are things with you, Bill ?”正有此意。对于A的回答一般是 “I’m fine, thank you.”；C问的是“你正在干什么？”与答语不合；答案D “How do you do?”是对“How do you do?”的回答，用于初次见面打招呼。
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6.   ---- Welcome back, Mr. Smith! How about your business trip in Japan? ---- ( ) 
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   A. Don’t ask me. 

   B. Oh, fantastic! Mr. Mark is so satisfied with our project. [image: image20.jpg]


 

   C. I don’t like the Japanese food. [image: image21.jpg]


 

   D. Well, I’m looking forward to seeing you again. 
答案为B。这是一道考查问候语的题目。上文的意思“欢迎回来，史密斯先生！这趟日本之行怎么样？”根据意思，下文中要对这次旅行进行描绘。答案B的内容“很不错，马克先生对我们的这个计划很满意，”最符合逻辑。答案A “不要问我”不符合英语语言交流的习惯，而且也很不礼貌；答案C “我不喜欢日本料理。”和答案D “我很希望再次看到你。”都不符合题意，答非所问。
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7.   ---- Hi, there, everyone. We have a new roommate. This is Wu Ping. She’ll be in our class. ---- ( ) 
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   A. Where are you from? 

   B. How are you? 

   C. You are so beautiful. [image: image24.jpg]


 

   D. How do you do, Xiao Wu? Welcome to our dorm. [image: image25.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查相互介绍的题目。一位同学以第三者的身份向朋友介绍另一位朋友。对话上文 “朋友们，我们寝室来了一位新同学。她是吴萍，也是我们班的。”在这种情况下，下文的内容应该是室友向新同学问候，考虑到是第一见面，要用“How do you do?”。所以答案D“你好，小吴，欢迎你到我们寝室来。”符合题意。答案B “How are you?”是用于熟人见面的问候语。而答案A “你从哪里来？”和答案C “你真的很漂亮。”都不符合问候的习惯。
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8.   ---- Good night and thanks again. ---- ( ) 
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   A. You can’t say that. 

   B. Good night. [image: image28.jpg]


 

   C. How can you say that? [image: image29.jpg]


 

   D. Oh ,no. It’s what I can do. 
答案为B。这是一道考查告别语的题目。在英语中当对方用“晚安”向你道别时，可以直接用“晚安”告别。所以答案为B。其他答案都不符合道晚安的情景。
第9题
[image: image30.jpg]



9.   ---- Listen, I’ve really got to run. We'll have to get together again sometime. ---- ( ) 

[image: image31.wmf] 

 

   A. Yes, it’s great fun. 

   B. OK, when shall we get together again? [image: image32.jpg]


 

   C. Oh, it’s a pity for you. [image: image33.jpg]


 

   D. Ok, see you. 
答案为B。这是一道考查告别语的题目。对话上文表示“我真的要走了，我们得找一个时间再相聚一次。”。下文回答中答案B“好的，那我们什么时候再相聚一次呢？”最符合题意。答案Ａ表示“是的，找个时间再相聚一次是很有趣的。”；答案Ｃ表示“啊！那太可惜了。”；答案Ｄ表示“好了，再见吧”。三者都不符合此场景的交际对话用语。
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10.   ---- Mrs. Johnson, I come to say good-bye. This party was very good. ---- ( ) 

[image: image35.wmf] 

 

   A. Have a pleasant journey. I will miss you 

   B. Do you really like it? 

   C. I’m happy you enjoyed it. [image: image36.jpg]


 

   D. Why not stay here a little longer? 
答案为C。这是一道考查告别语的题目。上文表示“约翰逊先生，我来向您道别，今天的晚会很成功。”，从客人的表达中，主人可以感受到客人对晚会很满意，心里很高兴。所以答案C “我很高兴你晚上玩得开心。”最适合回答。答案A属于祝福语；答案B和D都不符合西方人的告别习惯。
交际英语（共10题，每题3分）
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1.   ---- Hello, everybody. ( ), a friend of mine. ---- Glad to meet you. I’m Sam. 
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   A. He is Jack 

   B. This is Jack [image: image39.jpg]


 

   C. She is Sue [image: image40.jpg]


 

   D. You must have met each other before 
答案为B。这是一道考查相互介绍的题目。介绍自己的朋友给其他人时会说“这是我的朋友……”，按照英语的表达习惯一般用“This is….”的句型，而不能说“He is… / She is…”，因此排除A和C，答案B符合要求。D“你们俩以前应该见过面吧。”，不适合用于这种情况。
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2.   ---- I'm leaving for Europe on business next Saturday. ---- ( ) 

[image: image42.wmf] 

 

   A. I’ll miss you. 

   B. Have a good trip. [image: image43.jpg]


 

   C. You are so lucky. [image: image44.jpg]


 

   D. I hate Europe. 
答案为B。这是一道考查告别语的题目。根据上文的意思“我下个星期六去欧洲出差。”。听到这个消息，应该祝福对方“一路顺风”或“旅途愉快。”，四个选项中答案B最合适。其他的答案是不符合交际用语。
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3.   ---- Would you mind my opening this window? It's getting stuffy in here. ---- ( ) 

[image: image46.wmf] 

 

   A. I don’t like it. 

   B. Not at all, go ahead. [image: image47.jpg]


 

   C. Yes, please. 

   D. Sure, please. 
答案为B。这是一道考查回应征求意见的题目。上文问“你是否介意我打开窗户？因为这里空气不流通。”。如果表示不介意，可直接用“go ahead”来回答。而C和D的回答都不是正确的表达；如果表示介意，按照英语交际的习惯，应该用较委婉的方式拒绝对方的请求，如“Yes. I’d rather not.”“我不想你打开。”；有时还会说明拒绝的理由。而不能使用题目中答案A “我不喜欢。”这样直接，甚至不礼貌的方式回应对方。
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4.   ---- Hello, may I talk to the Mrs. Chen now? ---- ( ) 

[image: image49.wmf] 

 

   A. Sorry, he is not available at the moment. [image: image50.jpg]


 

   B. No, you can’t. 

   C. Sorry, I don’t know. 

   D. Who are you? 
答案为A。这是一道考查回应请求的题目。通过上文“现在是否可以见陈先生？”推断出对话可能发生在办公室，回答者很有可能是陈先生的秘书。四个选项都有否定的意思，只有答案A “陈先生现在没有空。”的表达方式最正确，英语中“be not available”和“be busy”都表示“很忙”的意思。而答案B，C，D都不符合英语回答的习惯。
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5.   ---- Do you mind if I smoke in the office? ---- ( ) 

[image: image52.wmf] 

 

   A. Good idea 

   B. Yes. I’d rather not. [image: image53.jpg]


 

   C. Yes, I do. 

   D. No, thanks. 
答案为B。这是一道考查回应征求意见的题目。上文问“您是否介意我在办公室里抽烟？”如果介意，可以直接用答案B“是的，我不想你抽”的意思来回应。C项同样表示介意，但C太直接，英语中应该委婉地表示介意，拒绝对方的请求。礼貌的态度会使对方接受你的意见。答案A和D都不符合题意。
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6.   ---- Excuse me, may I sit here? ---- ( ) 

[image: image55.wmf] 

 

   A. Please sit down. 

   B. Yes, it doesn’t matter 

   C. Yes, certainly. This seat’s free [image: image56.jpg]


 

   D. You’re welcome 
答案为C。这是一道考查回应征求意见的题目。上文问“我可否坐在这里？”答案A和B都是回答道歉的语言；答案D是回答致谢的用语。只有答案C符合对话情景，向对方表示可以坐，因为这个坐位没有人坐。“The seat is free.” 表示“位子是空的”。
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7.   ---- Can you turn down the radio , please? I’m preparing the final exams. ---- ( ) 
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   A. Oh, I know. 

   B. I’m sorry. I didn’t realize it was so loud. [image: image59.jpg]


 

   C. Sorry, I’ll keep it down next time. 

   D. Please forgive me. 
答案为B。这是一道考查回应请求的题目。根据上文“是否可以把收音机的音量调小点，我在准备期末考试。”回应的内容应该是表示对自己的行为感到抱歉。所以答案B “对不起，我没意识到声音会有这么大。”最适合。而答案A不符合题意；答案C “下次会注意点。”也不适合回应对方正当请求的习惯；D“请宽恕我。”是太正式的道歉语，不适合用于这种情景。
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8.   ---- Excuse me, may I use your dictionary? ---- ( ) 
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   A. Of course not. 

   B. You’re welcome to use it. [image: image62.jpg]


 

   C. It doesn’t matter. 

   D. Why? 
答案为B。这是一道考查回应请求的题目。上文问“是否可以借用你的词典？”对应的回答中只有答案B“好的，好的”最符合交际，答应对方的请求还可以用“go ahead”来回答。如果拒绝对方的请求，首先要表示出很想答应对方请求的心意，然后再说明不能答应的理由。而答案A太直接；答案C和D不符合题意。
第9题
[image: image63.jpg]



9.   ----There is an hour to go. Why not have a cup of coffee together? ---- ( ) 
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   A. Have a try. 

   B. Sure. It sounds good. [image: image65.jpg]


 

   C. Don’t go please. 

   D. No, I can’t. 
答案为B。这是一道考查回应建议的题目。上文中指出“离出发还有一个小时，一起喝杯咖啡怎么样？”。如果同意对方的建议，可以选用答案B“好啊，听起来不错。”来回应。如果拒绝对方的建议，一定要说明拒绝的理由，让对方理解。而不能以直接拒绝对方的口气来回应，比如答案C和D都不甚好；答案A “可以试试”也不符合英语交际的常规。
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10.   ---- You'd better not push yourself too hard, or you’ll get sick. ---- ( ) 

[image: image67.wmf] 

 

   A. You’re right. [image: image68.jpg]


 

   B. Let me see. 

   C. Never mind. 

   D. I’m afraid so. 
答案为A。这是一道考查回应劝告的题目。上文中指出“你最好不要给自己太大的压力，否则会把身体压垮。”。对于对方善意的劝告，最好用答案A “你是对的。”来表示认可和同意。答案B和D不适合在这种情况下表示“同意”的意思；而答案C是回应道歉的用语。
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1.   ---- I’m sorry. Mr. Riding is not in his office. ---- ( ) 

[image: image70.wmf] 

 

   A. Would you like to leave a message? 

   B. Can you take a message for me? [image: image71.jpg]


 

   C. Can you phone me? 

   D. Are you sure for that? 
答案为B。这是一道考查提出请求的题目。根据上文“我很抱歉，Riding先生现在不在办公室。”，可以判断对话发生在办公室。针对秘书所指“Riding先生不在”，客人很自然想到要给Riding先生留个言，所以答案B是正确的。答案A “你想留个口信给Riding先生吗？”是秘书的用语，而题目的要求是要客人回答，角色弄反了。C和D都不符合交际常规。
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2.   ---- I won’t go with you to the concert next month. ---- ( ) 

[image: image73.wmf] 

 

   A. For what? 

   B. How? 

   C. Why not? 

   D. Why? [image: image74.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查回应征求意见的题目。上文指出“下个月我可能不能陪你去听音乐会了。”，根据这一个语境，下文做出的回应肯定是“为什么？”，这是很自然的交际反应。所以选D。而其它的答案都不符合题意。答案A “为了什么呢？”；答案B “怎么样？”都很容易排除。而答案C可能会混淆选择，“为什么不呢？”一般是回答对方提出建议或请求时所做出的肯定并认同的答案。如“Would you like to go shopping with me?” “Why not”表示同意对方的建议或请求。
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3.   ---- Oh, I have a terrible toothache. ---- ( ) 

[image: image76.wmf] 

 

   A. I told you not to eat much sugar. 

   B. What’s the matter with you? 

   C. You’d better go to see a dentist. [image: image77.jpg]


 

   D. I know that feeling. 
答案为C。这是一道考查提出建议和劝告的题目。前半句指出“我的牙齿很痛。”，针对这一情景，下文中包含的内容应该是为对方提出好建议来缓解甚至是消除病痛。四种表达中答案C“你最好是去看看牙医。”最符合要求。答案A是指“我告诉过你不要吃太多的糖。”不属于提建议的语言；答案B更不合适，对方已经告诉是牙痛，就没有必要再问“你怎么了呢？”；答案D “我知道那种感觉，很不舒服”也没有满足向对方提建议的交际目的。
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4.   ---- What shall we do this Saturday? ---- ( ) 

[image: image79.wmf] 

 

   A. I don’t know. 

   B. Why not climb the mountain? [image: image80.jpg]


 

   C. What do you think? 

   D. Sorry, I’m busy. 
答案为B。这是一道考查提建议的题目。对方提出“我们这个星期六干什么？”，针对类似的交际，一般会使用“Why not…?”、“Why don’t you…?”或“What / How about …? 等句型来表示回应，如答案B “为什么不去爬山呢？”就符合语法结构和情景交流。而A“我不知道。”，C“你怎么想的？”和D“对不起，我很忙。”都没有对“星期六去干什么？”提出自己的看法，不符合题意。
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5.   ---- Would you mind helping me? ---- ( ) 

[image: image82.wmf] 

 

   A. What can I do for you? 

   B. I have no idea. 

   C. Sorry, I’m busy now. 

   D. I would love to. [image: image83.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查寻求帮助的题目。上文问“你帮帮我可以吗？”，可以用答案D“很乐意帮忙。”来回复，符合交际规律。答案A是商店用语；B“我不知道。”不合逻辑。答复对方帮忙的请求只有两种，“可以”或者“不可以”；如果不能帮对方忙，先表示“I’d love to” 很想帮忙，然后再说明可能帮不了的理由，而不适合用答案C “我很忙”直接拒绝对方请求帮忙的要求。
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6.   ---- ( ) ---- Thank you. I can manage it myself. 

[image: image85.wmf] 

 

   A. Here you are. 

   B. These are your mails. 

   C. Can I help you with your suitcase? [image: image86.jpg]


 

   D. What can I do for? 
答案为C。这是一道考查主动提供帮忙的题目。从下文“谢谢你，我自己行。”的回答，推断上文可能是表示向对方主动提出帮忙的意思，只有答案C “要我帮您提箱子吗？”符合题意。答案A是 “给你”的意思；B是指“这儿有您的信件。”；D是商店用语都不符合题意。
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7.   ---- Please give me a hand to print out the report, won't you? ---- ( ) 

[image: image88.wmf] 

 

   A. Of course I will. [image: image89.jpg]


 

   B. You’re welcome. 

   C. You are so kind. 

   D. Don’t mention it. 
答案为A。这是一道考查寻求帮忙的题目。上文“请你帮我把这个报告打印出来可以吗？”，“give me a hand to do sth.”表示“帮我做某事”。答案A表示“当然可以”，符合情景交流；而答案B “不用谢。”；答案C “你很好。”和答案D “没关系。”都答非所问。
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8.   ---- May I help you clean the window, Miss Li? ---- ( ) 

[image: image91.wmf] 

 

   A. I’d really appreciate it if you could. [image: image92.jpg]


 

   B. No, you can not do that. 

   C. It’s my duty. 

   D. You may. 
答案为A。这是一道考查主动提供帮忙的题目。上文问“李小姐，要我帮你擦玻璃吗？”如果表示接受对方的帮忙，答案A“如果你能帮我，我很感谢你。”符合交际情景；如果不需要帮忙，也应该先谢谢对方主动提出帮忙的心意，再说明自己可以完成，如 “Thank you. I can manage it myself.”，答案B的回答太直接；C“这是我的职责。”和D“你可以吗？”都不符合英语交际的规律。
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9.   ---- Can I get you anything while I’m out? ---- ( ) 

[image: image94.wmf] 

 

   A. You can not be out this time. 

   B. If you happen to go by a post office, could you have this package weighed? [image: image95.jpg]


 

   C. Thank you. 

   D. Could I go out with you? 
答案为B。这是一道考查主动提供帮忙的题目。上文“我现在要出去办点事，需要帮你们带什么东西吗？”。选项中只有答案B “如果你正好经过邮局，帮我把这个包裹称一称。”符合题意，很委婉地表示在对方顺便经过邮局时看能否帮这个忙，用的也是“Could you …?” 表示委婉请求的句型。答案A “你现在不能出去。”不适合交际的常规；C“谢谢你。”和D“我可以和你一起出去吗？”都不符合逻辑。
第10题
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10.   ---- Can I borrow a book from the library? ---- ( ) 

[image: image97.wmf] 

 

   A. Yes, you can. [image: image98.jpg]


 

   B. No, you can not. 

   C. How long will you lend it? 

   D. You may? 
答案为A。这是一道考查寻求帮忙的题目。上文“我可以从图书馆借本书吗？”。根据这个交际场景，可以回答“当然可以。”。也可以拒绝请求，但答案B太直接，按照英语交际的习惯，应该委婉地说明不能借书的原因，如：“I’m afraid you can not because you have no library card.”。答案C “你要借多久？”和答案D “可能。”都不符合题意。所以答案为A。
际英语（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
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1.   ---- May I help you, sir? ---- ( ) 

[image: image100.wmf] 

 

   A. It’s very kind of you 

   B. I want to buy some banana. [image: image101.jpg]


 

   C. No, I don’t think so. 

   D. Thanks a lot. 
答案为B。这是一道考查主动提供帮忙的题目。“May I help you?”这是固定的商店用语，表示服务人员或店员问询顾客有什么需要帮忙的。在这种情况下，顾客的回应一般是表示出自己需要购买某种商品或服务。所以答案B “我想买些香蕉。”最符合。
第2题
[image: image102.jpg]



2.   ---- Excuse me, when is the next bus from Shanghai due to arrive? ---- ( ) 

[image: image103.wmf] 

 

   A. Of course, you can. 

   B. Before another one. 

   C. Until the next one. 

   D. In half an hour. [image: image104.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查寻求帮忙的题目。上句问的是“下一趟到上海的巴士是什么时候准点到达？”。“when”提出的问题需要用具体的或大概的“时间点”来回答，所以答案D“半小时以后。”最适合。其他答案A、B、C都不符合题意。

第3题
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3.   ---- Could you look after my baby this afternoon? ---- ( ) 

[image: image106.wmf] 

 

   A. Yes, I do. 

   B. Excuse me. 

   C. Sure, no problem. [image: image107.jpg]


 

   D. Sorry, I couldn’t. 
答案为C。这是一道考查寻求帮忙的题目。对方提出“你今天下午能帮我照看一下宝宝吗？”这一请求。如果接受请求，可以选C表示“愿意帮忙”；如果不能接受，应该很委婉地告诉对方你有事，如“I’d love to, but I have something important to do this afternoon.”，而不能以答案D的方式直接拒绝对方的请求。A和B都不符合对话的情景。
第4题
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4.   ---- Oh, Barry, We are going to have a dancing party next Friday evening, and we’d like you to join us. ---- ( ), Susan. 

[image: image109.wmf] 

 

   A. I’d love to 

   B. No way 

   C. By no means 

   D. By all means. [image: image110.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查如何回应邀请的题目。上文表示“我们在下个星期五晚上有一个舞会，想请你和我们一起去。”。如果给出肯定的回应，可以说“Sure / Yes, I’d love to（我很想去）.”, “Good idea.（好主意）”, “By all means.（当然可以）”等等。如果不能赴约，直接拒绝对方的方式很不礼貌，应该先表明很想赴约的想法，但是因为某些原因而不能达成，如，“I’d love to, but I should go home on Fridays.”。所以答案A“我不能去。”、
第5题
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5.   ---- ( ) ---- I’d love to, but I have a very important meeting tonight. 

[image: image112.wmf] 

 

   A. No, I can’t. 

   B. How about the meeting tonight? 

   C. Can you come over for dinner with us ? [image: image113.jpg]


 

   D. By all means. 
答案为C。这是一道考查主动提出邀请的题目。根据下文“我很想去，但我今晚有个很重要的会议。”判断，上文应该表示的是“主动提出邀请”之类的意思。只有答案C “你能过来和我们一起吃晚饭吗？”符合要求。A“今晚有什么计划？”、B“今晚的会议怎么样？”和D“我能帮你吗？”都不符合对话的内容。
第6题
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6.   ---- Are you free this evening? I’d like to invite you to participate in my birthday party. ---- ( ) 

[image: image115.wmf] 

 

   A. What food do you serve? 

   B. When shall I arrive at your home? [image: image116.jpg]


 

   C. let me think if I have time. 

   D. You’re so kind to me. 
答案为B。这是一道考查如何回应邀请的题目。上文表示“你今晚有空吗？我想邀请参加我的生日晚会。”，根据选项的内容，只有答案B “我应该在什么时候到你家？”间接地答应了邀请，符合回答对方邀请的情况。其他答案都不符合回复邀请语的习惯。
第7题
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7.   ---- Would you like to go shopping with me this weekend? ---- ( ) 

[image: image118.wmf] 

 

   A. I have no money. 

   B. Good idea. [image: image119.jpg]


 

   C. That’s all right. 

   D. It’s so boring. 
答案为B。这是一道考查如何回应邀请的题目。对方发出邀请“想不想周末一起去购物？”。答应邀请可以表示“Sure / Yes, I’d love to（我很想去）.”, “Good idea.（好主意）”, “By all means.（当然可以）”等等。即使不答应邀请，也要表示自己很想去，但是已有其他安排，所以去不了。答案A “我没有钱。”和答案D “太没有意思了。”都不适合，显得不礼貌。答案C “这没有什么。”是回答对方道歉的用语。所以答案是B。 
第8题
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8.   ---- We’ll be giving a house warming party. Can you come? ---- ( ) 

[image: image121.wmf] 

 

   A. Congratulations! 

   B. I am not interested. 

   C. Well, that depends. When is it? [image: image122.jpg]


 

   D. I have got to run now. 
答案为C。这是一道考查如何回应邀请的题目。对方即将要开一个乔迁聚会，问你能不能来？A选项“恭喜！”一般表示祝贺对方取得的成绩，而不用于回应邀请；B“我没有兴趣。”和D“我现在要走了。”都不适合。在这种情况下，即使不想去，也不能直接拒绝对方的邀请，应该使用委婉的语气。答案C “看情况吧，是什么时候呀？”最合适，既很委婉地告诉对方可能来不了，同时也向对方问明聚会的时间，暗示如果有时间就来。
第9题
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9.   ---- How about going to see a movie with me tonight? ---- ( ) 

[image: image124.wmf] 

 

   A. There is no good movie on this week. 

   B. I’d love to, but I’m so tired tonight after a long day working. [image: image125.jpg]


 

   C. Do you buy the tickets? 

   D. No. I don’t want to. 
答案为B。这是一道考查如何回应邀请的题目。对方提出“今晚和我一起去看电影，怎么样？的邀请，答案B的回答最准确，“我很想去，但一天的工作下来我今晚真的很累。”既表明了想去的意愿，又合理地解释了为什么去不了的理由。D是直接拒绝邀请，不符合习惯；A和C都是错误的回应。
第10题
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10.   ---- We’re going to have a party next week. Are you coming to join us? ---- ( ) 

[image: image127.wmf] 

 

   A. Sure, I’d love to. Thanks. [image: image128.jpg]


 

   B. I’m glad to hear that. 

   C. Forget it. 

   D. I don’t like the party. 
答案为A。这是一道考查如何回应邀请的题目。上文表示邀请对方参加下个星期的晚会。四个选项中，答案A直观地表达了接受邀请，并表示感谢；答案B是对方告知好消息时的回答；答案C “忘记它吧。”是错误的表达用语；答案D “我不喜欢晚会。”直接拒绝对方的邀请不符合交际常规。所以答案为A。
交际英语（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
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1.   ---- I have got two tickets for Maria’s concert. Are you interested? ---- ( ) 

[image: image130.wmf] 

 

   A. Oh, yeah. That’s great. [image: image131.jpg]


 

   B. Who is she? 

   C. How have you got the tickets? It’s so hot. 

   D. Good for you. 
答案为A。这是一道考查如何回应邀请的题目。上文提出“我有两张音乐会的票，你有没有兴趣？”。答案A “太好了。”既表示肯定回复对方的邀请，也表示对“演唱会”本身的兴趣。答案B “她是谁？”在英语中不能用“Who is he?”或“Who is she?”表示，而要用“Who is it?”；而且回复的内容也不适合这种情况。C“这场音乐会很火热，票很难买到。你是怎样弄到票的？”和答案D “对你好。”都不符合题意。所以答案是A。
第2题
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2.   ---- Can you stay here longer? ---- ( ), but I have to be back tomorrow. 

[image: image133.wmf] 

 

   A. I’d love to. [image: image134.jpg]


 

   B. No, thank you. 

   C. No problem. 

   D. I’m afraid not. 
答案为A。这是一道考查如何回应邀请的题目。上文问“你可以多呆段时间吗？”根据下文后半部分“但是我必须明天返回。”推断出对于邀请对方很委婉地拒绝了。按照英语交际习惯，前半部分应该表示很愿意留下来的意思，所以选项A最符合题意。其他三个选项都不符合题意。
第3题
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3.   ---- Well done. Congratulations on your success. ---- ( ) 

[image: image136.wmf] 

 

   A. Thank you very much. [image: image137.jpg]


 

   B. Oh, no, no. 

   C. No, I didn’t do very well. 

   D. Sorry, I couldn’t have been any better. 
答案为A。这是一道考查祝贺语的题目。上文表示“做得好，恭喜你成功了。”，按照英语交际的习惯，回应祝贺语直接用“Thank you.” “Thanks.”等感谢语。所以答案A是正确的。很多同学受到中文交际的影响，当对方表示祝福和称赞时，会很谦虚地表示回应，如答案B “不敢当。”和答案C “我做得不够好。”等等，这都不符合英语交际的习惯。答案D不符合题意。
第4题
[image: image138.jpg]



4.   ---- Thank you for your cooperation with me to do this class well. ---- ( ) 

[image: image139.wmf] 

 

   A. With pleasure. [image: image140.jpg]


 

   B. It’s OK. 

   C. Never mind. 

   D. No thanks. 
答案为A。这是一道考查感谢语的题目。在英文中对“Thanks.” “Thank you for…”这样的感谢语的回应很格式化，如“You’re welcome.” “With / My pleasure.”等等。对上文 “很感谢你们和我一起合作把这堂课上好了。”的回应答案A “我们很愿意这么做。”最适合。答案B和C都表示“没有关系。”是用来回答道歉语的；D的表达不符合交际常规。
第5题
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5.   ---- These are certainly beautiful flowers. Thank you! ---- ( ) 

[image: image142.wmf] 

 

   A. No, no. It’s nothing. 

   B. You are welcome. [image: image143.jpg]


 

   C. Yes, I agree. 

   D. Yes, I think so too. 
答案为B。这是一道考查感谢语的题目。在英文中对“Thank you.”感谢语的回应可以用“You’re welcome.” “With / My pleasure.”等等。对于题目中“花很漂亮，谢谢你。”的称赞和感谢语，回答的最佳答案是B“不用谢。”。答案A “没什么。”不符合英语的交际常规；C和D都是错误的表达。
第6题
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6.   ---- Thank you very much for having invited me to have a dinner. ---- ( ) 

[image: image145.wmf] 

 

   A. Never mind. 

   B. I’m glad you enjoyed it. [image: image146.jpg]


 

   C. Do you like it? 

   D. A more cup of coffee? 
答案为B。这是一道考查感谢语的题目。在英文中对“Thank you for…”这样的感谢语的回答有很多，如“You’re welcome.” “With / My pleasure.”等等，题目中感谢的内容是“谢谢你邀请我来吃晚饭。”，除了以上格式化的回答，也可以用具体的事情来感谢，如答案B “我很高兴你喜欢。”同样可以达到回应感谢语的交际目的。而其他答案A“没有关系。”是回答道歉语的；C“你喜欢吗？”不符合习惯；D“再来一杯咖啡。”是属于提建议的语言都不适合对此种情境的回应。
第7题
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7.   ---- ( ) ---- It’s my pleasure. 

[image: image148.wmf] 

 

   A. It’s very kind of you to help me. [image: image149.jpg]


 

   B. What about this weekend? 

   C. Can I get you some water? 

   D. You did a good job. 
答案为A。这是一道考查表示感谢语的题目。从回答中“是我的荣幸。”可以判断上句表达的是感谢语，只有答案A “你能帮我真的是太好。”属于感谢用语，虽然没有用“Thanks” “Thank you.”等来表示，但答案间接地表示了感谢的含义。其他选项都不符合题意。
第8题
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8.   ---- you Are always so thoughtful. ---- ( ) 

[image: image151.wmf] 

 

   A. No trouble at all. 

   B. You should also be so. 

   C. It’s good for you. 

   D. I’d love to. [image: image152.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查回应称赞语的题目。按照英语交际的习惯，当对方称赞自己某一个方面时，实际是表示对自己这个方面的表现或者努力的肯定，在这种情况下一般使用感谢语来回应。对话中称赞“你总是很体贴，细心。”，四个回答中答案D“我愿意（体贴别人）。”最适合，既表示感谢对方的称赞，也表示自己很喜欢这样做。答案A“完全没有问题。”，B“你也应该这样。”和C“这对你好。”都不适合对话的要求。
第9题
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9.   ---- Well, Joy. It’s time to blow out the candles and cut the cake. ( ) ---- Thank you all. 

[image: image154.wmf] 

 

   A. The cake looks so delicious. 

   B. Happy birthday to you. [image: image155.jpg]


 

   C. Turn off the light 

   D. Are you ready? 
答案为B。这是一道考查祝贺语的题目。根据上文前半句“到时候吹蜡烛切蛋糕了。”和下文“谢谢你们。”所表达的意思，可以判断上文后半句表达的是祝福语或称赞语，而与“吹蜡烛切蛋糕”相关的就只有“生日祝福”了，所以答案B “祝你生日快乐。”最合适。答案A “蛋糕看上去很好吃的样子。”是称赞语，但从回答的语言“谢谢你们所有的人。”推断出说话者感谢的是大家所有人，而不是回应一个人的称赞。C和D都不符合语言交际习惯。
第10题
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10.   ---- My wife was just promoted to manager. ---- ( ) 

[image: image157.wmf] 

 

   A. She must be busy from now on. 

   B. That’s really good news. [image: image158.jpg]


 

   C. She’s better than you. 

   D. Congratulations! 
答案为B。这是一道考查主动表示祝贺的题目。根据英语交际的习惯，当对方透漏出他的好消息时，最佳回应是“I’m glad / happy to hear that.”或者“It's good news.”。所以针对上文“我太太刚刚升为经理了。”的好消息，答案B “真是一个好消息。”的回复最合适。其他答案都不适合这种情况。

交际英语（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
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1.   ---- Have a good time with your mother tonight. ---- ( ) 

[image: image160.wmf] 

 

   A. Will you come? 

   B. Yes. I do think so. 

   C. Thank you. [image: image161.jpg]


 

   D. What’s your plan tonight? 
答案为C。这是一道考查感谢语的题目。对话上句表示“祝你和你母亲今晚玩得开心。”，根据英语交际的习惯，对方提出祝福时，直接用感谢语来回应，所以答案选C。答案A是指“你想一起来吗？”属于主动邀请语，不能回答祝福语；B和D不合题意。
第2题
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2.   ---- Thank you ever so much for the present you sent me. ---- ( ) 

[image: image163.wmf] 

 

   A. Please don’t say so. 

   B. No, thanks. 

   C. I’m glad you like it. [image: image164.jpg]


 

   D. It’s not so good, I think. 
答案为C。这是一道考查感谢语的题目。在英文中对“Thank you for…”这样的感谢语的回答有很多，如“You’re welcome.” “With / My pleasure.”等等，也可以根据具体的情况来回答，如对话中表示“非常感谢你送给我的礼物。”，可以用“You’re welcome.”等固定用语来回答，也可以选择C“我很高兴你喜欢这个礼物。”来表示不用谢。A 和B的答复很谦虚，不符合英语交际的习惯；答案D“礼物也不是那么好。”更不适合，会使得对方觉得你没有把最好的礼物或祝福送给他，是错误的交
第3题
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3.   ---- ( ) ---- Well, it’s OK. 

[image: image166.wmf] 

 

   A. Thank you for your listening. 

   B. Can I borrow your bike? 

   C. You speak English so well. 

   D. I’m sorry. I lost that document. [image: image167.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查道歉语的题目。根据下文表示的“没关系。”可以推断出上句属于道歉语。因为在英文交际中，当对方表示抱歉时，可以用“Never mind.” “It’s OK.” “It doesn’t matter.”等等来答复，所以答案D “我很抱歉，我丢失了那份文件。”是正确的。答案A是属于感谢语，B是属于提出请求的语言，答案C是表示称赞。
第4题
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4.   ---- I’m terribly sorry to have kept you waiting for so long. ---- ( ) 

[image: image169.wmf] 

 

   A. You’re welcome. 

   B. Forget it. [image: image170.jpg]


 

   C. You should say so. 

   D. Please be early next time. 
答案为B。这是一道考查道歉语的题目。根据英语的交际习惯，当对方表示抱歉时，可以用“Never mind.” “I’ve forgotten it” “Forget it.”来答复，暗示对方应该忘记过去的错误。上文的意思是“我很抱歉让你等了这么久”，答案B “忘了它吧。”间接地安慰对方，表示没有关系。答案A是回答感谢，C和D都是错误的交际语。
第5题
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5.   ---- Sorry, Joyce. I’m late. I was caught in a traffic jam. ---- ( ) 

[image: image172.wmf] 

 

   A. Why are you so late? 

   B. No, you don't say that. 

   C. Never mind. Glad you are here. [image: image173.jpg]


 

   D. Really? 
答案为C。这是一道考查道歉语的题目。根据英语交际习惯，当对方表示抱歉时，可以用“Never mind.” “It’s OK.”等等来答复。所以对对话“对不起，我迟到了。我遇到了塞车。”的回答C“没有关系，很高兴你来了。”最合适。答案A “为什么你这么晚？”表示怪罪对方迟到的事实，不符合英语的习惯；B和D都是错误的英语交际语。
第6题
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6.   ---- It’s my fault to have said that to you. ---- ( ) 

[image: image175.wmf] 

 

   A. That’s not really your fault. 

   B. I’ve already forgotten it. [image: image176.jpg]


 

   C. I am so angry to hear that. 

   D. you’re welcome. 
答案为B。这是一道考查道歉语的题目。根据英语交际习惯，当对方表示抱歉时，可以用“It doesn’t matter.” “I’ve forgotten it” “Forget it.”等来回应。对话上半句表达出“对你说那件事是我的失误。”的歉意时，可以用答案B “我已经忘记了。”委婉地接受对方的道歉，并希望不要再在意过去的过失。答案A “那真不是你的错。”和C“我很生气。”都不符合回答道歉语的习惯，D是回答感谢语。
第7题
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7.   ---- I’m sorry to have broken your glasses. ---- ( ) 

[image: image178.wmf] 

 

   A. You did well. 

   B. All right. 

   C. That’s all right. [image: image179.jpg]


 

   D. That’s right. 
答案为C。这是一道考查道歉语的题目。这道题目主要考察“All right.”, “That’s all right.”和“That’s right.”意思的区别。B项“All right.”有“行”，同意对方意见的意思；C项“That’s all right.”的意思是“没关系。”相当于“It’s OK.”；D项“That’s right.”是表示“那是正确的。”。而对话是要求对“很抱歉摔碎了你的眼镜。”进行答复，所以选答案C。选项A是“你做得好。”的意思，不能回答道歉语。
第8题
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8.   ---- My brother was fired a couple of weeks ago. ---- ( ) 

[image: image181.wmf] 

 

   A. I’m so sorry to hear that. [image: image182.jpg]


 

   B. Really? 

   C. What happened? 

   D. Do you need my help? 
答案为A。这是一道考查表示同情的题目。在英文交际中，当听到对方说出自己不好的甚至是不幸的消息时，一般用“I’m sorry to hear that.”来回应，表示同情。所以根据上句“我兄弟在几个星期前被老板开除了。”这一意思，最好用答案A“听到这个消息很抱歉”来回答。
第9题
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9.   ---- I failed my English exam. ---- ( ) 

[image: image184.wmf] 

 

   A. That’s right. 

   B. Not at all, me too. 

   C. But this exam is so easy. 

   D. Sorry to hear that. [image: image185.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查表示同情的题目。在英文交际中，当听到对方说出自己不好的甚至是不幸的消息时，一般用“I’m sorry to hear that.”或者“Sorry to hear that.”等来回应，表示同情。所以根据上句“我这次的英语考试没有及格”这一意思，D的回应是正确的。答案A “可以。”、答案B “没有关系的，我也没有及格。”和答案C “这次考试很容易呀。”都不符合对话的要求。
第10题
[image: image186.jpg]



10.   ---- I missed the football match last night. ---- ( ) 

[image: image187.wmf] 

 

   A. So I did. 

   B. It doesn’t matter. 

   C. What a pity! [image: image188.jpg]


 

   D. Neither did I. 
答案为C。这是一道考查表示遗憾的题目。在英语表达中，当对方表示错过什么或没有完成什么事情或经历时，一般用“It’s a pity.”或“What’s a pity”来表示遗憾。对话上文指出“我错过了昨晚的足球赛。”，听到这个消息，最好的回答是C“太遗憾了。”。答案A和D都是错误的交际语，B是回答“对不起”道歉语的。
交际英语（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
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1.   ---- I called you yesterday evening, but there was no answer. ---- ( ) 

[image: image190.wmf] 

 

   A. You must have dialed the wrong number. 

   B. Oh, I’m sorry I was having dinner with my father. [image: image191.jpg]


 

   C. I’m sorry to hear that. 

   D. When did you phone exactly? 
答案为B。这是一道考查表达道歉的题目。在英文交际中，除了用“I’m sorry.”简单直接地表示“对不起”以外，还可以像回答感谢语那样用具体的事情来说明自己的歉意。如对话中对方表示出“我昨晚给你打了电话，可是没有人接。”的不满，你可以在向对方致歉的同时给出合理的解释让对方理解你的失误，所以答案B“很抱歉，我昨天和我父亲在一起吃晚饭。”向对方暗示自己不是故意错过接电话的时间，很符合对话的要求。而答案A和D的错误在于没有道歉反倒把错误推向对方，不符合英语交际的习惯；答案C是用于听到不好的消息时表示同情的语言。
第2题
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2.   ---- ( ) ---- I’d like to have this film developed. 

[image: image193.wmf] 

 

   A. What’s it? 

   B. May I help you? [image: image194.jpg]


 

   C. What do you want? 

   D. What do you do? 
答案为B。这是一道考查商店购物语的题目。根据下文中表示的“我想把这卷胶卷冲洗出来。”可以推断对话是发生在照相馆，语言出自顾客，那么上句肯定是店员讲的。在英文商店用语的交际中，店员看到顾客光临，应该主动询问“May / Can I help you?” “What can I do for you?”，顾客根据自己的需要说出要购买的东西或服务。所以答案B是最佳答案。答案A不符合英语习惯，答案C不是地道的英语商店用语，而答案D是问讯职业的。
第3题
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3.   ---- this jacket is so good. ( ) ---- It’s 200 yuan. I can give you special 20% discount on it. 

[image: image196.wmf] 

 

   A. How much is it? [image: image197.jpg]


 

   B. Is it expensive? 

   C. What color is it? 

   D. What size do I wear? 
答案为A。这是一道考查问询商品价格的题目。根据对话的意思，上文的前半部分表示“这件夹克很好。”，下文表示“要200元，我还可以给你20%的折扣。”，所以推断要填写的是问询商品价格的语言。只有A是表示“多少钱”的意思。B不是正确的问价格的语言；C询问的是颜色；D问的是衣服的尺寸。
第4题
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4.   ---- Could I see that sweater on the bottom shelf? ( ) ---- You have good taste, sir. This is 100 percent wool. 

[image: image199.wmf] 

 

   A. What size is it? 

   B. What is it made from? [image: image200.jpg]


 

   C. How much is it? 

   D. Is it the latest or classical style? 
答案为B。这是一道考查问询商品质地的题目。根据对话下半部分“先生，你的品位很不错，这件毛衣是100%羊毛的”的意思，可以判断顾客问的是这件毛衣的质地。只有答案B “它是由什么面料织的？”有这个意思。be made of / from有“由什么材料制作”的意思。A问的是尺寸，C问的是价格，D问的是“毛衣是最新的还是经典的款式？”不符合对话的内容。
第5题
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5.   ---- ( ) ---- It costs 100 yuan. 

[image: image202.wmf] 

 

   A. How beautiful the MP3 is! 

   B. What is the price of the MP3? [image: image203.jpg]


 

   C. Can I look at the MP3? 

   D. What an expensive MP3! 
答案为B。这是一道考查问询商品价格的题目。根据对话下半部分的意思“它值100元。”，可以判断前半部分问的是价格。四个选项中只有答案B “这个MP3的价格是多少”是问价格，类似的问价句型还有“How much is the MP3?”。其他选项都不符合题意。
第6题
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6.   ---- ( ) ---- Well, I want to look at these shirts. 

[image: image205.wmf] 

 

   A. What can I do for you? [image: image206.jpg]


 

   B. Did you find your favorite? 

   C. Please look at these skirts. 

   D. Try it on, please. 
答案为A。这是一道考查商店购物语的题目。根据对话后部分的意思“我想看看这些衬衫。”可以推断这是顾客的回答，那么上句肯定是店员问的。店员看到顾客光临，应该主动使用商店用语“May / Can I help you?” “What can I do for you?”来询问顾客，顾客根据自己的需要说出要购买的东西或服务。所以答案A是最佳答案。答案B和C都不符合商店用语，答案D是表示要顾客试穿一下。
第7题
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7.   ---- May I help you with some jeans, sir? ---- ( ) 

[image: image208.wmf] 

 

   A. No, I just look at it. 

   B. What colors do you have? 

   C. How much is it? 

   D. Yes, I’d like to try on those jeans. [image: image209.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查商店购物语的题目。对话上部分是店员讲的“先生，要不要看看牛仔裤？。”根据英语购物习惯，答案A “我只是看看。”，答案B “你们这有什么颜色的牛仔裤？”和答案C “多少钱？”都不符合。只有答案D “好的，我想试穿一下。”符合购物习惯和语言交际。
第8题
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8.   ---- Can I get you a cup of orange juice? ---- ( ) 

[image: image211.wmf] 

 

   A. With pleasure. 

   B. You can, please. 

   C. It’s very nice of you. [image: image212.jpg]


 

   D. Thank you for the orange juice. 
答案为C。这是一道考查怎样回复建议的题目。根据上句“给你一杯橘子汁，好吗？”和四个选项的内容，可以判断回答的内容是接受了对方的建议。答案C “你太好了。”最符合这种情况，也可以用简单的表示法“Sure.” “Thank you.”来接受对方的建议。A是回答感谢语；B的表达方式不符合英语交际规律；答案D混淆选择，对方问的是“是否要橘子汁？”，只要回答要与不要，但答案D是表示“很谢谢你的橘子汁。”，没有表明要还是不要。但如果是在你喝完橘子汁后，可以使用答案D来感谢对方的款待。
第9题
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9.   ---- A copy of China daily today, please! ---- ( ) 

[image: image214.wmf] 

 

   A. There is only a Chinese newspaper. 

   B. How many copies do you want? 

   C. Here you are. 2 yuan, please. [image: image215.jpg]


 

   D. Thank you very much. 
答案为C。这是一道考查购物语的题目。根据对话的内容可推断出对话发生在报亭。顾客表示“请来一份今天的中国日报。”，对方自然会回答“给你。”然后说明多少钱。所以答案C “拿好，2块钱，谢谢。”是正确的。A和B都不符合正常的交际，而D是感谢语，用于感谢对方帮了忙的情况下。
第10题
[image: image216.jpg]



10.   ---- ( ) ---- Size 10. 

[image: image217.wmf] 

 

   A. How big do you wear? 

   B. What size do you wear? [image: image218.jpg]


 

   C. You are in good shape. 

   D. This blouse is fit for you. 
答案为B。这是一道考查问询商品尺寸的题目。根据对话后部分的意思“是10号的。”可以推断顾客问询的是关于所买商品的尺寸大小。很明显答案B“你穿多大的尺寸?”为最佳答案。答案A的用词不正确，衣服的尺寸大小不能使用“big”这个词，只能用“size”。C和D都不符合交际情景。
交际英语（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
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1.   ---- Oh, I like this dress, Can I try it on? ---- ( ) 

[image: image220.wmf] 

 

   A. It’s 200 yuan. 

   B. No, I don’t think so. 

   C. My pleasure. 

   D. Of course. [image: image221.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查商店购物语的题目。对话上文问“我很喜欢这件衣服，我可以试试吗？”，这是顾客的语言。对于店员，当顾客想要试穿衣裤或鞋子时，应该表现出很愿意为您服务的态度，语言中应该包含很肯定的语气。所以答案D “当然可以。”是正确答案。答案A是回答顾客问询价格的，C是回答感谢语，B是错误的交际用语。
第2题
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2.   ---- Hello, This is Li Ting speaking. ( ) ---- I’m sorry, he is not in. Would you like to leave a message? 

[image: image223.wmf] 

 

   A. Who are you? 

   B. May I help you? 

   C. May I speak to David, please? [image: image224.jpg]


 

   D. Who is that speaking? 
答案为C。这是一道考查电话用语的题目。根据英语习惯，接电话的人要自报姓名或公司名称，使用“This is … (speaking)”的句型来表示“我是……”，不能使用习惯中“I’m …”的句型；当问“对方是谁？”时应该用“Who is that (speaking)?”来表示，而不能用“Who are you?”。对话上文的前半部分表示“你好，我是李廷。”根据回答“很抱歉他不在家。你想留个口信吗？”判断，后半部分问的意思是“想找某人接电话”。四个选项中只有答案C “我可以和大卫讲电话吗？”符合题意。答案A
第3题
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3.   ---- Hello, Yang Lin speaking. ---- ( ) 

[image: image226.wmf] 

 

   A. This is Carol here. [image: image227.jpg]


 

   B. I am Carol. 

   C. I miss you. 

   D. Do you know who I am? 
答案为A。这是一道考查电话用语的题目。根据对话，上文表示“你好，我是杨林。”，下文后半部分是表示向接电话的人问好，所以可以推断出下文前半部分表示的是打电话者自报姓名。而在英语电话用语中“我是…..”是用“This is …”的句型，而不用答案B中“I’m …”的表示法。而C和D都不符合打电话的习惯。所以答案为A。
第4题
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4.   ---- ( ) ---- Oh, this is Michael. I’d like to speak to Dr. Black, please. 

[image: image229.wmf] 

 

   A. Hello, I am Susan. 

   B. Who are you? 

   C. Hello! Mr. Black’s office. [image: image230.jpg]


 

   D. Can I help you? 
答案为C。这是一道考查电话用语的题目。对话下文表示了“我是Michael，我想和布莱克先生讲电话。”，而根据英语国家打电话的交际习惯，在接电话时接电话者应该自报姓名，如果是公司的秘书或接线员接的电话，应该自报公司或所属部门的名称，而不像中国人打电话习惯直接问“你是谁？”。从这一文化可以判断C为最佳选择“你好，这里是布莱克先生的办公室。”。而A和B都不是正确的电话用语，答案D是属于商店购物是店员或服务员的用语。
第5题
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5.   ---- Hi, is Greg there, please? ---- ( ) 

[image: image232.wmf] 

 

   A. Yes, what do you want? 

   B. No, she isn’t here. 

   C. Yes, she lives here. 

   D. Hold on. I will get him. [image: image233.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查电话用语的题目。对话的上文表示“请问Greg在吗？”，在这种情况下，有两种回答，如果接电话的人就是Greg，可回答“This is Greg speaking./ This is he. Who is that?”“我就是Greg，请问你是谁?”；如果是其他人接的电话，可回答“Hold on, I’ll get him.”，“等等，我去叫他来听电话。”（在电话用语中，“等等”不能用“wait for a moment”表示，而应该用“hold on”表示）。从四个选项的内容来看，接电
第6题
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6.   ---- This is Mary. Can I speak to Mr. Smith? ---- I’m sorry, he is having an important meeting. ( ) 

[image: image235.wmf] 

 

   A. Hold on. 

   B. What’s up? 

   C. You can call him later. 

   D. Can I take a message for you? [image: image236.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查电话用语的题目。上文表示“我是玛丽，请问我可以和史密斯先生讲电话吗？”，根据下文的前半部分的回答“对不起，他现在正在开一个很重要的会议。”可以判断接电话的是史密斯先生的秘书，情况是史密斯先生不能接听电话。在英语电话用语中，秘书此时应该询问对方“要不要留下口信转告史密斯先生？”所以答案D “我能帮你留个口信给史密斯先生吗？”最符合题意。答案A “等等。”与前半部分的内容不符，既然史密斯先生在开会，电话中就不能示意让对方等，只有在要找的人可以接电话的情况下才使用“hold on”表示“等
第7题
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7.   ---- Lincoln, the phone is for you. ---- ( ) 

[image: image238.wmf] 

 

   A. Who is he? 

   B. Who’s it? [image: image239.jpg]


 

   C. Who is she? 

   D. I’m busy. 
答案为B。这是一道考查电话用语的题目。上句表示“Lincoln，你的电话。”下句肯定是Lincoln的回答，答案A和C都不对，在不知道对方是谁的情况下，问“是谁？”不能使用表示性别的he 或she，只能用it代替。在回答敲门（不知道是谁敲门）时也用it代替“谁”。而D的回答不符合英语交际习惯。所以答案B是正确的。
第8题
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8.   ---- Could I speak to the headmaster, please? ---- ( ) 

[image: image241.wmf] 

 

   A. Hold on for a moment. [image: image242.jpg]


 

   B. Does the headmaster know it? 

   C. Can I have your name? 

   D. Sorry, you can not. 
答案为A。这是一道考查电话用语的题目。从上句“我可以和校长讲电话吗？”判断接电话的人是校长的秘书，从四个选项来看只有答案A “请等一等，（我帮你接过去。）”最符合对话的场景，表示校长此时可以接听电话。而B和C都不符合秘书接电话时的地道用语。D的表达方法不正确，如果校长有事不能接听电话，应该做出说明为什么校长不能接电话，再询问要不要留口信，而不能很生硬地表示“你不能”。
第9题
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9.   ---- Hello! 4546889. ---- ( ) 

[image: image244.wmf] 

 

   A. What’s that? 

   B. Hello, may I speak to Tom? [image: image245.jpg]


 

   C. Hello! 5589632. 

   D. Do you hear me? 
答案为B。这是一道考查电话用语的题目。根据英语国家打电话的交际习惯，接电话者在接电话时应该主动地自报姓名，或者是公司或所属部门的名称。也可以象对话的上句一样报出自己的电话号码，让对方确认是否打错了电话。而回答时就不必要也报出号码，所以答案C排除。A“那是什么？”的回答不符合题意。D“你能听到我的声音吗？”也是错误的回答电话的用语。只有答案B “你好，我可以和Tom通电话吗？”最符合交际。
第10题
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10.   ---- Frank, your father’s on the phone. ---- ( ) 

[image: image247.wmf] 

 

   A. I’m coming. [image: image248.jpg]


 

   B. Who is it? 

   C. What’s new? 

   D. You help me to say hello to Daddy. 
答案为A。这是一道考查电话用语的题目。根据对话的前部分“Frank，你父亲找你讲电话。”推断要选择的部分是儿子的回答。答案B的表示方法没有错，可对话前半部分已经说明是父亲的电话，再问“是谁的电话？”就画蛇添足了；答案C “什么事？”是用于和父亲正式通电话时使用的问候语，而此时考察的是当儿子得知是父亲的电话时的回应语，所以也不适合；答案D “你帮我向父亲问好。”不符合交际习惯。只有A的回答“我来了。”最符合对话。

交际英语（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
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1.   ---- My father and I are going to Beijing for our holiday. ---- ( ) 

[image: image250.wmf] 

 

   A. Sorry to hear that. 

   B. OK, we’d love to. 

   C. Have a good journey. [image: image251.jpg]


 

   D. Don't be too happy. 
答案为C。这是一道考查祝福语的题目。根据对话的意思，上文是指“我和我父亲要到北京度假”，听到这样的信息，下文应该表示“祝你们旅途愉快！”最为合适。所以答案是C。
第2题
[image: image252.jpg]



2.   ---- What was your journey like? ---- ( ) 

[image: image253.wmf] 

 

   A. Wonderful! It was one of the nicest one I’ve ever taken. [image: image254.jpg]


 

   B. I like traveling. 

   C. Yes, I like it very much. 

   D. I don’t like traveling at all. 
答案为A。这是一道考查问询旅游情况的题目。上句问的是“你的假期怎么样？”，回答的内容肯定是对假期进行描绘。答案A “太棒了，这个假期是我有史以来度过的最好的一个假期。”符合交际的内容。B“我喜欢旅游。”，C“是的，我很喜欢。”和D“我一点也不喜欢旅游。”都答非所问。所以答案为A。
第3题
[image: image255.jpg]



3.   ---- ( ) ---- I am an English teacher in a college. 

[image: image256.wmf] 

 

   A. Who are you? 

   B. What do you do? [image: image257.jpg]


 

   C. Where are you? 

   D. Are you a student? 
答案为B。这是一道考查问询职业的题目。从下句的回答“我是一名在大学任教的英语教师。”可以判断前句问的是“你是干什么职业的？”。“What do you do?”是固定的问询职业的表示方法，所以正确答案为B。A是问“你是谁？”，C问的是“你在哪里？”，D问的是“你是学生吗？”都不符合对话的内容。
第4题
[image: image258.jpg]



4.   ---- Please help yourself to the fish. ---- ( ) 

[image: image259.wmf] 

 

   A. Thanks, but I don’t like fish. [image: image260.jpg]


 

   B. Sorry, I can’t help. 

   C. Well, fish doesn’t suit me. 

   D. No, thank you. 
答案为A。这是一道考查款待客人的题目。上句“别客气，请多吃点鱼肉。”说明了对话发生在主人热情款待客人的情景下，下句肯定是客人对此的回应。答案B和D都不符合题意。答案C “鱼肉不适合我。”这样显得很没有礼貌，对主人很无礼，不符合英语交际。只有答案A “谢谢，但我不爱吃鱼肉。”最合适。首先表示对主人的热情款待的感谢，然后再说明自己不吃鱼肉的理由，这样很委婉地表示了自己拒绝的想法，符合英语交际的习惯。
第5题
[image: image261.jpg]



5.   ---- Are you ready, folks? ---- ( ) 

[image: image262.wmf] 

 

   A. No, I have no idea what to eat. 

   B. There is nothing I like to eat. 

   C. Yes, I’m ready. I’ll have the vegetable salad. [image: image263.jpg]


 

   D. Let’s go. 
答案为C。这是一道考查餐厅点菜用语的题目。首先这个题目考察大家的交际翻译，上句中“Are you ready?”并不是一般意义的“准备好了吗？”，从四个答案的大概意思判断，对话发生在餐厅，所以“Are you ready?”在这种情况下应该翻译成“请问准备点菜了吗？”，是餐厅服务员的交际用语。答案D“我们走吧。”不符合题意。答案C“我点一份蔬菜沙拉。”最符合交际。答案A “还没有，我不知道要吃什么。”和答案B “这里没有我喜欢吃的。”都显得很没有礼貌，不适合用于餐厅点餐用语。
第6题
[image: image264.jpg]



6.   ---- Have you got a table for six, Waitress? ---- ( ) 

[image: image265.wmf] 

 

   A. We are going to the restaurant. 

   B. We have booked the seats. 

   C. Yes, sure. This way, please. [image: image266.jpg]


 

   D. Here are the menus. 
答案为C。这是一道考查餐厅用语的题目。对话是发生在服务员和客人之间。上句“服务员，请问还有没有六人坐的桌子？”是客人的语言，所以要选的选项是餐厅服务员的回应。答案A “我们正要去餐馆吃饭。”和答案B “我们已经定了位子。”都属于客人的用语，不符合题目的要求。答案D是服务员讲的，但回答的内容“这是菜单，请点菜。”也不符合对话的意思。所以答案是C，“当然有，请这边走。”，服务员带领客人到适合他们的餐桌去用餐。
第7题
[image: image267.jpg]



7.   ---- What about one more cup of tea? ---- ( ) 

[image: image268.wmf] 

 

   A. I want a cup of tea. 

   B. Thank you. I’ve had enough. [image: image269.jpg]


 

   C. I’m not thirsty. 

   D. I don't like your tea. 
答案为B。这是一道考查餐厅用语的题目。上句服务员问“要不要再来一杯茶？”，客人的回答有两种，肯定的回答包括“Sure, thank you.” “Thank you.” “Thanks.”；如果是否定的回应，回答中首先要表示很感谢服务员提供的服务，然后再说明否定的理由。以此来判断，答案A “我想要一杯茶。”不符合肯定回答的要求，也不符合题意；答案B “谢谢你，茶已经够了，不用了。”是属于否定的回应，符合交际的用语礼仪。C“我不渴。”和D“我不喜欢你们的茶。”都是不正确的交际用语。所以答案选B。
第8题
[image: image270.jpg]



8.   ---- Excuse me. Can you tell me how to get to the Linden Street? ---- ( ) 

[image: image271.wmf] 

 

   A. You can’t ask me. 

   B. Pardon? I have no idea. 

   C. Please don’t say so. 

   D. Sorry, I’m new here. [image: image272.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查问路语的题目。对于上文“打扰了，你能否告诉我到林顿街怎么走？”的回答有两种。如果知道怎么走，就可以用简单的方位词指示出怎样到达目的地。如果不知道怎样走，可以真实地告诉对方“I’m sorry, I am new here too.”表示帮不了忙。四个选项中，答案D的内容符合交际“对不起，我也不熟悉这里。”。而A、B和C都不是正确的回应对方问路的语言。
第9题
[image: image273.jpg]



9.   ---- Excuse me, which is the way to the nearest subway station? ---- ( ) 

[image: image274.wmf] 

 

   A. It’s not far from there. 

   B. That subway station is very large. 

   C. You can take taxi. 

   D. Go down this street and turn left. [image: image275.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查问路语的题目。问路的内容“请问到最近的地铁站怎么走？”，答案D的内容“沿着这条街一直走然后左转。”是最符合回答指示方向的语言。而答案A“离这里不是很远。”，B“那个地铁站很大。”和答案C “你可以做的士去。”都不符合回答问路的语言。如果真的不知道怎样走，就直接告诉对方“I’m sorry, I am new here too.”。答案为D。
第10题
[image: image276.jpg]



10.   ---- What’s the weather like today? ---- ( ) 

[image: image277.wmf] 

 

   A. I don’t like the weather today. 

   B. It’s windy and very cold. [image: image278.jpg]


 

   C. I am not a weather forecaster. 

   D. You can watch the program of Weather Forecast. 
答案为B。这是一道考查问询天气情况的题目。在英语表达中，问今天天气情况的语言是固定的“What’s the weather like today?”，回答的语言可以是“It’s rainy（雨天）/ windy（有风） / snowy（雪天） / sandy（沙尘天） / sunny （晴天）/ cloudy（多云）/ foggy（有雾）.”。所以答案选B“今天有点风，而且很冷。”。

交际英语（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
[image: image279.jpg]



1.   ---- What’s the date today? ---- ( ) 

[image: image280.wmf] 

 

   A. Today is sunny. 

   B. Today is Monday. 

   C. Today is Spring Festival. 

   D. Today is 1st, July, 2007. [image: image281.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查问询日期的题目。在英语表达中，问“今天几号？”的语言是固定的“What’s the date today?”，回答的内容包括年月日，如“Today is 25th March, 2008.（今天是2008年3月25号。）”。所以答案是D“今天是2007年7月1号。”。答案A是回答天气的，B是回答星期几的，答案C是表示“今天是春节。”，都不是用于回答日期的语言。
第2题
[image: image282.jpg]



2.   ---- ( ) ---- Today is Sunday. 

[image: image283.wmf] 

 

   A. What’s the weather like today? 

   B. How about today? 

   C. What day is today? [image: image284.jpg]


 

   D. What’s the date today? 
答案为C。这是一道考查问询星期几的题目。在英语表达中，问“今天是星期几？”的语言是固定的“What day is today?”，与问日期的语言“What’s the date today?”是有区别的，“date”是“日期”的意思，而“day”是表示“星期”的意思。回答星期几的语言可以是“Today is Monday / Tuesday / Wednesday / Thursday / Friday / Saturday / Sunday.”。对话中回答的是“今天星期日。”所以答案选C。A是问天气的，
第3题
[image: image285.jpg]



3.   ---- I really enjoy watching the football match. What’s your favorite? ---- ( ) 

[image: image286.wmf] 

 

   A. No, not at all. 

   B. So did I. 

   C. Neither do I. 

   D. Well, actually I like watching the movies. [image: image287.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查问询对方爱好的题目。对话上半部分表示“我真的很喜欢看足球比赛。你的爱好是什么？”。回答问询爱好可以用“I like doing sth.”的句型。所以答案D“实际上我很喜欢看电影。”是最佳选择。其他答案都不是用来回答what提问的特殊疑问句。
第4题
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4.   ---- How do you like living in Beijing? ---- ( ) 

[image: image289.wmf] 

 

   A. It’s different from living in America. 

   B. I’ve lived there for one year. 

   C. I love it. Beijing is such a beautiful city. [image: image290.jpg]


 

   D. I have no idea. 
答案为C。这是一道考查问询喜好的题目。上文提出“你喜欢住在北京吗？”根据四个答案的意思，A是指“住在北京和住在美国不一样。”不符合所问的内容；答案B “我住在北京一年了。”回答的是时间概念；答案C “我很喜欢，北京是个很漂亮的城市。”符合题意；D是指“我也不知道。”不符合英语交际的习惯，针对“是否……？”这样的问题应该要做出肯定的或否定的回答，并说明理由，而不能用“不知道”来回答。所以答案为C。
第5题
[image: image291.jpg]



5.   ---- What do you think about the story of Harry Potter? ---- ( ) 

[image: image292.wmf] 

 

   A. No, it’s not a real story. 

   B. Thank you for telling me the story. 

   C. It’s interesting. I like it very much. [image: image293.jpg]


 

   D. So do I. 
答案为C。这是一道考查如何评价事物的题目。上文问的内容是“你觉得《哈里波特》这本书怎么样？”根据四个答案的回答，A是表示“不，它不是一个真实的故事。”，答案B “谢谢你给我讲这个故事。”和答案D “我也是。”都是答非所问，没有针对这本书做出评价，只有答案C “这本书很有意思，我很喜欢。”是表示出了对《哈里波特》这本书的想法和喜爱，达到了语言交际的目的。
第6题
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6.   ---- Are you feeling better today, Betty? ---- ( ) 

[image: image295.wmf] 

 

   A. Just stay in bed and have a good rest. 

   B. Don’t worry about me. 

   C. Yes, thanks, doctor. But I still feel dizzy. [image: image296.jpg]


 

   D. There must be something wrong. 
答案为C。这是一道考查关心语的题目。上文中“你感觉好些了吗？”表示了讲话者对对方关心的语气，下文的回答内容应该是让对方知道自己身体状态现在如何。答案A “就呆在床上好好休息。”的意思不符合所问的内容；B“请不要担心我。”也不符合这种情况的交际习惯，对于对方的关心还是要表示出感谢，而不能只是让对方不用担心；答案C “好多了，谢谢你医生。但是我还是感到有点晕。”最合适，而且对话者“病人和医生”的身份也符合交际的情景。答案D “一定有什么不对劲的地方。”不符合题意。所以答案是C。
第7题
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7.   ---- Hey, You look so pale. What’s wrong? ---- ( ) 

[image: image298.wmf] 

 

   A. It’s none of your business. 

   B. It doesn’t matter. 

   C. I didn’t sleep well last night. [image: image299.jpg]


 

   D. I’m sorry to hear that. 
答案为C。这是一道考查关心语的题目。从上文所问的内容“你看起来脸色很苍白，怎么啦？”来看，下文应该解释脸色苍白的原因。答案A “不关你的事。”属于没有礼貌的表达，特别是当对方表达出关心的情况下；答案B “没有关系。”也不符合英语的交际习惯，对待对方友好的询问，应该说出原因来让对方放心；答案C “我昨晚没有睡得很好。”就正好回答了为什么脸色差的原因，内容一致，表达方式也正确。D的回答一般用于听到对方说出不好的消息时。所以答案为C。
第8题
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8.   ---- ( ) ---- I feel a bit sick. 

[image: image301.wmf] 

 

   A. What’s the matter with you? [image: image302.jpg]


 

   B. Hurry up! We’re all waiting for you. 

   C. Will you come with us? 

   D. Where are you going? 
答案为A。这是一道考查关心语的题目。从下文“我有点想吐。”来判断，前面肯定是问“你怎么啦？”，在英语在中，“你怎么啦？”有固定的表达方式“What’s wrong with you?” “What’s the matter with you?”，所以答案为A。答案B的意思不符；C是邀请语；D问的是“你准备去哪里？”。
第9题
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9.   ---- What about your new job? ---- ( ) 

[image: image304.wmf] 

 

   A. I teach maths in the school. 

   B. It’s a challenge to me. [image: image305.jpg]


 

   C. I work in Hong Kong. 

   D. It’s not a big deal. 
答案为B。这是一道考查问询消息的题目。上文“你的新工作怎么样？”。选项中A表示“我在学校教数学。”是回答问询职业；B的意思“这个工作对我很有挑战性。”暗示说话者很满意这份工作，符合题目的要求；C“我在香港工作。”没有说出对工作的评价，只是介绍了在哪里工作而已；答案D “没有什么大不了的。”与所问内容不符。所以答案为B。
第10题
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10.   ---- What are Carl’s family like? ---- ( ) 

[image: image307.wmf] 

 

   A. They all like sports and games. 

   B. Oh, it’s really a big one. 

   C. His family is just like mine. 

   D. They are all warm-hearted and kind. [image: image308.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查如何评价人的题目。这个题目还考察了大家做题时的细心程度。上文的意思“卡尔的家人怎么样？”。其中“family”在英语中有两层意思，可以指“家庭”也可以指“家人”，但从句子中be动词“are” 的复数形式来看，对话中的“family”是指“家人”。所以答案B“真是一个大家庭。”和C“他的家庭和我的家庭一样。”首先排除。A的回答“他们都很喜欢运动和做游戏。”也不对，“What are people like?” 与“What do people like?”的意思完全不同，前者表示“这些
词汇与结构（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
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1.   The kids are kept( ) tidying up the desk. 

[image: image310.wmf] 

 

   A. busy with 

   B. busying with 

   C. busy in [image: image311.jpg]


 

   D. to busy in 
答案为C。本题考查固定搭配。A项 be busy with 表示“忙于做某事”，但后接名词，不接动名词，所以被排除；B项中busying的表达是错误的；D项中多了介词to，也不对。只有C 才符合be (kept) busy (in) doing sth. 结构。
第2题
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2.   The water is too hot ( ). 

[image: image313.wmf] 

 

   A. to drinking 

   B. to drink [image: image314.jpg]


 

   C. to be drinked 

   D. for drink 
答案为B。这是一个too…to结构的句子。意思是“水太烫而不能喝”。所以排除错误搭配A和D。而C中的动词drinked是错误的变形。
第3题
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3.   --- Would you ( ) holding the umbrella for me for a while? 

[image: image316.wmf] 

 

   A. like 

   B. want 

   C. mind [image: image317.jpg]


 

   D. please 
答案为C。Would you mind…后接动名词短语；Would you like…要加带to 的不定式，故A 不对；Would you please… 要加不带to的不定式，故D不对；没有Would you want to的句型，故B不对。
第4题
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4.   I don’t understand what she said ( ). 

[image: image319.wmf] 

 

   A. in all 

   B. after all 

   C. at all [image: image320.jpg]


 

   D. all about 
答案为C。at all一般用于否定句中，以加强语气，有“根本（不）”，“完全（不）”的意思。有时也用于肯定句，意思是“竟然”，“真的”等，用于加强语气。
第5题
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5.   We ( ) in the river near our village when we were little girls. 

[image: image322.wmf] 

 

   A. used to swim [image: image323.jpg]


 

   B. used to swimming 

   C. are used to swimming 

   D. were used to swim 
答案为A。本题考查判别形似的短语。used to do “过去常做”，仅此一种时态。be used to do“被用于做”，是use的被动语态，时态多变。be used to doing “习惯于做”， to是介词，时态多变。因此可看出B是错误的搭配；C是时态错误；D错在介词to后没有用动名词形式，故A正确。 
第6题
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6.   This sentence is ( ) difficult ( ) few of the students can understand it. 

[image: image325.wmf] 

 

   A. too…to 

   B. very, that 

   C. so, that [image: image326.jpg]


 

   D. such, that 
答案为C。too… to… 结构中to 是不定式符号，后面不能接从句；B项 两词不能搭配使用，故排除；D中such后应接名词，而difficult 是形容词，故排除；只有C才符合语法和题意。
第7题
[image: image327.jpg]



7.   Please fill the three baskets ( ) flowers. 

[image: image328.wmf] 

 

   A. of 

   B. by 

   C. for 

   D. with [image: image329.jpg]



答案为D。fill … with… 为固定搭配, 意思是“用……将……装满。A、B、C 无法与fill搭配。
第8题
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8.   Why ( ) the dinosaurs first? 

[image: image331.wmf] 

 

   A. don’t visit 

   B. not you visit 

   C. not visit [image: image332.jpg]


 

   D. you not visit 
答案为C。这是考查固定搭配。Why not do something = Why don’t you do something. 表示建议、提议对方做某事。
第9题
[image: image333.jpg]



9.   She promises that she will ( ) to me in three days. 

[image: image334.wmf] 

 

   A. return the money 

   B. return back the money 

   C. get the money back 

   D. pay back the money [image: image335.jpg]



答案为D。本题考查固定搭配。英语中表示“还钱”一般用“pay/give back the money to sb.”，而不用“return money to sb.”。因为return强调的是归还“原物”。所以A、B、C 都被排除。
第10题
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10.   Have you finished your housework ( )? Yes. I have ( ) finished it. 

[image: image337.wmf] 

 

   A. yet, already [image: image338.jpg]


 

   B. already, yet 

   C. ever, never 

   D. still, just 
答案为A。yet用在疑问句中，而already一般用在肯定句中。C和D都不符合题意而被排除。
词汇与结构（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
[image: image339.jpg]



1.   It is a bad habit to ( ) others. 

[image: image340.wmf] 

 

   A. make a fun of 

   B. make fun to 

   C. make up for 

   D. make fun of [image: image341.jpg]



答案为D。本题考固定搭配。make fun of 意为"取笑", fun 是不可数名词，所以Ａ不对；Ｂ为错误表达；Ｃ项的make up for 意为＂弥补，补偿＂，不符合句意，也排除。
第2题
[image: image342.jpg]



2.   You would always be ( ) two minds about so many things. 

[image: image343.wmf] 

 

   A. for 

   B. to 

   C. at 

   D. in [image: image344.jpg]



答案为D。本题考固定搭配。in two minds的意思是“三心二意”。其余三项使句子意思不通。
第3题
[image: image345.jpg]



3.   I ran ( ) an old friend of mine yesterday, whom I hadn’t seen for years. 

[image: image346.wmf] 

 

   A. across [image: image347.jpg]


 

   B. cross 

   C. after 

   D. for 
答案为A。本题考固定搭配。run across意思是“偶然遇见”。cross是动词，不符合句子的语法结构；run after 意思是“追”；run for 意思是“竞选”，都不符合题意。
第4题
[image: image348.jpg]



4.   When we are crossing the streets, we must look out ( )cars. 

[image: image349.wmf] 

 

   A. to 

   B. for [image: image350.jpg]


 

   C. at 

   D. of 
答案为B。本题考固定搭配。look out for 意思是“当心”；look out to 意思是“向……望去”；look out at 意思是“向外看着……”; look out of 意思是“向外看”。由此可见只有B的语意才对。
第5题
[image: image351.jpg]



5.   The developing country has to ( ) to terms with those superpowers. 

[image: image352.wmf] 

 

   A. come [image: image353.jpg]


 

   B. get 

   C. take 

   D. go 
答案为Ａ。本题考固定搭配。come to terms with 是固定词组，意思是“妥协、让步、达成协议。”
第6题
[image: image354.jpg]



6.   ( ) I know, the new library will be completed in two months. 

[image: image355.wmf] 

 

   A. So far as [image: image356.jpg]


 

   B. So long as 

   C. So far 

   D. As long as 
答案为Ａ。本题考固定搭配。So far as I know　意思是“据我所知”；Ｃ只作副词用；Ｂ、Ｄ项为“只要”。
第7题
[image: image357.jpg]



7.   Is it money that comes between us? I ( ) deep into thought. 

[image: image358.wmf] 

 

   A. fall [image: image359.jpg]


 

   B. feel 

   C. keep 

   D. catch 
答案为Ａ。本题考固定搭配。fall deep into thought 意思是“陷入沉思”。其它选项不能构成正确的固定搭配。
第8题
[image: image360.jpg]



8.   I am so glad that my students have ( )into the habit of ( ) English news every day. 

[image: image361.wmf] 

 

   A. formed; listening to 

   B. felt; listening to 

   C. fallen; listening to [image: image362.jpg]


 

   D. 不填；to listen 
答案为C。本题考固定搭配。本题考查“养成……习惯做某事”的表达方式。 form后不需要介词into；B项felt是feel的过去式，不要将其误认为是fall的过去式；D项的前后两个空都不正确。
第9题
[image: image363.jpg]



9.   As my mother has been separated from her parents for forty years, she ( ) information of them. 

[image: image364.wmf] 

 

   A. run out of 

   B. run short of 

   C. is short of [image: image365.jpg]


 

   D. is short 
答案为C。本题考固定搭配。A、B两项表示“用完、耗尽”， 不合题意。Ｃ项be short of 是“缺少”的意思，符合题意；而Ｄ则缺少了介词of，结构不正确。
第10题
[image: image366.jpg]



10.   The orphan has to beg ( ) in the town every day. 

[image: image367.wmf] 

 

   A. from head to foot 

   B. from dawn till dark 

   C. from side to side 

   D. from door to door [image: image368.jpg]



答案为Ｄ。本题考固定搭配。句子中有时间状语every day，Ｂ表示时间的短语 “从早到晚”，与其冲突可以排除；Ａ表示“从头到脚”；Ｃ表示“从一边到另一边”，都不符合句子的意思，故排除; D表示“挨家挨户”，符合本句的题意。

词汇与结构（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
[image: image369.jpg]



1.   People will think well of the actions that ( ) the will of theirs. 

[image: image370.wmf] 

 

   A. go against 

   B. go with [image: image371.jpg]


 

   C. turn over 

   D. destroy 
答案为Ｂ。本题考固定搭配。句子的意思是“人们将会高度评价与他们意愿相符合的行为”，只有选项Ｂ go with　有“与……相符合”的意思；Ａ、Ｃ、Ｄ都不符合题意。
第2题
[image: image372.jpg]



2.   Ms. Wang is waiting at her office. Please go and ( ) here. 

[image: image373.wmf] 

 

   A. pick out her 

   B. pick up her [image: image374.jpg]


 

   C. pick her out 

   D. pick her up 
答案为Ｄ。本题考固定搭配。pick out 有“在……中找出（某人）”的意思，不符合题意；pick up 在这里意为“（开车）接人”，因宾语是人称代词，要放在pick 和up的中间，所以Ｂ也排除。
第3题
[image: image375.jpg]



3.   By his genius he ( ) all these old stories ( ) masterpieces of his life. 

[image: image376.wmf] 

 

   A. put; into 

   B. turned; into [image: image377.jpg]


 

   C. wrote; as 

   D. set; as 
答案为Ｂ。本题考固定搭配。put…into 意思是“将…….放入”, 不符合题意；turn…into 意思是”将……转变成”, 符合题意；Ｃ、Ｄ都不是固定搭配，不符合题意。
第4题
[image: image378.jpg]



4.   The little horse is afraid ( ) on the narrow bridge, for it is afraid ( ) into the river. 

[image: image379.wmf] 

 

   A. to walk; to fall 

   B. of walking; to fall 

   C. to walk; of falling [image: image380.jpg]


 

   D. of walking; of falling 
答案为C。本题考查固定搭配。be afraid of sth 表示“对某事担心、害怕”；be afraid to do sth. 是“不敢做某事”。“小马因害怕掉到河里而不敢在狭窄的桥上走过”。
第5题
[image: image381.jpg]



5.   If Tony ( ) that late film last night, he wouldn’t be so sleepy. 

[image: image382.wmf] 

 

   A. didn’t see [image: image383.jpg]


 

   B. haven’t seen 

   C. wouldn’t have seen 

   D. hadn’t seen 
答案为D。 全句是错综时态的虚拟语气，条件句为对过去的虚拟，主句对现在情况的虚拟。根据if虚拟句的变化规律判断A、B、C 三项句子的意义或语法结构都不对。
第6题
[image: image384.jpg]



6.   ( ) I would go there myself. 

[image: image385.wmf] 

 

   A. were I you [image: image386.jpg]


 

   B. I were you 

   C. If I had been you 

   D. Had I been you 
答案为A。 本题考查的是现在情况的虚拟条件句，在这里if被省略了，同时出现倒装的形式。B项缺少了连词if ；C、D都是对过去情况的虚拟条件，与本题不符。
第7题
[image: image387.jpg]



7.   Her new job required that he ( ) at the factory on weekends. 

[image: image388.wmf] 

 

   A. be [image: image389.jpg]


 

   B. was 

   C. is 

   D. would be 
答案为A。本题考查虚拟语气。动词require后面的宾语从句谓语为should加动词原形， 或省去了should的动词原形。B、C、D三项都不符合要求。
第8题
[image: image390.jpg]



8.   Betty’s suggestion that you ( ) once more sounds reasonable. 

[image: image391.wmf] 

 

   A. try [image: image392.jpg]


 

   B. tries 

   C. must try 

   D. can try 
答案为A。本题考查虚拟语气。suggestion接同谓语从句，其意思为“建议”时，句中的谓语动词为should型，即should加动词原形，或省去should的动词原形。因此，B、C、D 三项都不正确。
第9题
[image: image393.jpg]



9.   What would you do if you ( )to meet with bad weather? 

[image: image394.wmf] 

 

   A. were [image: image395.jpg]


 

   B. are going 

   C. have 

   D. are 
答案为A。 这是一个对将来情况进行虚拟假设的主从句。从句的动词要用were to+ 动词原形表将来。 B、C、D 不符合语法结构的要求。
第10题
[image: image396.jpg]



10.   But for Mr. Wang, we ( ) such a happy life now. 

[image: image397.wmf] 

 

   A. wouldn’t be living [image: image398.jpg]


 

   B. won’t be living 

   C. couldn’t live 

   D. are not able to live 
答案为A。本题考虚拟语气。由前置状语中but for“若不是”推知，主句为虚拟语气，根据句意时态，应为进行时，B、D不是虚拟语气，故排除；C 既不是进行时，句意也不同。

词汇与结构（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
[image: image399.jpg]



1.   She remained very calm , otherwise she ( ). 

[image: image400.wmf] 

 

   A. would been found out 

   B. would have been found out [image: image401.jpg]


 

   C. would found out 

   D. would have found out 
答案为B。本题考虚拟语气。此题中“她”和“发现”是被动的关系，所以不是被动语态的C、D就被排除；又因为是对过去的虚拟，要用would+动词的完成时这一结构，故排除A。
第2题
[image: image402.jpg]



2.   It is important that we( ). 

[image: image403.wmf] 

 

   A. shall close the window before we leave 

   B. will close the window before we leave 

   C. must close the window before we leave 

   D. close the window before we leave [image: image404.jpg]



答案D。本题考虚拟语气。It is important ( necessary , strange等) 后面的that 主语从句中，谓语动词应为should 句式或省略should 的动词原形。
第3题
[image: image405.jpg]



3.   If only my grandma ( )this together with us now! 

[image: image406.wmf] 

 

   A. had seen 

   B. could see [image: image407.jpg]


 

   C. must see 

   D. should see 
答案为B。本题考虚拟语气。if only 表示“要是……就好了”、“但愿……”，要接表示虚拟句子。本句是对现在的虚拟，所以用情态动词的过去时加动词原形。A时态不对；C、D不符合题意。
第4题
[image: image408.jpg]



4.   ( ) today, she would get to Beijing in two days. 

[image: image409.wmf] 

 

   A. If she was leaving 

   B. Were she to leave [image: image410.jpg]


 

   C. If she leaves 

   D. If she is leaving 
答案为B。本题是对将来情况的虚拟条件句，were 到主语前，连词if可以省略，对将来虚拟条件句用were to 或should接动词原形，根据此原则A、C、D 都被排除。
第5题
[image: image411.jpg]



5.   If Della hadn’t sold her hair, she ( ) the gold watch chain for Jim. 

[image: image412.wmf] 

 

   A. wouldn’t buy 

   B. would have bought 

   C. shouldn’t have bought 

   D. couldn’t have bought [image: image413.jpg]



答案为D。本题考虚拟语气。 后半句是对过去的虚拟的主句，要用情态动词的过去时+动词完成时，故A不对；B、C的意思不符合题意，也排除。
第6题
[image: image414.jpg]



6.   Speak to your grandma slowly ( ) she may understand you better. 

[image: image415.wmf] 

 

   A. since 

   B. so that [image: image416.jpg]


 

   C. for 

   D. because 
答案为B。 so that 可以表示“目的”和“结果”，此处so that 引导目的状语从句，相当于in order that 引导的目的状语从句。A、C、D均不符合题意。
第7题
[image: image417.jpg]



7.   The men have to wait the whole day ( ) the doctor works fast. 

[image: image418.wmf] 

 

   A. if 

   B. whether 

   C. unless [image: image419.jpg]


 

   D. that 
答案为C。 该句是一个含有条件状语从句的复合句。在选项中只有A和C 可以用来引导条件状语从句，但A 项不符合句意，故只能选C。
第8题
[image: image420.jpg]



8.   Take an umbrella with you ( ) it rains. 

[image: image421.wmf] 

 

   A. in any case 

   B. in case [image: image422.jpg]


 

   C. because 

   D. for 
答案为B。该句是一个含有条件状语从句的复合句。在提供的选项中只有B才能引导条件状语从句。
第9题
[image: image423.jpg]



9.   The thief stole her wallet ( ) she knew it. 

[image: image424.wmf] 

 

   A. before [image: image425.jpg]


 

   B. until 

   C. while 

   D. after 
答案为A。本题考查状语从句。此句意思是“她还不知道怎么回事，钱包就被偷走了”。before+主语+know是一种习惯表达方式。意思是“没等……就……”或“不知不觉”。
第10题
[image: image426.jpg]



10.   No matter ( ), they will try their best to reach it on foot. 

[image: image427.wmf] 

 

   A. how far is it 

   B. how far it is [image: image428.jpg]


 

   C. it is how far 

   D. how far it will be 
答案为B。no matter what/which/who /how/when/where…表“无论什么/哪个/谁/如何/什么时候/在哪里”引导一个让步状语从句。注意，该从句应当用正常的语序，A倒装了是错的。还应该注意的是：主句是将来时，从句只能用一般现在时表将来。所以D的时态不对
词汇与结构（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
[image: image429.jpg]



1.   I won’t go unless you ( ). 

[image: image430.wmf] 

 

   A. go [image: image431.jpg]


 

   B. goes 

   C. went 

   D. will go 
答案为A。本题考查条件状语从句。 unless引导的从句与if引导的从句一样为条件状语从句，主句是将来时，从句是一般现在时表将来。即“主将从现”原则。
第2题
[image: image432.jpg]



2.   I listened to the rain, ( ) that he would not come here on time. 

[image: image433.wmf] 

 

   A. thought 

   B. to think 

   C. thinking [image: image434.jpg]


 

   D. being thinking 
答案为C。这是一道考查非谓语动词的题目。做伴随状语的分词，属主语的次要动作。填A， 则为主语的第二个动作，前面就需要有连接词；填B，不定式表目的或结果，句子意思不通；D 是不正确的表达。
第3题
[image: image435.jpg]



3.   I am sorry ( ) told you about the accident at that time. 

[image: image436.wmf] 

 

   A. to have not 

   B. to not have 

   C. not to have [image: image437.jpg]


 

   D. not having 
答案为C。这是一道考查非谓语动词的题目。不定式完成时的否定式做原因状语。不定式的否定式not必须在不定式之前。
第4题
[image: image438.jpg]



4.   Will you lend me a book ( )? 

[image: image439.wmf] 

 

   A. to be read 

   B. for reading 

   C. to read [image: image440.jpg]


 

   D. I read 
答案为C。这是一道考查非谓语动词的题目。 不定式to read的逻辑主语是me，与谓语动词是主动的关系，所以A不对；不选B的原因是错误搭配；D是定语从句，但句子的语意不通顺。
第5题
[image: image441.jpg]



5.   The book ( ) on this subject was written by an old female writer. 

[image: image442.wmf] 

 

   A. referring 

   B. referred 

   C. referring to 

   D. referred to [image: image443.jpg]



答案为D。这是一道考查非谓语动词的题目。短语动词的过去分词做后置定语，“被提到的… …”。A、C 为现在分词不具有被动含义，故排除；B项因为缺介词 to ，是错误的表达方式。
第6题
[image: image444.jpg]



6.   It was careless of him to leave the window ( ). 

[image: image445.wmf] 

 

   A. to open 

   B. open [image: image446.jpg]


 

   C. opening 

   D. opened 
答案为B。这是一道考查非谓语动词的题目。 根据题意，B项 open是形容词，做宾语的补足语。A、C 中的open是做动词使用，均不符合句型要求；D为过去分词表状态，但open本身就是形容词，就不用它的过去分词形式了。
第7题
[image: image447.jpg]



7.   Oh, dear, I smell something ( ). 

[image: image448.wmf] 

 

   A. burnt 

   B. burning [image: image449.jpg]


 

   C. burn 

   D. is burning 
答案为B。这是一道考查非谓语动词的题目。 现在分词当宾语，表示“正在烧焦”，A 是过去分词表示“已经烧过”，但现在不一定有气味；C 是动词原形放入句子则语法结构不对；D项意味着smell带了个宾语从句，意思不通。 smell作为感官动词后面接动名词表示“瞬间”的情景和状态。
第8题
[image: image450.jpg]



8.   They’ll have other meetings like this in the weeks ( ). 

[image: image451.wmf] 

 

   A. following 

   B. to follow [image: image452.jpg]


 

   C. followed 

   D. will follow 
答案为B。本题考查非谓语动词。这是不定式做定语的现象，表将来发生的动作或状态。现在分词做定语时，表示进行的动作，故A不对；C 为过去分词，表示被动含义，不符合题义；填D则句子的语法结构不正确。
第9题
[image: image453.jpg]



9.   Although she didn’t expect ( ) me there, she advised ( ) to the nearest restaurant. 

[image: image454.wmf] 

 

   A. to find, going [image: image455.jpg]


 

   B. finding, to go 

   C. to find, to go 

   D. finding, going 
答案为A。本题考查非谓语动词。expect 要用不定式做宾语，而advise 要用动名词做宾语。根据此原则 B、C、D都不符合要求。
第10题
[image: image456.jpg]



10.   They all agreed that the matter required ( ). 

[image: image457.wmf] 

 

   A. to look into 

   B. being looked into 

   C. to be looked into 

   D. looking into [image: image458.jpg]



答案为D。本题考查非谓语动词。require接动名词的主动形式，表被动含义，故B排除。且require不接不定式宾语，故A、C不行。

词汇与结构（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
[image: image459.jpg]



1.   Living near the sea , ( ). 

[image: image460.wmf] 

 

   A. we enjoy healthy air and beautiful sights [image: image461.jpg]


 

   B. healthy air and beautiful sights is what we enjoy 

   C. it is healthy air and beautiful sights is what we enjoy 

   D. so we enjoy healthy air and beautiful sights 
答案为A。本题考查非谓语动词。前置分词短语表原因，其动作必须由主句的主语来做，即living的逻辑主语是we，故B、C不对；D中多了一个表示结果的连词so，使全句缺了主句，是个不完整的句子，所以也不对。
第2题
[image: image462.jpg]



2.   Our teacher asked us ( ) afraid of making mistakes. 

[image: image463.wmf] 

 

   A. don’t be 

   B. aren’t 

   C. be not 

   D. not to be [image: image464.jpg]



答案为D. 不定式的否定形式是 not to be / do. A、B、C 都为不正确的表达方式。
第3题
[image: image465.jpg]



3.   My parents often make me ( ) a lot of housework on weekends. 

[image: image466.wmf] 

 

   A. to do 

   B. do [image: image467.jpg]


 

   C. did 

   D. doing 
答案为B. make 后接不带to 的不定式，即动词原形。
第4题
[image: image468.jpg]



4.   1. He ( ) be in the garden, he must be in the room. 

[image: image469.wmf] 

 

   A. can’t [image: image470.jpg]


 

   B. mustn’t 

   C. will not 

   D. may not 
答案为A。本题是对情态动词的考查。否定的推测用can’t ，不用mustn’t。如果填C、D两项则句子的意思不通。
第5题
[image: image471.jpg]



5.   They ( ) not to make so much noise in the classroom. 

[image: image472.wmf] 

 

   A. need 

   B. dare 

   C. can 

   D. ought [image: image473.jpg]



答案为D。本题是对情态动词的考查。dare和need如果否定了本身则是情态动词，后面不应该有带to的不定式。 can 是情态动词，也不应加不定式，ought to是惟一特殊结构的情态动词。
第6题
[image: image474.jpg]



6.   You ( ) return the bike right now. You can keep it until he wants to use it himself. 

[image: image475.wmf] 

 

   A. mustn’t 

   B. may not 

   C. can’t 

   D. needn’t [image: image476.jpg]



答案为D。本题是对情态动词的考查。mustn’t意思是“不准”“禁止”，may not 意思是“不可以”， can not 意思是“不可能”，“不能”，都不符合题意。needn’t 理解为“不必”符合句子的意思。
第7题
[image: image477.jpg]



7.   It was not until 1920 ( ) regular radio broadcast began. 

[image: image478.wmf] 

 

   A. while 

   B. which 

   C. that [image: image479.jpg]


 

   D. since 
答案为C。本题考查 it 强调句。该句是对时间状语until 1920强调的句子，其句型结构为 it was … that …，所以答案为C。
第8题
[image: image480.jpg]



8.   ( ) is reported that she got seven gold medals. 

[image: image481.wmf] 

 

   A. That 

   B. Word 

   C. It [image: image482.jpg]


 

   D. News 
答案为C。 it 在句中是形式主语，真正的主语是that 从句。这个句型的结构是: it + be + 过去分词 + that 从句。
第9题
[image: image483.jpg]



9.   I don’t think ( ) possible to master a foreign language without much memory work. 

[image: image484.wmf] 

 

   A. this 

   B. that 

   C. its 

   D. it [image: image485.jpg]



答案为D。 to master…是动词不定式短语做think 的宾语。当句子的宾语是动词不定式或that 从句时，我们通常用it 做先行宾语（形式宾语），但是如果宾语不与形容词在一起，一般不能用it 做形式宾语。
第10题
[image: image486.jpg]



10.   It ( ) they had stayed together for several months ( ) they found they had a lot in common. 

[image: image487.wmf] 

 

   A. was until; that 

   B. was until; when 

   C. wasn’t until; that [image: image488.jpg]


 

   D. wasn’t until; when 
答案为C。本题既考查强调句，又考查not…until…的句式。It is (was)… + 被强调部分+ that 从句。not…until… 意思是“直到……才……”。

词汇与结构（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
[image: image489.jpg]



1.   There ( ) two parties next week. We welcome everybody to attend. 

[image: image490.wmf] 

 

   A. is going to have 

   B. are going to be [image: image491.jpg]


 

   C. is going to be 

   D. are going to have 
答案为B。 本句是there be 句型的将来时，用 is going to be 还是are going to be 要看主语，本句的主语是 two parties所以用are，注意动词是be 而不是 have。
第2题
[image: image492.jpg]



2.   He has ( ) my bike for three weeks. 

[image: image493.wmf] 

 

   A. bought 

   B. borrowed 

   C. returned 

   D. kept [image: image494.jpg]



答案为D。本题考查对瞬间动词和延续性动词的判断。该句子中有表时间段的短语，所以要用延续性动词。buy , borrow, return都是瞬间动词，不能同段时间连用，只有将其转换为延续性动词或短语才行。常见的转换有：go变成be there, come变成be here/be in…/be at…, leave变成be away, die变成be dead, borrow变成keep, buy变成have, begin/start变成be on, join变成be a member of , marry变
第3题
[image: image495.jpg]



3.   We can hear her ( ) every day. 

[image: image496.wmf] 

 

   A. sings 

   B. singing 

   C. to sing 

   D. sing [image: image497.jpg]



答案为D。感官动词hear, listen to, see, watch, notice, look at, feel 等后面接不带to的不定式(即动词原形)做宾语补语时，表示“全过程”或“经常发生的动作”；接动名词时则表示“瞬间”的状态、情景。本题因为用了every day，所以为前一种情况, 接动词原形。（难）
第4题
[image: image498.jpg]



4.   Everything in our classrooms should ( ). 

[image: image499.wmf] 

 

   A. take good care 

   B. take good care of 

   C. be taken good care of [image: image500.jpg]


 

   D. be taken good care 
答案为C。 本题考查谓语动词。主语everything和谓语动词短语take care of构成了被动关系，则A、B被排除；由动词加上介词所组成的短语动词用于被动句中时，切记不可遗漏介词, 所以排除D。（中）
第5题
[image: image501.jpg]



5.   Jones ( ) music over fifteen years. 

[image: image502.wmf] 

 

   A. teaches 

   B. used to teach 

   C. is teaching 

   D. has been teaching [image: image503.jpg]



答案为Ｄ。本题考查动词的时态。句中有时间状语 over fifteen years，可见这个动作从过去到现在一直在做，所以要用现在完成进行时，只有Ｄ是现在完成进行时。
第6题
[image: image504.jpg]



6.   A new hospital ( ) near our community and it will be completed at the end of this month. 

[image: image505.wmf] 

 

   A. is building 

   B. has built 

   C. is being built [image: image506.jpg]


 

   D. will be built 
答案为Ｃ。本题考查动词的时态和语态。从句子意思中可得知两个信息，一是“被建”，　二是“正在建”，所以用现在进行时的被动语态。Ａ、Ｂ、Ｄ的时态和语态都不符合要求。
第7题
[image: image507.jpg]



7.   The author ( ) a book about children in China since 1998, but no one knows whether he has finished it or not. 

[image: image508.wmf] 

 

   A. wrote 

   B. had written 

   C. has written 

   D. has been writing [image: image509.jpg]



答案为D。 本题考查动词的时态。前半句可看出此动作开始于过去，后半句暗示此动作可能还未结束，所以要用现在完成进行时，表示一个动作从过去做到现在，还有可能继续下去。
第8题
[image: image510.jpg]



8.   I didn’t know my roommate ( ) until the day before yesterday. 

[image: image511.wmf] 

 

   A. will come 

   B. is coming 

   C. had been coming 

   D. was coming [image: image512.jpg]



答案为D。本题考查时态一致性原则。主句didn’t know是过去时，所以宾语从句也要用相应的表过去的时态，因为是 “他将要来”, 所以用过去将来时。
第9题
[image: image513.jpg]



9.   After he had run for two hours ( ). 

[image: image514.wmf] 

 

   A. he was tired out [image: image515.jpg]


 

   B. he will tired out 

   C. he would have been tired out 

   D. he had been tired out 
答案为A。在时间状语从句中he had run for two hours 是过去完成时，说明动作发生在过去的过去，所以B不对；C项是虚拟语气，不符合句子意思；D项是过去完成时，与从句中的时态冲突，故排除；所以正确答案为A。
第10题
[image: image516.jpg]



10.   Her famous art work that can be seen in the museum is ( ) all praise. 

[image: image517.wmf] 

 

   A. with 

   B. within 

   C. without 

   D. beyond [image: image518.jpg]



答案为D。本题考介词。beyond all praise 说明事物好的程度超过了所有赞扬的话，即“非常好”。选A、B、C 三项都是错误的搭配。
第1题
[image: image519.jpg]



1.   The rolling mountains look grey ( ) the blue sky. 

[image: image520.wmf] 

 

   A. in 

   B. under 

   C. against [image: image521.jpg]


 

   D. to 
答案为C。本题考介词。against意为“反衬”，其他介词的意思都不符合题意。
第2题
[image: image522.jpg]



2.   It’s so nice to go out for a walk ( ) a nice cool summer evening. 

[image: image523.wmf] 

 

   A. in 

   B. on [image: image524.jpg]


 

   C. for 

   D. at 
答案为B。本题考介词。in the evening (morning, afternoon ) 是固定的，为一种泛指，但是具体某天上午、下午或晚上要用介词on。
第3题
[image: image525.jpg]



3.   He is a man who is not able to tell true friends ( ) false ones. 

[image: image526.wmf] 

 

   A. from [image: image527.jpg]


 

   B. to 

   C. against 

   D. with 
答案为A。本题考介词。Tell…from 为常用搭配，意思是“与……区别开”。B、C、D三项的语意不通。
第4题
[image: image528.jpg]



4.   The boy was scolded ( ) being late ( ) class. 

[image: image529.wmf] 

 

   A. for, to 

   B. about, to 

   C. for, for [image: image530.jpg]


 

   D. because, to 
答案为C。本题考介词。第一个for表示原因，“由于迟到……”， 与动词scold搭配表示由于迟到而被责备；第二个for 是be late for 的固定搭配。
第5题
[image: image531.jpg]



5.   I called ( ) my friend’s house, but she wasn’t in. And I had to call ( ) her the next day. 

[image: image532.wmf] 

 

   A. on; on 

   B. on; at 

   C. at; on [image: image533.jpg]


 

   D. at; at 
答案为Ｃ。本题考介词。表示“拜访”时，call at 后接地点；call on 后接人。
第6题
[image: image534.jpg]



6.   Shakespeare is famous ( ) a writer ( ) plays. 

[image: image535.wmf] 

 

   A. as; because 

   B. for; for 

   C. as; for [image: image536.jpg]


 

   D. for; as 
答案为Ｃ。本题考介词。writer 为职务、身份的名词，其前面应用as, 意思是“作为……”, plays 是famous 的原因，要用for,　意思是“因……而闻名”。
第7题
[image: image537.jpg]



7.   Korea lies ( ) the north of China, ( ) the east of Asia. 

[image: image538.wmf] 

 

   A. in; on 

   B. to; in [image: image539.jpg]


 

   C. on; to 

   D. to; on 
答案为Ｂ。本题考介词。表示方位时；in表示在里面；to表示相隔，有时也表相连。
第8题
[image: image540.jpg]



8.   ( ), he was already a famous lawyer in this country. 

[image: image541.wmf] 

 

   A. How young was he 

   B. As he was young 

   C. Young as he was [image: image542.jpg]


 

   D. Young though he was 
答案为C。 本题考查倒装句。当as 表示although或 though意义引导让步状语从句时, 通常要被提到主语前面。
第9题
[image: image543.jpg]



9.   He is not fond of cooking, ( ) I. 

[image: image544.wmf] 

 

   A. so am 

   B. nor am [image: image545.jpg]


 

   C. neither 

   D. nor do 
答案为B。本题考查倒装句。第一分句的谓语为系动词，第二分句也用系动词。通常用neither, either, nor来附合对方所否定的事情。用neither 和nor 时要用倒装，注意谓语要用肯定形式。
第10题
[image: image546.jpg]



10.   I like sports, and ( ) my sister. 

[image: image547.wmf] 

 

   A. so does [image: image548.jpg]


 

   B. so is 

   C. so 

   D. so likes 
答案为A。本题考查省略和倒装。第一分句的谓语用实义动词like，因此第二分句就用助动词do 做谓语代替like，在并列句的第二分句中通常用 neither, either, nor, so, too 来引起省略（同时也发生倒装）。
词汇与结构（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
[image: image549.jpg]



1.   When and where to built the factory ( ) yet. 

[image: image550.wmf] 

 

   A. is not decided [image: image551.jpg]


 

   B. are not decided 

   C. has not decided 

   D. have not decided 
答案为A。 本题考查主谓一致。两个疑问词加不定式在句中做主语表一件事的两个侧面，谓语动词用单数形式，又因该句是被动句，故A 为正确答案。
第2题
[image: image552.jpg]



2.   All but one ( ) here just now. 

[image: image553.wmf] 

 

   A. is 

   B. was 

   C. has been 

   D. were [image: image554.jpg]



答案为D。本题考查主谓一致。all做“全部(物)”解时，谓语动词用单数形式，做“所有（人）”解时，谓语动词用复数形式。该句中的all 指所有的人，谓语动词应为复数形式，A、B、C 均可排除，故D 为正确答案。
第3题
[image: image555.jpg]



3.   Either Mike or I ( ) to blame. 

[image: image556.wmf] 

 

   A. to be 

   B. am [image: image557.jpg]


 

   C. are 

   D. is 
答案为B。本题考查主谓一致。 这里与谓语临近的主语是代词I ，所以系动词要用am ，由连词or , either or, neither nor, not only…but also, nor 连接的两个名词或代词，谓语的形式要用就近原则。
第4题
[image: image558.jpg]



4.   In my class two fifths of the students ( ) boys. 

[image: image559.wmf] 

 

   A. is 

   B. are [image: image560.jpg]


 

   C. has 

   D. have 
答案为B。本题考查主谓一致。分数与百分数做主语时，视其所指代词的或限定的名词形式来确定谓语形式。“五分之二的学生”是可数名词的复数形式，因此动词也用复数形式。
第5题
[image: image561.jpg]



5.   A number of foreign friends ( ) to our school for a visit every summer. 

[image: image562.wmf] 

 

   A. is 

   B. were 

   C. come [image: image563.jpg]


 

   D. came 
答案为C。本题考查主谓一致。“a number of +复数名词”做主语时视为复数，“the number of +复数名词”则视为单数,故排除A。 every summer提示该题目用一般现在时，B、D都是过去时的表达,故排除。
第6题
[image: image564.jpg]



6.   A lot of money as well as many tents ( ) to the homeless people. 

[image: image565.wmf] 

 

   A. is offered [image: image566.jpg]


 

   B. are offered 

   C. have offered 

   D. has offered 
答案为Ａ。本题考查主谓一致。此句真正的主语是a lot of money，而不是many tents，即as well as后的成分不被算做是主语，所以谓语用单数形式，因此Ｂ不对；money 和offer 又是被动的关系，所以要用被动语态，故Ｃ、Ｄ不对。
第7题
[image: image567.jpg]



7.   Half of the students ( ) made the same mistake. 

[image: image568.wmf] 

 

   A. has 

   B. have [image: image569.jpg]


 

   C. is 

   D. are 
答案为B。本题考查主谓一致。 half of , all of , a part of , most of , a lot of , the rest of , 分数词+of 等短语，通常由of 后面的名词、代词决定谓语动词的单复数形式。
第8题
[image: image570.jpg]



8.   There is not much news in today’s paper, ( )? 

[image: image571.wmf] 

 

   A. isn’t it 

   B. are there 

   C. is there [image: image572.jpg]


 

   D. aren’t there 
答案为C。本题考查反意问句。这里陈述句中的谓语用否定式，疑问部分用肯定式。当陈述句的谓语用系动词、助动词、情态动词时，疑问部分要重复这些动词。
第9题
[image: image573.jpg]



9.   Let me do it, ( )? 

[image: image574.wmf] 

 

   A. shall I 

   B. shall we 

   C. will you [image: image575.jpg]


 

   D. will I 
答案为C。本题考查反意问句。 祈使句的反义问句的疑问部分要用shall, will. let me 或let us表示说话人提出请求，问句可用will you，let’s表示第一人称的祈使句，即包含了说话的人，所以要用shall。
第10题
[image: image576.jpg]



10.   Lucy and Mike went to the zoo yesterday,( )? 

[image: image577.wmf] 

 

   A. don’t they 

   B. didn’t they [image: image578.jpg]


 

   C. aren’t they 

   D. can’t they 
答案为B。这是一道考查反意问句后半部分形式的题。问句的谓语动词要根据前面的陈述句中的动词而定，如前面的是系动词be，后边就用be, 并且时态要一致。此句前面动词是过去式went，所以后面要用助动词did才对，故排除A、C、D
词汇与结构（共10题，每题3分）

第1题
[image: image579.jpg]



1.   Mary’s sister had supper at school yesterday, ( )? 

[image: image580.wmf] 

 

   A. had she 

   B. hadn’t she 

   C. did she 

   D. didn’t she [image: image581.jpg]



答案为D。反意问句中，后半部分谓语动词要用什么，要看前面陈述部分，此题had不是“有”，而是“吃（饭）”的意思，所以它是实义动词，后半部分需要助动词，加之前半句是肯定形式的过去时，因此后半句是助动词过去时的否定形式。
第2题
[image: image582.jpg]



2.   Do you know ( ) they can finish it on time? 

[image: image583.wmf] 

 

   A. that 

   B. if [image: image584.jpg]


 

   C. that if 

   D. if that 
答案为B。本题考查宾语从句。that引导宾语从句时无意思，可省略。If 引导宾语从句时有词义“是否”，不能省。当一个句子只有两套主谓时，只允许出现一个连词，故排除C、D。 因为宾语从句是一个置疑“是否他们能按时完成任务”，所以选B。
第3题
[image: image585.jpg]



3.   Do you know ( ) Tibet? 

[image: image586.wmf] 

 

   A. do the Smiths leave 

   B. does the Smiths leave 

   C. the Smiths leave [image: image587.jpg]


 

   D. the Smiths leaves 
答案为C。 本题考查宾语从句的语序。A、B 用倒装不对；指史密斯一家人，是复数概念，D项谓语动词用了第三人称形式，是错误的。
第4题
[image: image588.jpg]



4.   From June this year on, it is getting ( ). 

[image: image589.wmf] 

 

   A. more hot and more hot 

   B. hotter and hotter [image: image590.jpg]


 

   C. more and more hot 

   D. more and more hotter 
答案为B。这是考查形容词比较级“越来越……”的表达，单音节和少数双音节的形容词应该是用and连接这一词的比较级，即-er形式；多音节词用 “more and more+形容词原级”构成。
第5题
[image: image591.jpg]



5.   In my opinion, this math question is ( ) more difficult than that one. 

[image: image592.wmf] 

 

   A. quite 

   B. very 

   C. a little [image: image593.jpg]


 

   D. rather 
答案为C。本题考查形容词的比较级。修饰比较级的词可以是much, a little, far 等，但very , quite , rather 不能修饰比较级。
第6题
[image: image594.jpg]



6.   ( ) fine weather it is ! 

[image: image595.wmf] 

 

   A. How a 

   B. What a 

   C. What [image: image596.jpg]


 

   D. How 
答案为C。本题感叹句的中心词是“天气”，为名词所以用what ，故排除A、D；又因为weather 是不可数名词，不能用不定冠词修饰，故B不对；所以正确答案为C。
第7题
[image: image597.jpg]



7.   “ Gone are the days ( ) we were young,” cried the wife. 

[image: image598.wmf] 

 

   A. where 

   B. what 

   C. which 

   D. when [image: image599.jpg]



答案为D。本题考查定语从句。因为后面的定语从句we were young　是个完整的句子，不需要关系代词代替先行词在从句中充当主语或宾语的成分，所以排除关系代词which；what 不是定语从句的引导词，也排除；where是表地点的关系副词，不符合题目要求。
第8题
[image: image600.jpg]



8.   The place ( ) children can sing and dance is the one ( ) they like best. 

[image: image601.wmf] 

 

   A. that; where 

   B. which; that 

   C. where; which [image: image602.jpg]


 

   D. where; where 
答案为C。本题考查定语从句。第一个空后的定语从句是个完整的句子，所以不要用关系代词来代替先行词到从句中做成分，故Ａ、Ｂ被排除；第二个空的定语从句缺了一个宾语，所以要用关系代词代替先行词，所以D中的where这一关系副词不对，也排除。
第9题
[image: image603.jpg]



9.   ( ) bicycles are under the big tree over there. 

[image: image604.wmf] 

 

   A. Tom and Johnny’s 

   B. Tom’s and Johnny’s [image: image605.jpg]


 

   C. Tom’s and Johnny 

   D. Tom and Johnn
答案为B。本题考查名词所有格。A项表示Tom和Johnny 拥有同一辆自行车，但题目中是bicycles; D项不是所有格，排除；C是错误的表达方式。
第10题
[image: image606.jpg]



10.   The little girl didn’t find herself ( ) in the wrong direction of her home. 

[image: image607.wmf] 

 

   A. walking [image: image608.jpg]


 

   B. walked 

   C. to walk 

   D. walk 
答案为A。本题考查宾语补足语。find 表示“不经意地发现”时，其宾语补足语常用现在分词，而不是不定式，所以排除C；B、D项是做谓语动词的，与已有谓语动词didn’t find 冲突，语法结构不对，所以也排除。

完形填空（共10题，每题1分）

文章

Mark Twain （马克?吐温）, a famous__1__ writer, liked to play jokes on others. But once on him a joke was played. One day Mark Twain__ 2__ to give a talk in a small town. At lunch he met a young man, one of his friends. The young man said that he had an uncle with him. He told Mark Twain that his uncle never laughed__ 3__ smiled and that nobody and__ 4__ was able to make his uncle smile or laugh. “You__ 5__ your uncle to my talk tonight,” said Mark Twain, “I’m sure I can make him laugh.” That evening the young man and his uncle sat__ 6__ . Mark Twain began to speak. He told several funny stories. This made everyone in the hall laugh.__ 7__ the old man never ever smiled. Mark Twain told more funny stories, but the old man still kept quiet. Finally Mark Twain stopped. He was quite__ 8__ . Several days later, Mark Twain told another friend__ 9__ his about what had happened that night. “Oh,” said his friend, “I know about that old man. He__10__ deaf for years.” (190) 

第1题
[image: image609.jpg]



   A. America 

   B. American [image: image610.jpg]


 

   C. Americanism 

   D. Americana 
答案 B。考查词类。根据本句中随后的名词writer可知，此处应该用形容词作定语，故选B American。
第2题
[image: image611.jpg]



   A. invited 

   B. were invited 

   C. was invited [image: image612.jpg]


 

   D. had been invited 
答案 C。本题考查动词的时态和语态。根据上下文可判定此处要用被动语态、第三人称，结合下文时态可知此处应该用动词被动语态的过去时，故选C was invited。
第3题
[image: image613.jpg]



   A. and 

   B. so 

   C. but 

   D. or 
答案 D。本题考查并列连词。根据副词never和下文对应的两个动词之间的关系分析，laughed和smiled 两个动词之间是并列关系，没有“递进、因果、转折”意思，而是表示 “选择”，故选D or。
第4题
[image: image614.jpg]



   A. anything 

   B. nothing [image: image615.jpg]


 

   C. something 

   D. everything 
答案 B。本题考查不定代词的用法。根据并列连词and 前面的nobody和本句的含义应该选择表示否定意义的不定代词，故选B nothing。
第5题
[image: image616.jpg]



   A. take 

   B. fetch 

   C. bring [image: image617.jpg]


 

   D. carry 
答案 C。本题考查词汇辨析。take 指“把东西带走或拿走”，fetch 指“到别处去把某人或某物带来或拿来”，bring 指“从别处把东西或人带来”，carry 指“随身携带、搬运”。本句是指把他叔叔带来，故选C bring。
第6题
[image: image618.jpg]



   A. in a front 

   B. in front [image: image619.jpg]


 

   C. in the front of 

   D. in front of 
答案 B。本题考查固定短语辨析。in a front为错误搭配；in the front of后面跟名词，指“在……（内）的前部”；in front of后面跟名词，指“在……（外）的前面”；in front指“在前部 / 前面”。本句意思是“那晚那个年轻人和他叔叔坐在前面”，故选B in front。
第7题
[image: image620.jpg]



   A. Since 

   B. But [image: image621.jpg]


 

   C. While 

   D. So 
答案 B。本题考查逻辑衔接。根据上下文来看，此处表示转折“但是那位老人连一丝笑容都未曾有过”，故选B But。
第8题
[image: image622.jpg]



   A. disappoint 

   B. disappointing 

   C. disappointment 

   D. disappointed 
答案 D。本题考查分词的用法。在系动词后用现在分词作表语表示主语的性质，用过去分词作表语表示感觉或状态。故选D disappointed。
第9题
[image: image623.jpg]



   A. of [image: image624.jpg]


 

   B. from 

   C. in 

   D. among 
答案 A。本题考查介词的用法。句中his是名词性物主代词，相当于“his friend”，此处意思是“他的另一位朋友”。故选A of。
第10题
[image: image625.jpg]



   A. be 

   B. had been 

   C. has been [image: image626.jpg]


 

   D. was 
答案 C。本题考查动词的时态。句子中for years 是表示一段时间的状语，提示要用完成时态。故选C has been.。

完形填空（共10题，每题1分）

文章
Books are an important source__ 1__ we can get education. You may read every day and may__ 2__ a lot of books. But have you ever asked yourself, “Why am I reading?” It is a good thing to often ask yourself__ 3__ question. For reading,__ 4__ doing anything else, it is important to have a clear purpose.__ 5__ you have learned in reading, the better the result. The second question__ 6__ you should often ask yourself is, “Why am I reading this book?” or “Why am I reading it at the present time__ 7__ at any other?” You can’t say you are reading a book just because it happens to be at hand. You should not only be serious in your reading,__ 8__ choose to read good books or those you need. It is always necessary__ 9__ on a few subjects that you have been studying or that interest you. If several subjects seem to be equally (同等的) important and__10__ , you should take them in order. “One thing at a time” is a good rule for all activities. (181)

第1题
[image: image627.jpg]



   A. that 

   B. from that 

   C. which 

   D. from which 
答案 D。本题考查“介词+关系代词”引导的定语从句。这类定语从句的关系代词主要有which（先行词为物）、whom（先行词为人）和whose（表示“……的”）。本句中关系代词which指代source，需要加介词from，意思是“从中得到教育”。故选D from which。

第2题
[image: image628.jpg]



   A. read 

   B. readed 

   C. will read 

   D. have read 
答案 D。本题考查动词的时态。在情态动词后要跟动词的原形，一般时可以表示现在的可能性，过去的可能性要用完成时。故选D have read。

第3题
[image: image629.jpg]



   A. such a [image: image630.jpg]


 

   B. a such 

   C. so a 

   D. a so 
答案 A。本题考查形容词such的用法。such 是形容词，修饰名词或名词词组，so 是副词，只能修饰形容词或副词。such修饰单数名词时，放于不定冠词a(an)之前。故选A such a。
第4题
[image: image631.jpg]



   A. like [image: image632.jpg]


 

   B. for 

   C. as 

   D. from 
答案 A。本题考查词汇辨析。根据句意，此处为“像……”，as和like有由此含义，但as作连接词，引导比较状语从句和方式状语从句，而且这两种从句通常为省略句；like作介词。故选A like。
第5题
[image: image633.jpg]



   A. More 

   B. Much 

   C. The more [image: image634.jpg]


 

   D. The much 
答案 C。本题考查句型“the +比较级……，the +比较级……”。此句型前面部分是从句，后面部分是主句，意思是“越……，越……”。故选C The more。
第6题
[image: image635.jpg]



   A. how 

   B. / [image: image636.jpg]


 

   C. when 

   D. who 
答案 B。本题考查定语从句。指物、先行词又被序数词修饰时，关系代词只能用that，但关系代词在定语从句中作宾语时常省去。故选B /。

第7题
[image: image637.jpg]



   A. and 

   B. rather than [image: image638.jpg]


 

   C. had better 

   D. would rather 
答案 B。本题考查固定短语辨析。had better “最好……”和would rather“宁可、宁愿”后均应跟动词原形，rather than“而不是……”。本句意思是“我为什么现在读书而不是其他时候读呢？”。故选B rather than。

第8题
[image: image639.jpg]



   A. but [image: image640.jpg]


 

   B. and 

   C. so 

   D. too 
答案 A。本题考查固定搭配“not only…but (also)…”。根据上文含 not only，应选择but 承接下文。故选A but。
第9题
[image: image641.jpg]



   A. concentrate 

   B. concentrating 

   C. to concentrate [image: image642.jpg]


 

   D. concentrated 
答案 C。本题考查句型 “it is necessary to do sth. ”。根据句型表达要求，此处应选择动词不定式形式。故选C to concentrate。
第10题
[image: image643.jpg]



   A. interests 

   B. interest 

   C. interesting [image: image644.jpg]


 

   D. interested 
答案 C。本题考查词类。interest名词“兴趣”，动词“使发生兴趣、引起...的注意”，interesting形容词“有趣的”，interested形容词“感兴趣的”。此处指“重要而有趣的科目”。故选C interesting。

完形填空（共10题，每题1分）

文章
Mr. and Mrs. Green don’t often__ 1__ in the evening. But the day before yesterday Mrs. Green said to her husband. “There is a basketball match__ 2__ the stadium tonight. Shall we go and watch it?” Mr. Green was very__ 3__ with this idea, so they went to the stadium. It was an__ 4__ match, and they enjoyed it very much. They came out of the stadium at ten__ 5__ eleven after the match was over. Then they got into their car and began to drive home. Suddenly Mrs. Green__ 6__ , “Look! A woman is running very fast along the road and a man is__ 7__ her. Have you seen them?” “Yes, I have,” Mr. Green said. He drove the car__ 8__ near the woman and asked, “Can we help you?” “No, thank you,” the woman said, but did not stop__ 9__ . “My husband and I always run home after the match, and the last one __10__ wash dishes at home.” （163） 

第1题
[image: image645.jpg]



   A. watch TV 

   B. stay in 

   C. go out [image: image646.jpg]


 

   D. get up 
答案 C。本题考查语义衔接及短语辨析。根据下文，本句意思应该是“格林夫妇晚上不常外出”, watch TV“看电视”没有提到；stay in“呆在家里”意思相反； get up“起床”不合逻辑。故选C go out。
第2题
[image: image647.jpg]



   A. from 

   B. to 

   C. at [image: image648.jpg]


 

   D. on 
答案 C。本题考查介词的用法。at , on , to都可以用于表示地点，at表示的位置是某一点，从宏观着眼；on表示的位置是某一条线或一个平面；to表示要去某地。故选C at。
第3题
[image: image649.jpg]



   A. angry 

   B. pleased [image: image650.jpg]


 

   C. friendly 

   D. afraid 
答案 B。本题考查短语辨析。be angry with““对……生气”；be pleased with“对……很高兴/满意”；be friendly with“对……友好”；不存在短语be afraid with。故选B be pleased with。
第4题
[image: image651.jpg]



   A. exciting [image: image652.jpg]


 

   B. excited 

   C. excite 

   D. excitement 
答案 A。本题考查词类。exciting形容词“令人兴奋的”，excited形容词“激动的、感到兴奋的”，excite动词“刺激、使兴奋”，excitement名词“激动、兴奋”。此处指“一场令人兴奋的比赛”。故选A exciting。
第5题
[image: image653.jpg]



   A. at 

   B. to [image: image654.jpg]


 

   C. in 

   D. on 
答案 B。本题考查英语时间的表示法。英语表示“几点差几分”时用“to”，而美式英语用 “before”或“of”。此处指“11点差10分”，故选B to。
第6题
[image: image655.jpg]



   A. cried [image: image656.jpg]


 

   B. smiled 

   C. laughed 

   D. sang 
6．答案 A。本题考查动词辨析及语义衔接。cried“叫喊到”，smiled“微笑“，laughed“大笑”，sang“唱歌”。根据上下文，此处指“格林太太突然叫喊起来……”，故选A cried。
第7题
[image: image657.jpg]



   A. running after [image: image658.jpg]


 

   B. running before 

   C. walking behind 

   D. going with 
答案 A。本题考查语义衔接。根据随后的叙述及该妇女的回答，可知是一个男人在其后追赶她。故选A running after。
第8题
[image: image659.jpg]



   A. slow down 

   B. slow 

   C. slower 

   D. slowly 
答案 D。本题考查词类。根据空缺位置应选择副词修饰动词drove，表示方式。故选D slowly。
第9题
[image: image660.jpg]



   A. run 

   B. ran 

   C. to run 

   D. running 
答案 D。本题考查非谓语动词。在动词stop后既可以跟不定式，又可以跟动名词，但意义上有区别。stop to do“停下来去做某事”；stop doing“停止做某事”。故选D running。
第10题
[image: image661.jpg]



   A. need 

   B. must 

   C. has to [image: image662.jpg]


 

   D. have to 
答案 C。本题考查情态动词的用法。must表主观认为“必须”，need“需要”，have to表示客观“必须、不得不”。此处根据句意，还要注意用单数。故选C has to。

完形填空（共10题，每题1分）

文章
In China,__1__ middle school students are getting shorter sleeping time than before. Most students sleep less than nine hours every night,__ 2__ they have much homework to do. Some homework__ 3__ by their teachers, and some by their parents. Also, some students don’t know__ 4__ time. They are not__ 5__ to avoid some mistakes while they do their homework, so it takes them a lot of time. Some students spend too much time__ 6__ TV or playing computer games. They stay up（熬夜）very late. Some students have to get up early every morning on weekdays to get to school on time by bus or by bike.__ 7__ can be a long way from home to school. Schools and parents should cut down some of the homework__ 8__ our children can enjoy more than nine hours of sleep for their health. For children, they should make best use__ 9__ their time. When they have enough time for sleeping, they will find it much better for__10__ health. （167） 

第1题
[image: image663.jpg]



   A. more and more [image: image664.jpg]


 

   B. less and less 

   C. fewer and fewer 

   D. most and most 
答案 A。本题考查形容词比较级的叠用。英语中在名词前的形容词比较级叠用结构，相当于汉语中的“越来越……”。more and more表示“越来越多的”；less and less 和fewer and fewer均表示“越来越少的”，只是前者多用于不可数名词前，后者用于可数名词前。根据下文可知本句应指“在中国，越来越多的学生睡眠比以前更少了”。故选A more and more。
第2题
[image: image665.jpg]



   A. so 

   B. because [image: image666.jpg]


 

   C. now 

   D. thus 
答案 B。本题考查逻辑衔接。本句前后两部分之间是因果关系，前果后因，意思是“因为要做很多家庭作业，大多数学生每晚睡眠不足9个小时”。故选B because。
第3题
[image: image667.jpg]



   A. give 

   B. gave 

   C. is given [image: image668.jpg]


 

   D. was given 
答案 C。本题考查动词的时态和语态。根据上下文判断本句用一般时态、被动语态。故选C is given。
第4题
[image: image669.jpg]



   A. save 

   B. to save 

   C. how save 

   D. how to save 
答案 D。本题考查“疑问词+不定式”的用法。疑问副词how +不定式构成的短语在句中当宾语，可以写成相应的从句(how they can save time)。故选D how to save。
第5题
[image: image670.jpg]



   A. enough carefully 

   B. enough careful 

   C. carefully enough 

   D. careful enough 
答案 D。本题考查句型“形容词 + enough + to do sth.”。此句型表示“足够……来做……”，根据句型表达要求，enough要放在形容词后。故选D careful enough。
第6题
[image: image671.jpg]



   A. watch 

   B. watching [image: image672.jpg]


 

   C. watched 

   D. on watch 
答案 B。本题考查句型“spend time(in) doing sth.”。此句型表示“花费时间做某事”，根据句型表达要求，可直接跟动名词。故选B watching。
第7题
[image: image673.jpg]



   A. This 

   B. That 

   C. It [image: image674.jpg]


 

   D. They 
答案 C。本题考查代词it的用法。代词it 的基本用法中可以表示距离。故选C It。
第8题
[image: image675.jpg]



   A. because 

   B. just as 

   C. if 

   D. so that 
答案 D。本题考查逻辑衔接。根据上下文来看，此处不是表示原因、方式或条件，而是表示结果。故选D so that。
第9题
[image: image676.jpg]



   A. of [image: image677.jpg]


 

   B. from 

   C. out 

   D. in 
答案 A。本题考查固定短语。短语“make use of”意思是“利用”。故选A of。
第10题
[image: image678.jpg]



   A. both their study and their [image: image679.jpg]


 

   B. neither their study nor their 

   C. not their study but their 

   D. either their study and their 
答案 A。本题考查固定搭配辨析。both…and…“两者都…”，neither … nor…“既不……也不……”，not…but…“不是……而是……”，either通常和or连用，表示“不是……就是……”。此处指“对学习和健康（两者）都好很多”。故选A both their study and their。

完形填空（共10题，每题1分）

文章
Are you the only child in the family? If__1__ , you are the most important in your family. Parents are the__ 2__ people to you in the world. But__ 3__ middle school students have a problem. They feel they’re not as close to their parents as before. Some students complain__ 4__ their parents often say a lot to them, but never listen to them. Some say their parents don’t allow them__ 5__ computer games, when other classmates are doing that.__ 6__ say when they’re making phone calls to their friends their parents like to ask if they are speaking to a boy or a girl. These make them very unhappy. Some students__ 7__ decide to leave home because they’re afraid to tell their parents when they have done__ 8__, especially when they do badly in exams. Below are some tips to help you: 1) Find a good chance to talk with your parents and to tell them your__ 9__. 2) Get help from others like good friends or teachers. 3) Show your parents you’re growing up. Then they’ll feel you’re__ 10__ a small child. (187) 

第1题
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   A. not 

   B. only 

   C. so [image: image681.jpg]


 

   D. you like 
答案 C。本题考查不同搭配的差异。if not“假如不是”；if you like “如果你喜欢”；if only“只要”；if so“假如是这样的话”。根据上文的问题，此处应做出肯定的假设。故选C so。
第2题
[image: image682.jpg]



   A. close 

   B. closer 

   C. closest [image: image683.jpg]


 

   D. most close 
答案 C。本题考查形容词的最高级。close是单音节词，最高级直接在原形去-e加-est即可。故选C closest。
第3题
[image: image684.jpg]



   A. much 

   B. few 

   C. little 

   D. a lot of 

答案 D。本题考查特殊数量词的用法。little用在不可数名词之前、few用在不可数名词之前，都具有否定意义，表示“很少或没有”；much用在不可数名词之前，表示“很多”；a lot of用在可数名词之前，表示“很多”。故选D a lot of。

第4题
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   A. that [image: image686.jpg]


 

   B. how 

   C. when 

   D. why 
答案 A。本题考查宾语从句的引导词。本句中宾语从句没有涉及方式how、时间when、原因why等特殊疑问的含义，而是具有陈述意义。在此处由that引导可以只表陈述，无具体意思，也不作任何句子成分。故选A that。
第5题
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   A. to play [image: image688.jpg]


 

   B. play 

   C. playing 

   D. played 
答案 A。本题句型allow sb. to do sth.。在动词allow后跟不定式作宾补，意为“允许某人做某事”。故选A to play。
第6题
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   A. The other 

   B. Other 

   C. Another 

   D. Others 

答案 D。本题考查词汇辨析。other可作形容词，泛指“其他的”；the other指“两个人或物中的另一个”；others是other的复数形式，泛指“另外有些”，在句中可作主语、宾语；the others是the other的复数形式，特指某一范围内 “其他所有的（人或物）”。故选D others。

第7题
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   A. never 

   B. yet 

   C. seldom 

   D. even 
答案 D。本题考查词义辨析。never“从不”、seldom“很少”都属否定副词；yet”还、仍然“；even (加强语气)“甚至”。本句在前一句基础上，学生的行为有所加剧。故选D even。
第8题
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   A. wrong something 

   B. right something 

   C. something wrong [image: image692.jpg]


 

   D. something right 
答案 C。本题考查形容词修饰不定代词时的用法。形容词修饰something，anything，nothing，everything等复合不定代词时，须放在其后；本句中are afraid to tell和最后一部分especially when they do badly in exams提示此处应为“做错事”。故选C something wrong。
第9题
[image: image693.jpg]



   A. moods 

   B. feelings [image: image694.jpg]


 

   C. tastes 

   D. senses 
答案 B。本题考查近义词辨析。mood“心情，情绪”；feeling”看法，感受”；taste“味道，品味”；sense“感官，感觉”。本句意为“找个合适的机会跟父母谈谈自己的感受”。故选B feelings。
第10题
[image: image695.jpg]



   A. not longer 

   B. no longer [image: image696.jpg]


 

   C. not more 

   D. no more 
答案 B。本题考查固定短语no longer。 no longer（相当于 not．．．any longer）意为“不再”，一般和延续性动词连用，表示时间、状态等“不再”延续；no more（相当not．．．any more）也表示“不再”，指在程度和次数上的“不再”。本句指状态，故选B no longer。

完形填空（共10题，每题1分）

文章
What__ 1__ do you prefer? If you like yellow, orange or red, you must be a leader, an active and happy person__ 2__enjoys life. If you prefer gray and blue, you are probably quiet, shy and you’d rather follow than lead. You tend to be very__ 3__.__ 4__ doubt, colors do influence our moods. A yellow room makes most people feel more cheerful and more relaxed than a dark green one.__ 5__ seems that a red dress brings warmth and cheer to the saddest winter day. On the other hand, black is depressing（压抑的）. A black bridge on the River Thames__ 6__ the scene of more suicides（自杀）than any other bridge in the area. The number of suicide attempts fell sharply__ 7__ after it was painted green. Pink or baby blue, light and bright colors make people much happier but__ 8__. We’ll know the fact__ 9__ factory workers work better. However, they will have more accidents when their machines__ 10__ orange rather than black or dark gray. （170） 

第1题
[image: image697.jpg]



   A. flower 

   B. color [image: image698.jpg]


 

   C. room 

   D. person 
答案 B。本题考查语义理解。根据随后的句子可判断此处所问为“你喜欢什么颜色？”。故选B color。
第2题
[image: image699.jpg]



   A. what 

   B. which 

   C. whose 

   D. who 
答案 D。本题考查定语从句的用法。what不能引导定语从句；关系代词who用于指人，在定语从句中作主语；whose既可指人也可指物，在定语从句中作定语，后面应跟名词；which用于指物，在定语从句中作主语或宾语。故选D who。
第3题
[image: image700.jpg]



   A. positive 

   B. negative [image: image701.jpg]


 

   C. warm-hearted 

   D. funny 
答案 B。本题考查词汇辨析。positive指“肯定的，积极的”；negative指“否定的，消极的”；wise“明智的，聪明的”；funny指“好笑的，滑稽的”。本段内容为颜色和性格的关系，本句是指“喜欢灰色和蓝色的人往往消极、抑郁”。故选B negative。
第4题
[image: image702.jpg]



   A. About 

   B. Out 

   C. Without [image: image703.jpg]


 

   D. In 
答案 C。本题考查固定搭配。doubt不和about, out搭配；without doubt “毫无疑问地”；in doubt“不能肯定的，可怀疑的”。本句意思“毫无疑问，颜色的确影响我们的情绪”。故选C Without。 
第5题
[image: image704.jpg]



   A. It [image: image705.jpg]


 

   B. What 

   C. They 

   D. This 
答案 A。本题考查句型“it seems that…”。在本句中it 充当形式主语，本身无意义，只起一种先行引导的作用，后面由that引导的名词性从句才是真正的主语。故选A It。
第6题
[image: image706.jpg]



   A. used to be [image: image707.jpg]


 

   B. used to being 

   C. was used to 

   D. was used to being 
答案 A。本题考查习惯用法“used to do sth.”。 “be used to doing sth.”表示“习惯于做某事”； “used to do sth.”表示“过去常常做某事”。 本句的意思是：过去泰晤士河上一座黑色桥梁上发生的自杀事件比该地其它任何一座桥上的都多。故选A used to be。
第7题
[image: image708.jpg]



 A. at least 

   B. at a loss 

   C. at best 

   D. at once 
答案 D。本题考查固定短语辨析。at least“至少”；at a loss“困惑,“；at best“最多”；at once“立刻”。故选D at once。
第8题
[image: image709.jpg]



   A. more quiet [image: image710.jpg]


 

   B. much quiet 

   C. more much quiet 

   D. quiet 
答案 A。本题考查语法衔接。原文中连词but前后语义转折但语法上是并列关系，其前为形容词比较级happier，其后也应该选quiet的比较级形式。故选A more quiet。
第9题
[image: image711.jpg]



   A. all 

   B. that [image: image712.jpg]


 

   C. which 

   D. as 
答案 B。本题考查同位语从句。本句中that 没有词义，不充当句子成份，引导的是一个同位语从句，用于说明fact的内容。故选B that。
第10题
[image: image713.jpg]



   A. paint 

   B. painted 

   C. are painted [image: image714.jpg]


 

   D. were painted 
答案 C。本题考查动词的时态、语态。在时间状语从句中用一般时表将来，machine和动词paint 之间是被动关系。故选C are painted。

完形填空（共10题，每题1分）

文章
Have you ever wondered about people’s names?__1__ do they come from? What do they mean? Many books__ 2__ about names. People’s first names are chosen by their parents. Sometimes the name of a grandfather or another__ 3__ of the family is used. Some parents choose the name of a well-known person. A boy could be named George Smith; a girl could be named Amelia Jones. The earliest__ 4__ names were taken from place names. A family with the name Brook or Brooks probably lived near a brook（小溪）. The Greenwood family lived in or near a forest. Sometimes people were known__ 5__ the color of their hair or their size, or for their special abilities. When two men were named Peter in the same village, the Peter with the brown hair__ 6__ became Peter Brown, and the Peter who was very tall could call__ 7__ Peter Tallman. John Fish was probably an excellent__ 8__ and John Lightfoot was probably a fast runner or a good dancer. I__ 9__ such kind of books if I hadn’t tried __10__ out the meaning of my name. (184) 

第1题
[image: image715.jpg]



   A. Where [image: image716.jpg]


 

   B. Which 

   C. What 

   D. When 
答案 A。本题考查疑问副词。根据本句中的come from可判定要问来源、出处。故选A Where。
第2题
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   A. has written 

   B. have written 

   C. has been written 

   D. have been written 
答案 D。本题考查动词的数、语态。本句中的主语为复数形式many books，且和动词write 之间是被动的关系。故选D have been written。
第3题
[image: image718.jpg]



   A. member [image: image719.jpg]


 

   B. plant 

   C. tool 

   D. animal 
答案 A。本题考查语义衔接。根据本句上文grandfather判定此处为“家庭中的另一成员”。故选A member。
第4题
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   A. last [image: image721.jpg]


 

   B. first 

   C. boy 

   D. girl 
答案 A。本题考查语义衔接。first name / given name名字；last name / family name姓氏。根据本段内容可知谈论的是“家庭姓氏的来源”。故选A last。
第5题
[image: image722.jpg]



   A. as 

   B. for [image: image723.jpg]


 

   C. about 

   D. to 
答案 B。本题考查固定短语。be known for “因……而众所周知”，be known as“被认为是”，be known to“为……所知”。本句意为：有时人们因为头发颜色、身材或特别的能力而为人所知。故选B for。
第6题
[image: image724.jpg]



   A. probable 

   B. likely 

   C. probably [image: image725.jpg]


 

   D. possible 
答案 C。本题考查副词的用法。probable，likely，possible都可以表示可能，但都是形容词；probably副词“很可能”。此处修饰动词became，应选用副词。故选C probably。
第7题
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   A. self 

   B. himself [image: image727.jpg]


 

   C. herself 

   D. itself 
答案 B。本题考查反身代词的用法。本句中Peter为男性名字。故选B himself。
第8题
[image: image728.jpg]



   A. singer 

   B. dancer 

   C. swimmer [image: image729.jpg]


 

   D. runner 
答案 C。本题考查语义理解。根据上下文可知本句也是说姓氏的来源， John Fish中的fish（本义“鱼”）是在水中游的。故选C swimmer。
第9题
[image: image730.jpg]



   A. haven’t read 

   B. have read 

   C. wouldn’t have read [image: image731.jpg]


 

   D. would have read 
答案 C。本题考查虚拟语气的用法。由虚拟条件从句中的hadn’t tried可知是对过去事实相反地假设，主句表示由此得出的相反的结果，要用would+完成时否定式。故选C wouldn’t have read。
第10题
[image: image732.jpg]



   A. find 

   B. finding 

   C. found 

   D. to find 
答案 D。本题考查非谓语动词的用法。动词try后可跟不定式 ，表示“努力、企图去做某事”； try可跟动名词 ，表示“试一试某种方法 / 试着做某事”。本句意思是：我若是不曾努力去找出我名字含义的话，就不可能读过这一类的书籍了。故选D to find。

完形填空（共10题，每题1分）

文章
Most Americans eat breakfast and lunch__1__. And their favorite fast food in the United States is the hamburger. The favorite place__ 2__ a hamburger is a fast food restaurant. In these restaurants, people stand at the counter, order their food, wait__ 3__ minutes, and carry the food to a table themselves. They can eat it in the restaurant or take the food__ 4__ and eat it at home, at work or in a park. Hamburgers are not the only kind of food__ 5__ fast food restaurants serve. Some serve fish, chicken or Mexican food. They also serve French fries, soft drink and coffee. Fast-food restaurants are very__ 6__ because the service is fast and the food is cheap,__ 7__ is more important than the quality of the food for many people. Fast service__ 8__ low cost are important in the United States. One reason is that about__ 9__ of married women with children work outside the home. They are too busy and too tired__10__ meals at home. (171) 
第1题
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   A. quick 

   B. slow 

   C. quickly [image: image734.jpg]


 

   D. slowly 
答案 C。本题考查副词、语义理解。本句中修饰动词eat应该选用副词。根据本文主题“快餐”可知：大多数美国人早餐和中餐吃很快。故选C quickly。
第2题
[image: image735.jpg]



   A. buy 

   B. buying 

   C. to buy [image: image736.jpg]


 

   D. bought 
答案 C。本题考查动词不定式的用法。不定式作定语时，常放在被修饰的词语之后，本句中动词不定式短语to buy a hamburger修饰place。故选C to buy。

第3题
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   A. few 

   B. a few [image: image738.jpg]


 

   C. little 

   D. a little 
答案 B。本题考查特殊数量词的用法。a little／little用在不可数名词之前，前者为肯定“有一点”，后者为否定“没有多少”；a few／few用在复数名词之前，前者为肯定“有几个”，后者为否定“没有几个”。本句在复数名词minutes前。故选B a few。
第4题
[image: image739.jpg]



   A. back 

   B. out [image: image740.jpg]


 

   C. over 

   D. under 
答案 B。本题考查语义理解。 本句中的连接词or“或者”用以表示选择，其前面为eat it in the restaurant，则其后应该表示“带出餐馆”。故选B out。
第5题
[image: image741.jpg]



   A. when 

   B. where 

   C. why 

   D. that 
答案 D。本题考查定语从句。关系副词when表示时间、where表示地点、why表示原因；本句中定语从句的引导词指代名词food，只能选择关系代词，在从句中作宾语。故选D that。
第6题
[image: image742.jpg]



   A. expensive 

   B. exciting 

   C. powerful 

   D. popular 
答案 D。本题考查词汇辨析。expensive“昂贵的”，exciting“令人兴奋的”，powerful“强有力的”，popular“受欢迎的”。本句的意思：由于服务快、价格低，快餐店深受大众欢迎。故选D popular。
第7题
[image: image743.jpg]



   A. which [image: image744.jpg]


 

   B. that 

   C. who 

   D. whom 
答案 A。本题考查非限制性定语从句。that不能引导非限制性定语从句；who，whom等引导非限制性定语从句时，指代人，在定语从句中作主语、宾语；which引导非限制性定语从句常置主句之后，可以指代主句的全部内容，有“这一点”的意思。故选A which。
第8题
[image: image745.jpg]



   A. and [image: image746.jpg]


 

   B. or 

   C. together with 

   D. but 
答案 A。本题考查主谓一致。本句中的动词为are，主语Fast service和low cost之间应该是并列的关系。故选A and。
第9题
[image: image747.jpg]



   A. fifty of percent 

   B. percent of fifty 

   C. fifty percent [image: image748.jpg]


 

   D. percent fifty 
答案 C。本题考查百分比的表达。在英语中百分数用基数＋percent表示。故选C fifty percent。
第10题
[image: image749.jpg]



   A. not cook 

   B. not to cook 

   C. to cook [image: image750.jpg]


 

   D. to not cook 
答案 C。本题考查句型too + adj. + to do…（太……而不能……）。本句意思是：他们太忙而且也太累，就不在家做饭。故选C to cook。

完形填空（共10题，每题1分）

文章
Paul Pan is a manager of a company in southern China.__1__ July the__ 2__ , Paul and his wife were driving along a local highway__ 3__ he found their car was low on gas. He drove to a nearby gas station and asked the only worker to fill the tank. Then he went for a walk__ 4__ the station. As he was returning to the car, he noticed the worker and his wife were talking lively. They stopped__ 5__ as he paid the worker. But as he was getting back into the car, he saw the worker wave to his wife and heard him say, “__ 6__ was great talking to you.” Later Paul asked his wife if she was__ 7__ with the man. She told him that they had gone to high school together and had been in love for about a year. “Dear, were you lucky__ 8__ me?” said Paul to his wife, “If you had married him, you’d be the wife of a gas station worker__ 9__ the wife of a manager.” “My dear,” replied his wife, “if I had married him, he__ 10__ the manager and you’d be the gas station worker.” (197) 
第1题
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   A. On [image: image752.jpg]


 

   B. At 

   C. In 

   D. By
答案 A。本题考查介词的用法。英语表示时间的介词：on表示“在某天或星期几”；at常用来表示“在某时间点”；in表示“在某一段时间”；by表示“到……时(为止)”。故选A On。
第2题
[image: image753.jpg]



   A. twenties 

   B. twenty 

   C. twentith 

   D. twentieth 
答案 D。本题考查序数词。英语日期要用序数词“第几个”表示，由基数词转变而来。twenty 是基数词，变为序数词时末尾 y 改为i 和 e ，词尾加上 th。故选D twentieth。
第3题
[image: image754.jpg]



   A. since 

   B. while 

   C. as 

   D. when 
答案 D。本题考查词义辨析。since可表示“自从……以来”；while引导的从句的谓语动作必须是延续性的，并强调主句和从句的动作同时发生；as表示“当……时；一面……一面……”；when引导的从句的谓语动词可以是延续性的动词，也可以是瞬时动词，还可以表示“就在那时”。故选D when。
第4题
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   A. for 

   B. around [image: image756.jpg]


 

   C. of 

   D. with 
答案 B。本题考查介词。本句意思：然后他围着加油站散散步。故选B around。
第5题
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   A. of talking 

   B. talk 

   C. to talk 

   D. talking 
答案 D。本题考查非谓语动词。在动词stop后既可以跟不定式，又可以跟动名词，但意义上有区别。“stop to do”表示“停下来去做某事”；“stop doing”表示“停止做某事”。故选D talking。
第6题
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   A. He 

   B. That 

   C. Which 

   D. It 
答案 D。本题考查代词it的用法。由于代词it 可以作形式主语，用于“it + be + 表语 + 动名词”句型中。故选D It。
第7题
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   A. family 

   B. familiar [image: image760.jpg]


 

   C. please 

   D. interested 
答案 B。本题考查固定短语。只有一个选项可构成短语：be familiar with“熟悉……” 。故选B familiar。
第8题
[image: image761.jpg]



   A. to marry 

   B. have married 

   C. marry 

   D. to have married 
答案 D。本题考查动词不定式的用法。不定式一般式表示的动作与谓语动词的动作同时或在谓语动词动作之后发生，不定式完成式表示的动作在谓语动词的动作之前发生。本句的意思是“你当初嫁给我很幸运吧？”，不定式动作先发生。故选D to have married。
第9题
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   A. take the place of 

   B. take place 

   C. instead of [image: image763.jpg]


 

   D. instead 
答案 C。本题考查固定短语。take the place of “代替、取代”、take place “发生”，都是动词短语；instead of“代替、而不是”是短语介词；instead“代替、顶替”是副词，放在句首或句尾。此处应选择短语介词。故选C instead of。
第10题
[image: image764.jpg]



   A. was 

   B. will be 

   C. have been 

   D. would be [image: image765.jpg]



答案 D。本题考查虚拟语气混合时态的用法。本句的意思是：如果我当初嫁给了他，他现在就是经理而你就会是加油站的工人了。假设的条件与过去事实相反，从而得出和现在事实不同的结果；前句中也有类似的句型可以参照。故选D would be。
完形填空（共10题，每题1分）

文章

A boss said in a newspaper that he needed a boy__ 1__ in his office.__ 2__ nearly fifty who came for the job, the boss chose one. One of his friends asked, “I should like to know the reason__ 3__ you liked that boy. You know he brought__ 4__ letter about his skills and attitudes.” “You are wrong,” said the boss, “He is the right boy. He cleaned his feet at the door and closed the door after him,__ 5__ showed that he was careful. He gave his seat immediately to the old man, showing that he was kind. He__ 6__ his cap when he came in and answered my questions quickly, which showed that he was polite and__ 7__.” “All the others walked over the book I__ 8__ on the floor on purpose. He picked it up and placed it on the table; and he waited quietly for his turn instead of__ 9__. When I talked to him, I noticed his clean hair and fingers. Don’t you think these are excellent skills and__10__ ?” (178) 
第1题
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   A. to work [image: image767.jpg]


 

   B. work 

   C. to have worked 

   D. working 
答案 A。本题考查动词不定式的用法。need sb. to do … 中不定式作宾补，一般式表示的动作在谓语动词动作之后发生。故选D to work。
第2题
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   A. Out of [image: image769.jpg]


 

   B. Outside from 

   C. From inside 

   D. Away from 
答案 A。本题考查动介词搭配。本句状语在句首，表示强调，句子意思：在将近50位应聘者中，老板挑选了一个。由主句动词chose可确定搭配out of，表示“从……中选择”。故选A Out of。
第3题
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   A. because 

   B. whether 

   C. how 

   D. why [image: image771.jpg]



答案 D。本题考查定语从句。关系副词why引导限定性定语从句修饰先行词reason， 在定语从句中充当原因状语。故选D why。
第4题
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   A. none 

   B. not a 

   C. no one 

   D. no [image: image773.jpg]



答案 D。本题考查形容词no的用法。no用作形容词，置于名词前，意为“没有、决不”。none可用作副词“一点也不”、代词“没有任何人/东西”；no one用作代词“没有人”。选空设置在名词letter前。故选D no。
第5题
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   A. that 

   B. who 

   C. which [image: image775.jpg]


 

   D. this 
答案 C。本题考查非限制性定语从句。that不能引导非限制性定语从句；who引导非限制性定语从句时，指代人，在定语从句中作主语；which引导非限制性定语从句常置主句末，可以指代主句的全部内容，有“这一点”的意思。故选C which。
第6题
[image: image776.jpg]



   A. take off 

   B. took off [image: image777.jpg]


 

   C. take on 

   D. took on 
答案 B。本题考查固定短语。短语take off“起飞、脱掉”，take on“穿上、承担”。本句指“他进来时脱了帽”；整个句子的时态为过去时。故选B took off。
第7题
[image: image778.jpg]



   A. foolish 

   B. bright [image: image779.jpg]


 

   C. handsome 

   D. rude 
答案 B。本题考查词汇辨析。形容词foolish“愚蠢的”，bright“明亮的、聪明的”，handsome“英俊的、慷慨的”，rude“粗鲁无礼的”。本句意思：这说明他既有礼貌又聪明。故选B bright。
第8题
[image: image780.jpg]



   A. put 

   B. has put 

   C. had put [image: image781.jpg]


 

   D. have put 
答案 C。本题考查动词的时态。主句为过去时，而从句动作又发生在主句动作之前，要用过去完成时态。故选C had put。
第9题

   A. to push 

   B. pushed 

   C. pushing [image: image782.jpg]


 

   D. push 
答案 C。本题考查动名词。短语介词instead of不能直接跟动词，而要跟动名词。故选C pushing。
第10题
[image: image783.jpg]



   A. attractions 

   B. attempts 

   C. attacks 

   D. attitudes [image: image784.jpg]



答案 D。本题考查词汇辨析。attractions“吸引、吸引力”，attempts“企图、尝试”，attacks“攻击、抨击”，attitudes“态度”。本篇第二段出现过skills and attitudes，可以参照做出选择。故选D attitudes。

阅读理解（共5题，每题3分）

文章 1 
文章 1

The angry woman stood on the station platform (月台). “The railway should pay me ￡14,” she said to Tony Jenks, the man in the booking office. “My ticket was for June 26th, and there was no ship from Jersey that night. My daughter and I had to stay in a hotel. It cost me ￡14.” Tony was worried. He remembered selling the woman a return ticket. “Come into the office, madam,” he said politely. “I’ll just check the Jersey timetable for June 26th.” The woman and her little girl followed him inside. She was quite right, as Tony soon discovered. There was no ship sailing on June 26th. How had he made such a careless mistake? Not knowing what to do, he smiled at the child. “You look sunburned (晒黑的),” he said to her. “Did you have a nice holiday in Jersey?” “Yes,” she answered shyly. “The beach was lovely. And I could swim too!” “That’s fine,” said Tony. “My little girl can’t swim a bit yet. Of course, she’s only three……” “I’m four,” the child said proudly. “I’ll soon be four and a half.” Tony turned to the mother. “I remember your ticket, madam,” he said. “But you didn’t get one for your daughter, did you?” “Er, well……” the woman looked at the child, “I mean — she hasn’t started school yet. She’s only four.” “A four-year-old child must have a ticket, madam. A child’s return ticket to Jersey costs — let me see —￡15.50. So if you want the railway to pay ￡14 for your hotel, you will have to pay the railway ￡15.50 first. The law is the law, but since the fault was mine……” The woman stood up, took the child’s hand and left the office.
第1题
[image: image785.jpg]



1.   A return ticket is a ticket that __________. 

[image: image786.wmf] 

 

   A. allows a passenger to travel to a place 

   B. one buys when one returns 

   C. must be returned if one wants to get his money back 

   D. allows a passenger to travel to a place and return later 
答案为D。本题是词汇理解题。文章第二段的第一句中“return ticket”的意思为“往返车票”，选项D是对该词语的正确解释。
第2题
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2.   The man in the booking office mentioned the child’s ticket in order to __________. 

[image: image788.wmf] 

 

   A. send the woman away [image: image789.jpg]


 

   B. get back ￡15.50 

   C. say sorry to the woman 

   D. make clear the importance of the law 
答案为A。本题是分析推理题。售票员误售了车票，而女乘客没有买车票，于是该售票员有了打发该乘客的借口，选项A中的“send… away”的意思为“打发、驱逐”。
第3题
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3.   According to the railway law, a child __________. 

[image: image791.wmf] 

 

   A. must have a ticket just like a grown-up 

   B. can not travel without a ticket 

   C. below the age of four can travel without a ticket [image: image792.jpg]


 

   D. can travel with grown-ups without a ticket 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。文章第九段中售票员解释说，根据该国火车乘坐规则，4岁以下的儿童无需买票。
第4题
[image: image793.jpg]



4.   At last the woman got __________ from the railway booking office. 

[image: image794.wmf] 

 

   A. ￡15.50 

   B. ￡1.50 

   C. ￡14 

   D. nothing [image: image795.jpg]



答案为D。本题是分析推理题。从文章第九段第二句得知：售票员说该乘客要想得到14英镑的房费，则须先补交15.5英镑的车票钱。又可根据售票员的话推断，由于他错售了车票，他不会追究补票钱，而乘客也拿不到房费。
第5题
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5.   According to the passage, which of the following statements is TRUE? 

[image: image797.wmf] 

 

   A. After checking the timetable Tony found there was a ship from Jersey on June 26th. 

   B. Tony said sorry to the woman and paid her ￡14. 

   C. The woman did not travel at all to Jersey with her daughter to spend her holiday. 

   D. It was clear that the woman was not honest. [image: image798.jpg]



答案为D。本题是是非判断题。选项A、B、C中都存在细节与文章不符合的地方。选项D则是对全章的推理判断，该乘客没有主动自觉买儿童票，从而推导出她不是一个诚实的人。

阅读理解（共10题，每题3分）

文章 1 

文章 2 
文章 1

Paul Tibbets is a good-natured old man with thick white hair who speaks thoughtfully. The lively 85-year-old was the pilot and commander of the bomber who dropped the first-ever atom bomb on the Japanese city of Hiroshima on August 6, 1945. He is a controversial (争议的) figure in world history but most Americans regard him as a hero. Tibbets never tires of recalling the operation that was to shape the rest of his life. More than 140,000 people were killed in the atomic explosion and tens of thousands of others died from the after-effects of radiation (辐射). “I didn’t realize at the time what effect dropping the atom bomb would have. Our aim was to do everything to beat the Japanese. They were our enemies and we were at war. We wanted to see an end to the killing so that our soldiers could come home,” said Tibbets. Although Tibbets was following orders he has been forced to confront the moral impact of the bombing. His name became known throughout the world along with that of the plane used to drop the atom bomb. From that day on he is “the man who dropped the atom bomb”. “After the war I met President Truman,” said Tibbets. “He told me I had done my duty and that if anyone criticized me for dropping the bomb I should send that person to see him because he gave me the order to do so.” The retired general has been around the world a lot since then but has never gone back to Japan.
第1题
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1.   What’s Paul Tibbets well-known for? 

[image: image800.wmf] 

 

   A. He is famous for his good appearance. 

   B. He is famous for his long life. 

   C. He is known for an excellent pilot. 

   D. He is known as the commander who dropped the first atom bomb in Japan. [image: image801.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。文章第一段第二句话介绍到：Paul Tibbets是对日本广岛投下第一枚原子弹的飞机驾驶员和指挥员，他也因此为全世界所知。
第2题
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2.   Paul Tibbets is a person __________. 

[image: image803.wmf] 

 

   A. who is regarded as a hero by all the people 

   B. who is regarded as a hero by most Americans [image: image804.jpg]


 

   C. who knows well about Japanese cities 

   D. who knows well about world history 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。从文章第一段最后一句话得知：Paul Tibbets是个在世界历史上有争议的人，但多数美国人把他当作英雄。
第3题
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3.   According to the passage, which of the following statements is TRUE? 

[image: image806.wmf] 

 

   A. Tibbets tires of recalling the operation. 

   B. This operation affected the rest of Tibbet’s life greatly. [image: image807.jpg]


 

   C. Fourteen thousand people died from the after -effects of radiation. 

   D. Only tens of thousands of people were killed by the atomic. 
答案为B。本题是是非判断题。从文章第二段第一句话得知：Paul Tibbets所执行的这次投弹行动，对他此后的人生影响巨大。
第4题
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4.   From the passage, we probably can know that __________. 

[image: image809.wmf] 

 

   A. Tibbets clearly knew the effect about dropping the atom bomb at first 

   B. Soldiers were eager to end the war as quickly as possible [image: image810.jpg]


 

   C. Tibbets’ name is well-known throughout the world with that plane 

   D. Tibbets needn’t face the moral complaint of bombing 
答案为B。本题是分析推理题。从文章第三段可知：士兵们想要早点结束战争和结束屠杀，尽早回家。

第5题
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5.   The author’s description about Paul Tibbets is __________. 

[image: image812.wmf] 

 

   A. glad 

   B. sad 

   C. objective [image: image813.jpg]


 

   D. subjective 
答案为C。本题是观点态度题。文章简单介绍了Paul Tibbets的个人情况，语气客观，不带有个人的观点和评价。

文章 2

The crossword (纵横字谜) is the most popular word game in the world, but it has quite a short history. We know that the Romans wrote word squares and some people say that the Chinese had something like crossword games eight thousand years ago, but it is generally believed that the modern crossword game did not begin until 1913. In that year, a man called Arthur Wynne wrote a crossword game which was published in American Sunday newspaper called “New York World”. People who read the newspaper liked the crossword and so it became a regular feature of the paper. Then, in 1924, two American publishers, Simon and Schuster, decided to publish a whole book of crosswords, although they were not sure whether anyone would want to buy a copy. To incredible sales, they gave away a free pencil and a free eraser with each book. The book was a huge success and very soon crosswords became the most popular game in the USA. Arthur Wynne moved to England and, on 2 November 1924, one of his crossword games was printed in “Sunday Express”. Some people say this was the first crossword published in England but other people claim that the first appeared in “Pearson’s Magazine” in February 1922. Then, on 11 January 1925, the first Prize Crossword was printed, in “Sunday Times”. Everyone in England was doing crosswords ? even Queen Mary, the Queen of England, and her Prime Minister, Stanley Baldwin. And crosswords were believed to be the most important feature of British social life at that time. The enthusiasm for crosswords continued until this day.
第1题
[image: image814.jpg]



1.   Modern crossword began __________. 

[image: image815.wmf] 

 

   A. eight thousand years ago 

   B. in 1913 [image: image816.jpg]


 

   C. in the Roman 

   D. in the China 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。文章第一段第二句话介绍到：类似的字谜游戏曾在古罗马和中国出现过，但人们普遍认为现代字谜游戏起源于1913年。
第2题
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2.   Who created the modern crossword game first? 

[image: image818.wmf] 

 

   A. The Romans. 

   B. The Chinese. 

   C. Arthur Wynne. [image: image819.jpg]


 

   D. Simon and Schuster. 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。从文章第一段第三句话得知：Arthur Wynne首先将自己编的一个字谜游戏刊登在美国的一家报纸上，这被人们普遍认为是现代字谜游戏的开端。
第3题
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3.   In order to make the book success, what did the two American publishers do? 

[image: image821.wmf] 

 

   A. They provide a free pencil and a free rubber with each book. [image: image822.jpg]


 

   B. They decided to lower the price of the book. 

   C. The crossword games designed easily by them. 

   D. They send the book to readers without charge. 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段第二句话得知：为了提高售书数量，两位美国出版商Simon和Schuster在书后附上免费的铅笔和橡皮擦，该书因此获得很高的销售量。
第4题
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4.   The first Prize Crossword was appeared in __________. 

[image: image824.wmf] 

 

   A. “New York World” in 1913 

   B. “Pearson’s Magazine” in February 1922 

   C. “Sunday Express” on 2 November 1924 

   D. “Sunday Times” on 11 January 1925 [image: image825.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段最后一句可知：有奖字谜游戏首先刊登在1925年1月25日的“Sunday Times”上。其他选项A、B、C的内容都与文章内容不一致。
第5题
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5.   We can learn from the passage that __________. 

[image: image827.wmf] 

 

   A. the crossword games were only loved by some important figures in England 

   B. the crossword games were popular at that time, but now they are not 

   C. the crossword game was the most important feature in England at that time [image: image828.jpg]


 

   D. today the crossword game is still popular in some of western countries 
答案为C。本题是分析推理题。文章中的最后一段介绍：字谜游戏已经成为那个时代英国社会生活最重要的特征。选项A、B、D的内容都与文章内容不一致。
阅读理解（共10题，每题3分）

文章 1 

文章 2 

文章 1

“Sesame Street” has been called “the longest street in the world”. That is because the television program can now be seen in so many parts of the world. That program became one of America’s exports soon after it was shown in New York in 1969. In the United States more than six million children watch the program regularly. Although some people do not agree to some parts of the program, parents praise it highly. Many teachers find that problems appear when the children who have learned from “Sesame Street” are in the same class with those who have not watched the program. Tests have shown that children have learned much from watching “Sesame Street”. The children who watch it five times a week learn more than those who watch it less. In the United States the program is shown at different hours during the week in order to increase the number of children who can watch it regularly. The programs use songs, stories, jokes and pictures to give children a basic understanding of numbers, letters and human relationships. Why has “Sesame Street” been so much more successful than other children’s shows? Many reasons have been suggested, such as the educational theories of its producers, the support from both the government and businessmen, and the full use of various kinds of television skills. Perhaps another important reason is that mothers watch “Sesame Street” together with their children. This is partly because famous film stars often appear on “Sesame Street”. But the best reason for the success of the program may be that it makes every child watching it feel able to learn. The child finds himself learning, and he wants to learn more.
第1题
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1.   “Sesame Street” has been called “the longest street in the world” because it is __________. 

[image: image830.wmf] 

 

   A. the longest street in the United States 

   B. shown in many countries [image: image831.jpg]


 

   C. the longest television program in the world 

   D. watched regularly by six million children 
答案为B。本题是分析理解题。从文章第一段第二句可知：“Sesame Street”是一部电视连续剧，许多国家都在播放这部连续剧。该节目名字中的“street”并不是后半句“the longest street in the world”中street单词“街道”的真正含义。
第2题
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2.   In the United States more than __________ children watch “Sesame Street” regularly. 

[image: image833.wmf] 

 

   A. 6,000,000 [image: image834.jpg]


 

   B. 6,500,000 

   C. 600,000 

   D. 700,000 
答案为A。本题是数字细节题。从文章第二段第一句可知：在美国有超过600万的儿童在观看“Sesame Street”节目。此题是考核对数字的正确认识能力。 
第3题
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3.   In the United States many children can watch the program regularly because __________. 

[image: image836.wmf] 

 

   A. they needn’t go to school 

   B. it is shown many hours a day 

   C. it is shown in the evening 

   D. it is shown many times during the week [image: image837.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段最后一句得知：为了使更多的孩子能定期收看“Sesame Street”节目，该节目在每周不同的时间里重复播放。
第4题
[image: image838.jpg]



4.   One of the important reasons for the success of the program is that __________. 

[image: image839.wmf] 

 

   A. not only children but also their mothers like to watch it [image: image840.jpg]


 

   B. many famous film stars enjoy watching it 

   C. it teaches educational theories 

   D. it is produced by the government 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。“Sesame Street”节目的成功除了节目教育原理的运用、政府和商业支持、电视技巧的运用等原因，还有另外一个重要原因是母亲们对该节目的欢迎程度。
第5题
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5.   According to the passage, which of the following statements is TRUE? 

[image: image842.wmf] 

 

   A. All American children watch the program regularly. 

   B. The program became the most important export of the United States in 1969. 

   C. The program is shown five times a week in the United States. 

   D. The program has been a great success, but no one can explain exactly why. [image: image843.jpg]



答案为D。本题是是非判断题。文章中谈到“Sesame Street”节目成功的许多原因，但却没有人能明确解释该节目成功的原因。其他选项A、B、C都不符合文章的意思内容。

文章 2

Miss Wang of Thailand went to Hong Kong for a holiday. Soon after she got to Hong Kong, she went shopping along Nathan Road. Suddenly a man came up to her and said, “Hello, there, I haven’t seen you for a long time.” The stranger continued talking to her for a while and then took out a small box from his pocket. “Would you like to buy some diamonds?” he asked, opening the box to show some stones. “I’m willing to sell them to you cheap — only ＄400 for this diamond. How about it?” Miss Wang didn’t want to buy the diamond because she had heard many stories of people being tricked. Also, at that moment a woman stopped and warned her, “Don’t buy from him. He’s not an honest man. He’s trying to trick you!” The man raised his voice at once, “I’m honest. These diamonds are real.” In the end they took one of the diamonds to a jeweler — one who sells diamonds and the like. The jeweler examined the stone and told Miss Wang that it was real. He said it cost around ＄900. Satisfied that the diamonds were real, Miss Wang decided to buy them from the man. She chose two of the largest stones from his box and paid him ＄400. Then she went back to the jeweler and asked, “How much will it cost to fix these on a ring?” The jeweler examined the stones and said, “Why do you want to do that? These are just glass.” “But you told me just now they were diamonds.” “The first stone was a diamond; these are not.” Miss Wang ran out of the shop hoping to catch the stranger and get her money back. However, the man was nowhere to be found.
第1题
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1.   Miss Wang met the man __________. 

[image: image845.wmf] 

 

   A. on her way to Thailand 

   B. on her way to Singapore 

   C. when walking along a street in Hong Kong [image: image846.jpg]


 

   D. when buying diamonds in a store 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。从文章第一段第一句和第二句得知：泰国的王小姐是在香港度假逛街的时遇到这位男子。
第2题
[image: image847.jpg]



2.   Miss Wang didn’t buy the diamonds at first because she __________. 

[image: image848.wmf] 

 

   A. was afraid of being tricked [image: image849.jpg]


 

   B. did not have enough money 

   C. already had too many diamonds 

   D. did not like the diamonds at all 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。从文章第一段中的“she had heard many stories of people being tricked”得知：由于害怕上当受骗，王小姐开始不敢买这人的“钻石”。
第3题
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3.   Miss Wang decided to buy stones from the man, thinking that __________. 

[image: image851.wmf] 

 

   A. one stone was real, the rest weren’t 

   B. the larger stones were real and the smaller ones were glass 

   C. all the stones were real [image: image852.jpg]


 

   D. the stones were more precious than glass 
答案为C。本题是分析推理题。从文章第三段中“Satisfied that the diamonds were real, Miss Wang decided to buy them from the man.”可知：王小姐误会了珠宝鉴定人的话，认为该男子所有的“钻石”都是真的，于是决定从该男子手中购买。
第4题
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4.   After buying two of the largest stones from the man, she went back to the jeweler to __________. 

[image: image854.wmf] 

 

   A. buy a ring 

   B. have them examined again 

   C. ask about the cost of fixing them on a ring [image: image855.jpg]


 

   D. buy some other jewels 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段最后一句话可知：王小姐在购买该男子的“钻石”后，便到珠宝店询问戒指镶钻的费用。
第5题
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5.   Miss Wang ran out of the jeweler’s store because she __________. 

[image: image857.wmf] 

 

   A. wanted to report the matter to the police 

   B. wanted to buy some more diamonds 

   C. was angry with the jeweler 

   D. wanted to catch the stranger and get her money back [image: image858.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章最后一段话可知：王小姐冲出珠宝店是想抓住卖假钻石给她的那男子，并拿回她的钱。
阅读理解（共10题，每题3分）

文章 1 

文章 2 
文章 1

Thousands of years ago, people lived only in hot places. They did not live in cold places because they could not keep warm. Then they learned how to make clothes. When an animal was killed, they cut off its skin. They wrapped the skins around their bodies. The skins kept them warm. At first men did not know how to make fire. Sometimes lightning hit a forest and started a fire. Then people took some of this fire to make a fire near their homes. A fire was very important for three reasons. It kept them warm. It also frightened wild animals ? they did not attack when they saw a fire. Then another thing was discovered: if you cook food, it tastes much better! But men still did not know how to make fire. When they had a fire, they did not let it stop burning. If it went out, they could not start it again. They had to wait for lightning for a long time to start another fire. Later, they discovered how to make fire. If you rub two pieces of wood together, they become hot and burn. One way of doing it is to make a little hole in a piece of wood. Pieces of wood or dry leaves are put into the hole. You rub the stick between your hands. This makes it turn very quickly. The end in the hole becomes very hot. The small pieces of wood and dry leaves begin to burn. Another way of making fire is to knock two pieces of stone together. This makes a spark (火花). You can use this spark to start a fire. Today we have matches, so we can make a fire when we want to. 
第1题
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1.   Once people lived only in hot countries because they did not know how to __________. 

[image: image860.wmf] 

 

   A. kill animals 

   B. take fire from forests 

   C. keep themselves warm [image: image861.jpg]


 

   D. make matches 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。从文章第一段第一、二句话可知：远古的人们仅住在温暖的地方，是因为他们当时不知道如何制作衣服来保暖。 
第2题
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2.   Men later discovered how to use fire to __________. 

[image: image863.wmf] 

 

   A. cook food [image: image864.jpg]


 

   B. kill animals 

   C. cut off an animal’s skin 

   D. burn wood 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段可知：人们发现火可以有三个作用——取暖、驱赶动物和烧熟食物。这道题可采取排除法，选项B、C、D不是文章中所提到的内容。
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3.   People first learned to make fire by rubbing __________ together. 

[image: image866.wmf] 

 

   A. stones 

   B. two pieces of wood [image: image867.jpg]


 

   C. dry leaves 

   D. matches 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。从文章第四段第一、二句话可知：人们逐渐会使用工具来生火，其中方法之一就是利用两片木头相互摩擦来生火。
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4.   Today most people in the world use __________ to make a fire. 

[image: image869.wmf] 

 

   A. lightning 

   B. leaves 

   C. wood 

   D. matches [image: image870.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章最后一段可知：远古的人们用物体的摩擦来生火，现在人们用火柴来生火。其中“Today we have matches, so we can make a fire when we want to.”这句话前部分“Today we have matches”为省略句，省去了“to start a fire”。
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5.   According to the passage, which of the following statements is FALSE? 

[image: image872.wmf] 

 

   A. A fire could be used to keep warm, frighten wild animals and cook food. 

   B. Before man knew how to make fire, they could get fire easily. [image: image873.jpg]


 

   C. We can knock two pieces of stone together to make a fire. 

   D. Pieces of wood or dry leaves are sometimes used to help make a fire. 
答案为B。本题是是非判断题。文章第四段介绍了：在知道如何生火前远古的人们很难获得火源，有时不得不等候闪电带来的火花。其他选项A、C、D的意思都符合文章内容，只有选项B的意思跟文章内容不相符合。

文章 2

There was once a professor of medicine, who was very strict with the students. Whenever he took the chair on the exam committee, the students would be in fear, because he was seldom pleased with the answer they gave. A student would be lucky enough if he or she could receive a good mark from him. At the end of the term, the students of medicine would take their exam again. Now a student entered the exam room and got seated before the committee. This student was a little nervous as he knew it would not be so easy to get through the exam at all. The professor began to ask. The student was required to describe a certain illness, his description of which turned out to be OK. Then the professor asked about the cure for illness, and the student, too, answered just as right. “Good,” said the professor, “and how much will you give the patient?” “A full spoon,” answered the student. “Now you may go out and wait for what you can get,” said the professor. At the same time the committee carefully discussed the answers the student had given. Suddenly the student noticed that there was something wrong with his last answer. “A full spoon is too much,” he thought to himself. Anxiously he opened the door of the room and cried, “Professor, I’ve made a mistake! A full spoon is too much for the patient. He can take only five drops.” “I’m sorry, sir,” said the professor coldly, “but it’s too late. Your patient had died.”
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1.   The students were afraid of the professor because __________. 

[image: image875.wmf] 

 

   A. he was ugly 

   B. he often misunderstood them and gave them low marks 

   C. their answers seldom satisfied him [image: image876.jpg]


 

   D. their answers often astonished him 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。从文章第一段第一、二句得知：教授对学生的要求非常严格，他很少对学生们的答题感到满意，学生都很害怕他。
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2.   The student’s description of the illness was __________. 

[image: image878.wmf] 

 

   A. not correct 

   B. completely wrong 

   C. not satisfying 

   D. accepted [image: image879.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段第二句“…his description of which turned out to be OK.”得知：该学生对某病情的描述是正确的。
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3.   Before he left the room the student was almost sure that __________. 

[image: image881.wmf] 

 

   A. he had passed the exam, and the only thing was to wait for the mark [image: image882.jpg]


 

   B. his last answer had been wrong 

   C. he had made a big mistake 

   D. he could get a low mark 
答案为A。本题是分析推理题。从文章第六段可知：该学生回答问题之后离开考室，他才发现他的回答不正确。因此可以推测出，在他离开考室前，他认为他的回答是正确的。
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4.   According to the passage, which of the following statements is NOT TRUE? 

[image: image884.wmf] 

 

   A. The patient will be in danger if he’s taken as much as a full spoon. 

   B. The doctor will be in trouble if he’s given the patient a full spoon. 

   C. Since one spoon is less than five drops, the patient will be all right soon if he takes only one full spoon at a time. [image: image885.jpg]


 

   D. If the patient wants to remain safe, he should take no more than five drops at a time. 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。选项C的意思跟文章中的意思相反：一勺的药量多于5小滴的药量，病人多吃药后会产生严重的后果。其他选项内容都与文章内容相符合。
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5.   We can infer that this passage comes from a __________. 

[image: image887.wmf] 

 

   A. newspaper 

   B. magazine [image: image888.jpg]


 

   C. menu 

   D. diary 
答案为B。本题是分析推理题。选项A意为“新闻”；选项B意为“杂志”；选项C意为“菜单”；选项D意为“日记”。通过分析推理，文章最有可能选自于杂志，其他的选项都不符合常理。
阅读理解（共10题，每题3分）

文章 1 

文章 2 

文章 1

City traffic is a great problem. More and more cars are produced every year and the streets are getting more and more crowded. So during rush hours, traffic is brought to a standstill (停止). It has been suggested that commuters should share their cars and give each other lifts. So each car would carry four or five people instead of only one. It is an excellent idea. However, so far nobody has been able to think of a way to compel people to do so. To discourage drivers from leaving their cars in the streets all day, parking meters are used. When you park at a meter, you must put a coin in the slot (硬币投币口). This pays for a certain amount of time. The meter records this and it shows when the time that you have paid for is finished. If the car is still there, then you have to pay a fine. Traffic wardens (交通监管员) look after the meters. They walk around the streets and check every meter shows that money has been paid for the car parked there. If a meter registers TIME EXPIRED (到时), the driver who has left his car there is fined. Of course, the traffic warden can’t wait for the owner of the car to return. He carries a block of printed forms, and on one of these he writes down all the details, such as the number of the car, where it is parked, how much the driver must pay and where he must send the money. He leaves this form on the car where the driver will be able to see it easily; he usually pushes it under one of the windscreen wipers so that it will not blow up.
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1.   The word “commuter” in the third sentence of Paragraph 1 means __________. 

[image: image890.wmf] 

 

   A. one that travels irregularly from one place to another 

   B. one that travels regularly from one place to another [image: image891.jpg]


 

   C. one that has his own car 

   D. one that likes driving by himself 
答案为B。本题是词汇理解题。文章第一段第四句“…commuters should share their cars…”中“commuter”的意思为“每日往返上班者”，选项B是对该词语的正确解释。
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2.   Why has the suggestion that people should share their cars not been followed yet? 

[image: image893.wmf] 

 

   A. It’s not a useful idea. 

   B. It’s impossible to realize. 

   C. Drivers don’t like the idea. 

   D. It’s difficult to carry out. [image: image894.jpg]



答案为D。本题是分析推理题。从文章第一段可知：越来越多的人使用汽车，因此交通变得拥挤。有人建议人们可以共用汽车，因为一部汽车可以坐4-5人，而不是一个人。但却没有办法让人们按此执行，分析其根本问题是难以在现实中实施。
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3.   From the passage, we can conclude that __________ solve traffic problems. 

[image: image896.wmf] 

 

   A. more meters are needed 

   B. more cars with fewer people are needed 

   C. cars carrying more people may help [image: image897.jpg]


 

   D. more traffic wardens are needed 
答案为C。本题是分析推理题。根据上题中拼车的解决办法，解决交通问题的关键是一车能够承载更多乘客。
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4.   Traffic wardens __________. 

[image: image899.wmf] 

 

   A. always wait for the owners of the cars to fine them 

   B. leave the form where it is easy to find [image: image900.jpg]


 

   C. usually put the form on the top of the car 

   D. tell the driver where he should send fines by telephone 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段最后一句可知：交通监管员开罚单时，通常会放在司机容易看到的地方。
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5.   The best title for this passage might be __________. 

[image: image902.wmf] 

 

   A. The Crowded Street 

   B. The Traffic Warden 

   C. The City Traffic Problem [image: image903.jpg]


 

   D. The Traffic Fine 
答案为C。本题是主旨大意题。纵观全文，文章主要讲述城市交通问题及解决方法，选项A、B、D的内容都不能全面概括文章的内容。

文章 2

“Hitting the books” means studying a subject with great effort. A student who hits the books spends long hours preparing for a test. He reads all his books carefully and then reads them a second time and a third time. He makes sure that he knows all the materials the teacher has offered and prepares for all possible questions. He studies every night. He hits the books. In the United States, most children begin attending school when they are five years old. Public education is free and most children go to school near their homes. School in these early years is fun. Children learn to read and write but they also play games. There is no reason at such an early age for them to hit the books. This situation changes as children become older. The subjects become more difficult. Children must learn about world history, math, and life sciences. Tests become more common. Pressure is growing to hit the books, to study hard, and to advance. However, most serious students only really begin hitting the books for long hours when they reach high school. High school students who hope to continue their education at a college or university must take a special national test called the SAT (智能考试). The test has two parts. The first part usually tests the students’ ability with numbers and skills in mathematics. The second part tests the students’ ability to read and write. The SAT is very important. A high school student who gets a high score on the two parts of the test has a good chance to enter a top American college or university. For this reason, many students hit the books for months to prepare for the SAT. 
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1.   The phrase “hitting the books” in the passage means __________. 

[image: image905.wmf] 

 

   A. spending long hours in shopping 

   B. studying very hard [image: image906.jpg]


 

   C. studying only at night 

   D. passing an exam easily 
答案为B。本题是词汇理解题。文章第一段第一句“hitting the books”的意思为“用功读书”，文章中解释为：为通过考试长时间复习功课，并仔细阅读书本多次。选项B是对该词语的正确解释。
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2.   Most children in America start school when they __________. 

[image: image908.wmf] 

 

   A. are five years old [image: image909.jpg]


 

   B. can play games 

   C. can read and write 

   D. have learned some English 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。文章第二段第一句中明确介绍到：在美国，绝大多数儿童在5岁时就会上学。其他选项都不全面。
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3.   In the United States, children received public education __________. 

[image: image911.wmf] 

 

   A. without paying any money [image: image912.jpg]


 

   B. after taking a special national test 

   C. after paying a lot of money 

   D. after completing high school 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。文章第二段第二句中“Public education is free…”明确提到，美国的公众教育是免费的，孩子们读书不用花钱。
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4.   Which group of students need to hit the books for long hours? 

[image: image914.wmf] 

 

   A. Children of early age. 

   B. Children who do not want to go to high school. 

   C. High school students who want to go to college. [image: image915.jpg]


 

   D. High school students who aren’t clever. 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。文章第二段最后部分介绍：随着学习的深入，尤其是在高中，学生们逐渐开始努力复习功课，而只有那些想要进入大学的学生，须要更加努力地学习，这样才能在大学入学考试中取得优异成绩。
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5.   The SAT has two parts. It tests the students’ ability in __________. 

[image: image917.wmf] 

 

   A. numbers and skills 

   B. reading and writing 

   C. speaking, listening and reading 

   D. math, reading and writing [image: image918.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。文章最后一段介绍：大学入学考试分为两部分，第一部分考查学生的数学能力，第二部分考查学生的读和写的能力。
阅读理解（共10题，每题3分）

文章 1 

文章 2 

文章 1

I had been sitting by myself in my usual compartment (车厢) for at least ten minutes, waiting for the train to start. The trains from Brighton never seemed to start on time and I often thought that I could have lain in bed a little longer or had another cup of tea before leaving home. Suddenly I heard someone shouting on the platform outside. A young girl was running towards the train. The man on duty put out his hand to stop her but she ran past him and opened the door of my compartment. Then the whistle blew and the train started. “I nearly missed it, didn’t I?” the girl said, “How long does it take to get to London?” “It depends on the engine driver,” I said. “Some days it’s much slower than others.” “I’ll have to have my watch repaired so as not to be late again tomorrow,” she said. “Today is my first day to work with a new firm and they told me that the man I’ m going to work for is very strict. I haven’t met him yet so I don’t know what he is like, but he sounds a bit of frightening to me.” She talked about her new job on the way to London and soon I realized that she was going to work for my firm. My own secretary had just left so I must be her new boss. It was only fair to tell her. “Oh, dear,” she said. “What a terrible mistake! I wish I had known.” “Never mind,” I said. “At least you’ll know that when your train’s late, mine will be too.” 
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1.   The man had been sitting by himself on the train, __________. 

[image: image920.wmf] 

 

   A. waiting for his friend to come 

   B. waiting for the train to start [image: image921.jpg]


 

   C. drinking a cup of tea 

   D. waiting for his new secretary 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。从文章第一段第一句可知：故事的讲述者坐在火车车厢里等候火车的开动。
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2.   In order not to be late again, the girl said she wanted to __________. 

[image: image923.wmf] 

 

   A. repair her watch by herself 

   B. have her watch repaired [image: image924.jpg]


 

   C. buy a new watch 

   D. ask the firm for a good watch 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。从文章第四段第一句可知：女孩抱怨自己的手表走不准，要请人修一修手表。文章中“I’ll have to have my watch repaired”的have+名词(代词)+done一般指：请某人做某事，这里的have有“让、叫人”的意思，句中的have是使役动词。
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3.   The girl felt that it was __________ to work for her new boss. 

[image: image926.wmf] 

 

   A. lucky 

   B. easy 

   C. not easy [image: image927.jpg]


 

   D. dull 
答案为C。本题是分析推理题。从文章第四段最后两句可知：女孩并没有见过自己的老板，再加上同事的介绍，说她的老板很严格，因此可以推测出这份工作不是很轻松。
第4题
[image: image928.jpg]



4.   From __________, the man finally realized that the young girl was his new secretary. 

[image: image929.wmf] 

 

   A. her talk about her new job [image: image930.jpg]


 

   B. her behavior in train 

   C. her terrible mistakes 

   D. her shouting on the platform 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。从文章第五段可知：女孩在火车上介绍自己的工作情况，使得本故事讲述者觉察到她是在他的公司上班，而他的秘书又刚好离职，他意识到这女孩是他的新秘书。其他选项都不符和文章意思。
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5.   According to the passage, which of the following statements is TRUE? 

[image: image932.wmf] 

 

   A. That day, the man lay in bed a little longer and had another cup of tea before leaving home. 

   B. The man said the train from London to Brighton never arrived on time. 

   C. Before the girl rushed into the train, the train had started, so the man on duty stopped her. 

   D. The girl was going to work for the man. [image: image933.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章第六段可知：女孩是该讲述者的秘书，正准备前往他的公司上班。选项A、B、C都不符合文章的细节内容。

文章 2

Every people uses its own special words to describe things and express ideas. Some of these expressions are commonly used for many years. Others are popular for just a short time. One such American expression is “Where’s the beef?” It is used when something is not as good as it is said to be. In the early 1980s “Where’s the beef?” was one of the most popular expressions in the United States. It seemed as if everyone was using it at the time. Beef is the meat from a cow, and probably no food is more popular in America than a hamburger made from beef. In the 1960s Ray Kroc began building small restaurants called “McDonald’s” which sold hamburgers at a low price. Kroc cooked hamburgers quickly so people in a hurry could buy and eat them without waiting. By the end of the 1960s the McDonald’s Company was selling hamburgers in hundreds of restaurants in America. So Ray Kroc became one of the richest businessmen in America. Other businessmen opened their own hamburger restaurants. One company, called “Wendy’s”, began to compete with McDonald’s. Wendy’s said its hamburgers were bigger than those sold by McDonald’s or anyone else. The Wendy’s Company created the expression “Where’s the beef?” to make people believe that Wendy’s hamburgers were the biggest. It produced a television advertisement to sell this idea. The Wendy’s television advertisement showed three old women eating hamburgers. The bread that covered the meat was very big, but inside there was only a tiny bit of meat. One of the women said she would not eat a hamburger with such a little piece of beef. “Where’s the beef?” she shouted in funny voice. These advertisements for Wendy’s hamburger restaurants were a success from the first day they appeared on television. Then it seemed everyone began using the expression “Where’s the beef?” 
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1.   The expression “Where’s the beef?” in the passage means __________. 

[image: image935.wmf] 

 

   A. the beef is lost 

   B. something is not as good as described [image: image936.jpg]


 

   C. the beef is not as good as it is said to be 

   D. the food has turned bad 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。文章第一段可知，“Where’s the beef?”的含义是指“事情或事物并不如描述的那样好”，文章中的“It is used when something is not as good as it is said to be.”是对这句话的详细解释，其中的beef是泛指“事物”的含义，并不是单词本身“牛肉”的意思。
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2.   Hamburgers have become very popular in America because they are __________. 

[image: image938.wmf] 

 

   A. made form beef 

   B. cheaper than any other kind of food 

   C. served quickly and at a low price [image: image939.jpg]


 

   D. the only fast food in America 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段可以知道：汉堡包成为美国最受欢迎的食品，是因为它低廉的价格和无需过长的等候时间等原因。
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3.   Other people wanted to open hamburger restaurants because __________. 

[image: image941.wmf] 

 

   A. hamburgers are good to eat 

   B. they could cook hamburgers in a short time 

   C. hamburgers are easy to make 

   D. they thought they could make a lot of money [image: image942.jpg]



答案为D。本题考核分析推理能力。Ray Kroc开的McDonald’s Company成为一家成功的食品公司，他本人也成为美国最富裕的商人之一。于是许多人也认为快餐店是赚钱的好途径，纷纷开起快餐店生意。
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4.   Wendy’s made the expression known to everybody by __________. 

[image: image944.wmf] 

 

   A. a newspaper 

   B. writing letters to people 

   C. a notice in front of the restaurant 

   D. a TV advertisement [image: image945.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段最后两句话可以知道：Wendy’s快餐店为了扩大自己的生意，通过电视媒体打广告，使自己的食品家喻户晓。
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5.   According to the passage, which of the following statements is FALSE? 
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   A. In the early 1980s “Where’s the beef?” was the most popular expression in America. [image: image948.jpg]


 

   B. Perhaps the hamburger is the most popular food in America. 

   C. Wendy’s created the expression “Where’s the beef?” to compete with McDonald’s in selling hamburgers. 

   D. “Where’s the beef?” got popular as soon as it appeared in the TV advertisement. 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。选项B、C、D都符合文章的细节内容，只有选项A是不正确的。文章中说到在20世纪80年代初，“Where’s the beef?”成为当时美国流行语之一，不是选项A中所说的最流行的语言，须注意选项A中最高级的含义。
阅读理解（共10题，每题3分）

文章 1 

文章 2 

文章 1

We do not know when man first began to use salt, but we do know that it has been used in many different ways throughout history. Historical evidence shows, for example, that people who lived over 3,000 years ago ate salted fish. Thousands of years ago in Egypt, salt was used to preserve the body of the dead. Stealing salt was considered a major crime during some periods in history. In the 18th century, for instance, about ten thousand people were put in prison for stealing salt. In the year 1553, stealing salt could be punished as a crime and the stealer’s ear was cut off. In the Roman Empire, one of the most important roads was the one that carried salt from the salt mines to Rome. Guards were stationed along the route to protect against salt thieves. The guards received their pay in salt, hence the English word, salary. Any guard who fell asleep while on duty was said to be “not worth his salt”, and as a result he would get a little less salt on his next payday. This expression is still used today in English to refer to a person who is thought of as incapable of doing a job. Now salt has many uses beyond the dining table. It is used in the making of glass and airplane parts, in the growing of crops, and in killing weeds (杂草). It is also used to make water soft, to melt ice on roads and highways, to make soap, and to fix colors on cloth. Salt can be obtained in various ways. Evaporation (蒸发) of salt water from the ocean or salt water lakes is one of the common processes for getting salt. However it is obtained, salt will continue to play an important role in the lives of the people everywhere.
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1.   Salt has been used in many different ways throughout history. We know this from __________. 

[image: image950.wmf] 

 

   A. the fact that ancient people ate salted fish 

   B. stories told by the Egyptians 

   C. books on the preservation of dead bodies 

   D. various kinds of historical evidence [image: image951.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章第一段可知：人们不能精确知道人类何时开始使用盐，但却能够通过许多历史证据来知道人类使用盐的情况。
第2题
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2.   About ten thousand people were arrested for stealing salt. This happened __________. 

[image: image953.wmf] 

 

   A. in the year 1535 

   B. in the year 1553 

   C. in the 1800s 

   D. in the 1700s [image: image954.jpg]



答案为D。本题是时间细节题。从文章第二段可知：在18世纪，大约一万多人因偷盐而被捕入狱。本题主要考察对时间的正确表达。“80年代”英语说eighties，“20世纪70年代”一般简写成1970s或1970’s。文章中的“in the 18th century”意思为18世纪，其正确的选项表达为in the 1700s，也可以表述为in the 1700’s。
第3题
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3.   A usual kind of punishment to a salt thief in the 16th century was __________. 

[image: image956.wmf] 

 

   A. to give him less salt 

   B. to cut off his ear [image: image957.jpg]


 

   C. to put him in prison 

   D. to pay him less money 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段可知：在1553年人们对偷盐的人的处罚就是割掉他的耳朵。这一时间属于16世纪。
第4题
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4.   In the Roman Empire many people were employed as guards to __________. 

[image: image959.wmf] 

 

   A. carry salt from the mines to Rome 

   B. protect the city of Rome 

   C. prevent thieves from stealing salt [image: image960.jpg]


 

   D. protect the women and children 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段第一、二句话可知：为了防止偷盐的行为，古罗马帝国雇佣很多人保护和看守盐。
第5题
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5.   According to the passage, the expression “not worth his salt” in the fourth sentence of Paragraph 3 refers to __________. 

[image: image962.wmf] 

 

   A. one who fails to do his work well [image: image963.jpg]


 

   B. one who should not be paid in salt 

   C. one who does his work well 

   D. one who should get less salt 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段的后部分可知：看守盐的人的报酬就是盐。他如果没有努力工作，就会获得低报酬，分给他的盐自然就会少些。后来这句话就引申为某人不能胜任自己的工作。

文章 2

There are four beautiful things about Hawaii. First, the beaches. There are hundreds of miles of beaches on the twenty islands of Hawaii. Most of them are covered with fine white sand. They are thought to be among the best beaches in the world. Another wonderful thing about the beaches of Hawaii is the water temperature. The year-round average temperature of the water at the famous resort (胜地) of Waikiki Beach is 23℃! In fact, there are no real seasons in Hawaii. There is a difference of only two or three degrees between the hottest day of summer and the coldest day of winter. That’s why the Hawaiians don’t have a word for weather in their language. Second, the volcanoes (火山). These volcanoes are not just a part of the islands, but they actually make the islands. Because of them the islands are still growing. The most famous volcano on Hawaii is Mauna Loa. It is the world’s most active volcano. It has been erupting (爆发) for thousands of years. Even when it isn’t erupting, smoke comes out of the earth from thousands of little holes. These volcanoes could be dangerous to the population of Hawaii. In fact, Hilo, the second largest city in Hawaii, is built just under Mauna Loa. The volcano could erupt at any time, but the people of Hilo do not seem worried. Third, all the wonderful fruits and flowers of the islands. Every day of the year there are flowers blooming. Every month a dozen different kinds of trees are covered with fruits. Fourth, the people who live there. From its earliest days, Hawaii has had a peaceful history. The Polynesians (玻利尼西亚人) who came to the islands about a thousand years ago believed that a stranger should be welcomed. They offered strangers food and comfort, and thought of them as brothers. 
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1.   There are __________ islands in Hawaii. 

[image: image965.wmf] 

 

   A. 12 

   B. 13 

   C. 20 [image: image966.jpg]


 

   D. 30 
答案为C。本题是数字细节题。从文章第二段第二句可知：夏威夷共有20座岛屿，以及几百英里的海滩。
第2题
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2.   The Hawaiian beaches are well-known for __________. 

[image: image968.wmf] 

 

   A. very small sand and warm water temperature [image: image969.jpg]


 

   B. ordinary sand and cool water temperature 

   C. big sand and hot water temperature 

   D. hundreds of miles of sandless beaches 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段第三句可知：夏威夷的海滩因细小的白沙和温度适宜的海水而闻名于全球。其他选项不符合文章内容。
第3题
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3.   Why is there no word for weather in the Hawaiian language? 

[image: image971.wmf] 

 

   A. Because there is few the change of temperature in summer. 

   B. Because there is few the change of temperature in winter. 

   C. Because there is no the change of seasons in the whole year. [image: image972.jpg]


 

   D. The Hawaiians are afraid of talking about weather. 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段最后两句可知：由于夏威夷的夏天最高气温和冬天最低气温相差只有2-3度，所以在那儿的语言中没有描述气候的词语。
第4题
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4.   The Hawaiian islands are still growing because __________. 

[image: image974.wmf] 

 

   A. there has good weather 

   B. there are many volcanoes [image: image975.jpg]


 

   C. the Hawaiians enlarge them with the earth 

   D. there have many visitors every year 
答案为B。本题是分析题。从文章第三段第二、三句可知：夏威夷火山不仅构成岛屿的一部分，活火山的不断喷射所形成的岩浆使夏威夷不断扩大。
第5题
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5.   According to the passage, which of the following statements is NOT TRUE? 

[image: image977.wmf] 

 

   A. It is neither too cold nor too hot in Hawaii all the year round. 

   B. The people of Hilo are used to living in danger. 

   C. The Polynesians were friendly to strangers. 

   D. There are only four beauties in Hawaii. [image: image978.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。文章中谈及夏威夷四个方面的美丽，但夏威夷的美丽不仅限于这四个方面。选项A、B、C的意思符合文章中内容，只有选项D不符合文章意思。
阅读理解（共10题，每题3分）

文章 1 

文章 2 

文章 1

Be sure to make reservations (预订) if the restaurant you chose is a fancy or popular one. It’s very shameful to show up without reservations and have to wait for a table, leaving a very bad impression on your date. Also, be sure to check to see if they have a dress code and tell your date in advance what to wear. When your food arrives, proper dining manner requires you to eat at a proper pace so that you have time to talk. A good measure of how fast you should eat is to count 10 seconds between every two mouthfuls. It is bad dining manner if you gobble (狼吞虎咽) down your food and you spend the rest of the time watching your date eat. Do not make any noise or chew with your mouth open. Your napkin (餐巾纸) should be placed on your legs all the time. If you have to get up, place it neatly on your seat. When eating, put in your fork straight in your mouth. Don’t place your fork in the side of your mouth as it increases the chances of food sliding away, which could be very shameful. If you get food stuck in your mouth don’t pick it out with your fingers or fork at the table. Excuse yourself and go to the restroom and get it out with a toothpick. When dining, keep your eyes on your date at all times and try to smile between mouthfuls. Occasionally, you should make an effort to show some interest and ask questions like, “How do you like the beef?” If she needs anything, you are the one who is supposed to flag down (使……停止，招呼) the waiter by a gentle wave of the hand until he or she notices you. 
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1.   The word “fancy” in the first sentence of the first paragraph can best be replaced by “__________”. 

[image: image980.wmf] 

 

   A. complex 

   B. awful 

   C. complicated 

   D. fine [image: image981.jpg]



答案为D。本题是猜测词汇题。如果在一个优雅高级的餐馆吃饭而又没有预定座位的话，你就有可能遇到不得不等位子的尴尬境遇，从而给你的约会对象留下一个不好的印象。单词“fancy”在本文中的意思为“优良的、好的”。
第2题
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2.   When your food arrives, you had better to __________. 

[image: image983.wmf] 

 

   A. eat the food as quickly as possible 

   B. spend a lot of time watching your date eat 

   C. avoid the eye contact to your date 

   D. eat at a proper speed [image: image984.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段第一句可知：吃饭的过程中你最好用适中的速度吃饭，太快和太慢都是不正确的。
第3题
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3.   According to the passage, which is the correct manner in eating? 

[image: image986.wmf] 

 

   A. You need reserve a table at any restaurants. 

   B. Counting ten seconds between every two mouthfuls is a good manner. [image: image987.jpg]


 

   C. When you get up, you need place your napkin neatly on your table. 

   D. When you get food stuck in your mouth, you can pick it out with your fingers. 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段第二句可知：适宜的吃饭速度是每两口饭之间的间隔时间为大约10秒。
第4题
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4.   When you are dining, you can __________. 

[image: image989.wmf] 

 

   A. keep smiling at all times 

   B. show interest in the price of food 

   C. show concern for your date [image: image990.jpg]


 

   D. shout to the waiter or waitress 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。从文章第五段第一、二句可知：在吃饭过程中，你还应对你的约会对象表示关怀。
第5题
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5.   __________ might be a suitable title for the passage. 

[image: image992.wmf] 

 

   A. How to Eat 

   B. Eating Behavior 

   C. Dining Manner When Dating [image: image993.jpg]


 

   D. How to Date 
答案为C。本题是主旨大意题。全文主要是讲述约会时吃饭过程中所应注意的礼貌和细节问题，最佳的文章标题应为选项C——约会时的餐桌礼仪。其他选项A、B、D都不能概括文章大意。

文章 2

The April Fools’ Day tradition is popular in European countries. Although the roots of the traditional tricks are unclear, the French and the British both have claims on the origin of the celebration. One theory holds that the first April Fools’ Day was on April 1 of the year when King of France created the new calendar (日历). This new system placed the day that had formerly been the first day of a new year on April 1. Many people were unwilling to adjust to the new calendar and continued to celebrate New Year’s Day on what had become the first day of April. Thus, they became the first April fools. An English story about the day, however, holds that it began sometime during the 1200s. At the time, King John of England was in the habit of making a road out of nearly every path on which he walked regularly. To avoid having their green grasslands disturbed with one of the king’s roads, the citizens of one particular farm village built a fence that prevented the king from walking through their countryside. The king sent a group of messengers to inform the villagers that they must remove the barrier. Upon hearing that the king was planning to do this, however, the villagers developed a plan of their own. When the messengers arrived, they found what appeared to be a community of madmen, with people behaving in a strange manner, throwing things and running around wildly. The messengers reported to King John that these people were so mad as to be beyond punishment. So, the villagers saved their farmland by tricking the King. In Great Britain, tradition only allows April Fools’ tricks from midnight to noon on April 1. Those who try to play tricks in the afternoon become fools themselves.
第1题
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1.   According to the passage, which of the following statements is TRUE? 

[image: image995.wmf] 

 

   A. People are clear about the roots of traditional tricks on the April Fools' Day. 

   B. Only the French and the British share the origin of the celebration about the April Fools' Day. 

   C. The new calendar which was created by the King of France kept the same with the old one. 

   D. People who didn’t adjust to the new calendar became the first April fools in France. [image: image996.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段可知：法国国王颁布新的日历，新历的4月1日取代了旧历的1月1日。那些没有调整并适应新日历的人，在新历4月1日庆祝旧历新年，成了第一批过愚人节的人。选项A、B、C的意思都与文章所述内容不相符合，只有选项D符合文章内容。
第2题
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2.   According to the passage, the origin of the celebration about the April Fools' Day began sometime during __________ in Britain. 

[image: image998.wmf] 

 

   A. the eleventh century 

   B. the twelfth century 

   C. the thirteenth century [image: image999.jpg]


 

   D. the fourteenth century 
答案为C。本题是时间细节题。从文章第三段第一句可知：英国流传着一个有关13世纪发生的愚人节的故事。这是考察细节，同时也考察对时间的正确表达。文章中的“the 1200s”意思为13世纪，其它正确的表达还可以是the 1200’s。
第3题
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3.   What was King John’s custom at that time? 

[image: image1001.wmf] 

 

   A. He liked creating new calendar. 

   B. He liked making road on which he walked regularly. [image: image1002.jpg]


 

   C. He liked walking in the grassland freely. 

   D. He liked sending messengers to get information he needed. 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段第二句可知：约翰国王有个习惯，就是把他经常走过的小路变成大道。
第4题
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4.   How did the villagers protect their grasslands? 

[image: image1004.wmf] 

 

   A. They built a fence that prevented the king from walking through their countryside. 

   B. They behaved in a strange way when the messengers arrived at their village. 

   C. They begged the king to give up the planning. 

   D. Both A and B. [image: image1005.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段后部分可知：村民们为了保护自己的土地，建立了栅栏并在国王派来的使者面前装疯卖傻。
第5题
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5.   In Great Britain, the time of playing tricks is __________ on the April Fool's Day. 

[image: image1007.wmf] 

 

   A. from 0:00 to 12:00 [image: image1008.jpg]


 

   B. from 1:00 to 12:00 

   C. from 12:00 to 24:00 

   D. the whole day 
答案为A。本题是时间细节题。从文章第三段最后两句可知：在英国愚人节的时间是4月1日0:00-12:00a.m.，超过此时间再愚弄别人的人自己就成为笨蛋了。
阅读理解（共10题，每题3分）

文章 1 

文章 2 
文章 1

In Europe, men do not usually wear skirts. But the Scottish national dress for men is a kind of skirt. It is called a kilt. The Scottish like to be different. They are also proud of their country and its history, and they feel that the kilt is part of that history. That’s why the men still wear kilts at old-style dances and on national holidays. That’s what they believe. However, kilts are not really so old. Before 1730, Scottish men wore a long shirt and blanket around their shoulders. These clothes got in the way when they started to work in factories. So, in 1730 a factory owner changed the blanket into a skirt: the kilt. That’s how the first kilt was made. Then, in the late 1700s Scottish soldiers in the British Army began to wear kilts. One reason for this was national emotion: The Scottish soldiers wanted to look different from the English soldiers. The British Army probably had a different reason: A Scottish soldier in a kilt was always easy to find! The Scottish soldiers fought very hard and became famous. The kilt was part of that fame (名望), and in the early 1800s men all through Scotland began to wear kilts. In the 1700s and early 1800s, the color of the skirts had no special meaning. Men sometimes owned kilts in several different colors. But later the colors became important to the Scottish families. By about 1850, most families had special colors for their kilts. Scottish people often believe that the colors of the kilts are part of their family history. In fact, each family just chose the colors they liked best. 
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1.   This passage is mainly about __________. 

[image: image1010.wmf] 

 

   A. Scottish men 

   B. the history of Britain 

   C. Scottish kilts [image: image1011.jpg]


 

   D. Scottish soldiers 
答案为C。本题是主旨大意题。纵观全文，文章主要介绍苏格兰男人穿裙子的内容。其他选项都不能概括文章大意。
第2题
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2.   The first kilt was made __________. 

[image: image1013.wmf] 

 

   A. by a factory owner [image: image1014.jpg]


 

   B. in the British Army 

   C. by a Scottish family 

   D. in London 
答案为A。本题是事实细节题。从文章第二段最后一句可知：第一个制作裙子的人就是一位工厂的主人，他把披在身上的毛毯改为裙子。
第3题
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3.   Scottish soldiers wore kilts partly because of __________. 

[image: image1016.wmf] 

 

   A. the weather 

   B. the fame [image: image1017.jpg]


 

   C. the style 

   D. the fight 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段第二、三句可知：苏格兰士兵身着裙子是为了与英格兰士兵有所区别，苏格兰士兵英勇善战，苏格兰裙子标志着他们的名誉和声望。

第4题
[image: image1018.jpg]



4.   Men all over Scotland started to wear kilts __________. 

[image: image1019.wmf] 

 

   A. in the late 1700s 

   B. in the early 1800s 

   C. in the 1700s and early 1800s [image: image1020.jpg]


 

   D. by about 1850 
答案为C。本题是时间细节题。从文章第四段第一句可知：苏格兰男人开始普遍身着裙子是18世纪到19世纪初期。
第5题
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5.   According to the passage, all of the statements are true EXCEPT that __________. 

[image: image1022.wmf] 

 

   A. the Scottish believed that the kilt is part of their national history 

   B. the history of kilt is not so old as Scottish history 

   C. Scottish men wore a long shirt and blanket around their shoulders before 1730 

   D. wearing kilts meant the same to Scottish and British soldiers [image: image1023.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。据文章介绍苏格兰士兵身着裙子是为了与英格兰士兵有所区别，而英格兰士兵则认为这样更容易辨认苏格兰士兵。因而身着裙子对他们来说意义不同。选项A、B、C的意思都与文章所述内容相符合，只有选项D不符合文章内容。

文章 2

There are many different kinds of taxes paid in the US. The most common tax is sales tax. When someone buys something, he pays the price of his purchase plus a small added percentage. This percentage is the sales tax. The revenue (税收) from the sales tax goes to the state government to help pay for public schools, public safety, roads, parks and benefits for the poor. Each state sets its own tax percentage. Some states are considerably lower than others. In some states there is no sales tax. A second type of tax is income tax. This tax is a percentage of all the money earned by a family each year. Americans pay income taxes to the central government which uses the revenue for national expenses such as defense, help for the needy and other public services. Some states also have a state income tax. Income tax, like other taxes, is usually graduated. This means the tax percentage increases as a family’s income increases. A third kind of tax is property tax. This tax is paid by anyone who owns land or a house. The amount of the tax is based on the property’s value. The revenue from this tax goes to the local governments for schools and community services. In addition people must pay luxury tax when they purchase certain things such as cigarettes and alcoholic drinks. A fifth kind of tax is inheritance (遗产) tax. When someone dies, usually his family inherits the dead person’s wealth and property. However, those who inherit must pay a percentage of this wealth to the government as an inheritance tax. 
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1.   ________ is the most common tax. 

[image: image1025.wmf] 

 

   A. Luxury tax 

   B. Sales tax [image: image1026.jpg]


 

   C. Property tax 

   D. Income tax 
答案为B。本题是事实细节题。从文章第一段第一句话可知：文章主要介绍美国的税收政策，而销售税是税收种类中最常见的一种。
第2题
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2.   What is the revenue from sales tax used for? 

[image: image1028.wmf] 

 

   A. Public schools. 

   B. Public safety. 

   C. Roads, parks and benefits for the poor. 

   D. All of the above. [image: image1029.jpg]



答案为D。本题是事实细节题。从文章第一段第四句话可知：销售税中所获得的税收收入主要用于公立学校、国防安全、道路、公园以及扶贫等项目费用的支出。
第3题
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3.   The sentence “Income tax, like other taxes, is usually graduated.” in the second paragraph means ________. 

[image: image1031.wmf] 

 

   A. the tax percentage increases as a family’s income increases [image: image1032.jpg]


 

   B. the tax percentage increases as a family’s paying increases 

   C. the tax percentage increases as a family’s property decreases 

   D. the tax percentage decreases as a family’s salaries increases 
答案为A。本题是句子理解题。这句话的意思为：收入税收是随着家庭收入的提高而增加的。
第4题
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4.   What is the amount of property tax based on? 

[image: image1034.wmf] 

 

   A. The owner’s income. 

   B. How long the family owns the property. 

   C. The property’s value. [image: image1035.jpg]


 

   D. The owner’s spending. 
答案为C。本题是事实细节题。从文章第三段第三、四句话可知：财产税是根据财产所有人财产价值的高低而开征的税收，财产价值高税收就高，财产价值低税收就低。其他选项都不符合文章意思。

英译汉

第1题
I’ve worked here since I graduated from university.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核时间状语从句的翻译，时间状语从句的翻译一般放在句首。连词since表示“自从、自从……以来”。
第2题
I’ll get in contact with you as soon as I arrive.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核as soon as引导的时间状语从句的翻译，as soon as表示“一……就”。英语中有些词或短语，如instantly, directly, the moment, the instant, as soon as, so (as) long as, no sooner…than, hardly…when…等引导的状语从句，也可译为“一……就”。短语get in contact with表示“联系”。
第3题
We didn’t believe it until we saw it.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核until引导的时间状语从句的翻译，not…until的结构表示“直到……才”。时间状语从句也可以采用转换的译法，译成并列句或条件状语从句。
第1题
The price will go up when history repeats itself.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核时间状语从句的翻译，时间状语从句翻译一般放在句首。短语go up表示“增加、上升、增长”等
第2题
Hardly had the game begun when it started raining.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核时间状语从句的翻译，hardly…when…表示“一……就”。否定副词hardly在此结构中不译成否定的意思。类似这样用法的还有no sooner …than，hardly/scarcely…when引导的时间状语从句。
第3题
You can see flowers in spring wherever you go.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核地点状语从句的翻译。地点状语从句的翻译一般采用顺译法，但有时也可将地点状语的翻译放在句首。
第1题
You could find plentiful material resources wherever you go in that country.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核地点状语从句的翻译。地点状语从句翻译一般采用顺译法，但有时也可将地点状语的翻译放在句首。
第2题
We were very excited because our class won the first at last.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核原因状语从句的翻译。该句翻译采用的是顺译法，按英文的顺序来翻译的。引导原因状语从句的引导词有because, as, since等。
第3题
I had to get a new passport since my old one had expired.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核原因状语从句的翻译。该句翻译采用的是顺译法，按英文的顺序来翻译的。since在这里引导原因状语从句，表示“因为”，引导原因状语从句的引导词还有because, as等。
第1题
There were so many students in the class that the teacher couldn’t talk to them all.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核so many +可数名词/ so much +不可数名词+ that引导结果状语从句的翻译。so many/ so much+ that表示“太……以至于”。该句翻译采用的是顺译法，按英文的顺序来翻译的。引导结果状语从句的连词有：so…that，such…that，so that，that，so等。
第2题
Smith had such a fierce dog that no one dared to go near his home.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核such…that引导结果状语从句的翻译。such +名词…that表示“太……以至于”。该句翻译采用的是顺译法，按英文的顺序来翻译的。引导结果状语从句的连词有：so…that，such…that，so that，that，so等。
第3题
He often helped me with my English study at that time so I came out among the top students soon.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核so引导的结果状语从句的翻译。该句翻译采用的是顺译法，按英文的顺序来翻译的。so表示“这样、所以”。引导结果状语从句的连词有：so…that，such…that，so that，that等。句中短语come out表示“成为”，the top students表示“尖子学生”。
第1题
If you still kept on working now, you would finish the work early.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核条件状语从句的翻译。条件状语从句一般译在句首，可译成表示条件或表示假设的从句，也可译成表补充说明情况的从句。引导条件状语从句的连词有：if, if only, unless, as (so )long as等。短语keep on working表示“继续工作”。
第2题
So long as he works hard, I don’t mind when he finishes the experiment.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核so long as引导条件状语从句的翻译。条件状语从句一般译在句首，可译成表示条件或表示假设的从句，也可译成表补充说明情况的从句。so long as表示“只要”。引导条件状语从句的连词有：if, if only, unless, as (so )long as等。单词mind在句中表示“介意、在乎”。
第3题
If you feel worse, please go to see the doctor immediately.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核条件状语从句的翻译。条件状语从句一般译在句首，可译成表示条件或表示假设的从句，也可译成表补充说明情况的从句。引导条件状语从句的连词有：if, if only, unless, as (so )long as等。
第1题
Even if we had told him her name, the old man would not have remembered the girl.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核even if引导让步状语从句的翻译, even if表示“即使、纵然”。该句用的是虚拟语气。
第2题
Though they’ve lived under the same roof for many years, they don’t know each other.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核though引导让步状语从句的翻译, though表示“尽管、纵然”。句中短语under the same roof表示“在同一个屋檐下”。
第3题
No matter what I do, he is always on my side.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核no matter引导让步状语从句的翻译，no matter表示“不管”。短语on one’s side表示“支持”。
第1题
Young as he is, he can take care of himself.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。这是as引导的让步状语从句的翻译。从句中被强调的部分放在as之前，用倒装形式。翻译时译成汉语的让步状语从句，置于句首。如：Try as I might, I still could not speak English well. 尽管我尽了力，但还是说不好英语。短语take care of表示“照看、照顾”。
第2题
They watched him closely as a cat watched a rat.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核方式状语从句的翻译。翻译方式状语从句可以采用分译、译成词组或译成定语的方法。
第3题
You are just the same as you were the day when I first met you.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核as引导定语从句的翻译。尽管原句是一个句子，但翻译时采用分译的方法，译成两个单句。
第1题
Our country has plentiful natural resources, which are being exploited and used.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核which引导的非限定性定语从句的翻译，这里采用的顺译法。非限定性定语从句用的被动语态正在进行时。
第2题
As is known to the world, Mark Twain was a great American writer.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核as引导的非限定性定语从句的翻译，这里采用的顺译法，as指代整个句子。类似的短语还有：as is known to all表示“众所周知”。
第3题
Checking machines which could be used to correct the students’ test papers are very popular now
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核限定性定语从句的翻译。限定性定语从句的翻译可采用合译的方法，把限定性定语从句和主句融合在一起译成一个单句。
第1题
I’m more interested in caring for other people than making decisions.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核形容词比较级结构的翻译。尽管原句是一个句子，但翻译时采用分译的方法。句中的短语be interested in表示“兴趣”，care for表示“关心”。
第2题
The better educated people are, the more opportunities they’ll have
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核形容词比较级结构的翻译。“the+比较级…the+比较级”是比较级的一种特殊结构，表示“越来越……”
第3题
The healthier people are, the more happiness they will experience.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核形容词比较级结构的翻译。“the+比较级…the+比较级”是比较级的一种特殊结构，表示“越来越……”
第1题
It is one of the most beautiful places I have ever seen.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核形容词最高级结构的翻译。该句形容词最高级比较范围是用定语从句I have ever seen表示的。这里的定语从句翻译采用的是合译法，将简单的定语从句译成句中的一个成分，放在被修饰词之前，将英语复合句译成汉语单句。
第2题
I’m no more interested in football than my sister.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核形容词比较级习惯用法结构的翻译。no more…than表示“和……一样不”。
第3题
Jack was worried about whether he’d be able to get there on time.
要注意分析与理解句子成分与结构。本句考核宾语从句的翻译。句中whether引导的从句做worry about短语的宾语。宾语从句一般按照原文顺序翻译。

写作~！
1. Instructions:建议你在30分钟内,根据下面所给的题目和提纲用英语写出一篇不少于80词的短文。 A Memorable Day 1.时间 2.具体事情 3.感想                              

这是一篇记叙文。根据提纲要求，先陈述这一天的具体时间，然后叙述那天发生了什么难忘的事情，最后是感想。因为这是记叙过去发生的事情，时态应该使用过去时。在表述时间时，我们常用介词at, in和on。表示在某一具体时刻；或者某一短暂的时间时，常用at，如：at six o’clock, at the end of a year等。表示在具体的某一天（如日期、节日或星期几）或者某一天的上午、下午或晚上时，常用on, 如：on May 4th, 1919, on Sunday afternoon, on a cold winter evening等。如果时间较长，则用in，如：in May, in spring, in the morning等。
2. Instructions:建议你在30分钟内,根据下面所给的题目和提纲用英语写出一篇不少于80词的短文。 A Good Deed 1.事情发生的时间和地点 2.过程
是一篇记叙文。根据提纲的要求，应该先陈述好事发生的时间和地点，我们可以选择任何时间，例如，on a sunny morning, on a rainy evening等；地点可以选择某个公共场所，也可以是偏僻的地方。然后叙述做好事的全过程或者主要过程，内容可以为帮助同学学习、给陌生人带路、给老人或者孕妇让座等等，这些都是整个人类所倡导的美德。因为这是记叙过去发生的事情，时态应该使用过去时。
3. Instructions:建议你在30分钟内,根据下面所给的题目和提纲用英语写出一篇不少于80词的短文。 My Last New Year 1.欢度新年的地点 2.欢度新年的过程
这是一篇记叙文。根据提纲要求，应该先陈述在哪里欢度新年；然后叙述欢度新年的全过程或者主要过程，因为是新年，其内容应该尽可能的有特色，可以是与自然界相联系的，如滑雪、堆雪人等，也可以是人文关怀方面的，比如参加一些传统的活动，或者是现代的新时尚等。因为这是记叙过去发生的事情，时态应该使用过去时。参考范文中的“not…until…”的意思是“直到……才”。
4. Instructions:建议你在30分钟内,根据下面所给的题目和提纲用英语写出一篇不少于80词的短文。 My First Day in the University 1.我在大学里的第一天时间 2.我在大学里第一天发生的事情
这是一篇记叙文。根据提纲要求，应该先陈述在大学里第一天的具体时间，我国大学新生入学时间一般都在9月份，因此，大学第一天的时间应确定为9月份的某一天；然后叙述在大学的第一天里发生的事情的全过程或者主要过程，事情内容应该与学校相关，且是积极、向上的事情。因为这是记叙过去发生的事情，时态应该使用过去时。参考范文中短语arrive at意思是“到达”，可以用reach, get to等代替；crowds of的意思是“许多”，相当于many, a lot of, lots of, plenty of等。
5. Instructions:建议你在30分钟内,根据下面所给的题目和提纲用英语写出一篇不少于80词的短文。 An Unhappy Event 1.事情发生的时间、地点 2.事情的经过
这是一篇记叙文。根据提纲要求，应该先陈述伤心事发生的时间和地点，然后叙述事情发生的全过程或者主要过程。因为这是记叙过去发生的事情，时态应该使用过去时。参考范文中，happen的意思是“发生”，可以用take place, occur等代替；短语set out表示“出发”，相当于set off, start off, depart等。stare at表示“凝视”，相关短语有gaze at, peer at等；have no choice but to do sth.表示“不得不做……”。
6. tructions:建议你在30分钟内,根据下面所给的题目和提纲用英语写出一篇不少于80词的短文。 A Meaningful Visit 1.参观的时间、地点 2.参观的内容 3.感想
这是一篇记叙文。应该先陈述参观的时间和地点，因为是一次有意义的参观，因此，参观的地点应该有所选择，比如纪念馆、博物馆或者现代科技馆等，通过参观，了解历史达到以史鉴今，了解现代科技以感悟科技是第一生产力；然后叙述参观的全过程或者主要过程。因为这是记叙过去发生的事情，时态应该使用过去时。参考范文中，习语in salute意为“表示敬意”；not only…but also…意为“不但……而且……”；devote one’s life to意为“献身于……”，相当于devote oneself to。
7. Instructions:建议你在30分钟内,根据下面所给的题目和提纲用英语写出一篇不少于80词的短文。 A Rainy Day 1.下雨的时间 2.雨天发生的事情 3.感想
这是一篇记叙文。根据提纲要求，应该先陈述这下雨天的时间，然后叙述事情发生的全过程或者主要过程。因为这是记叙过去发生的事情，时态应该使用过去时，有些地方也可以用过去完成时。表示在具体的某一天（如日期、生日、节日或星期几）或者某一天的上午、下午或晚上时，常用on, 如：on May 4th, 1919; on Monday, on Teachers’ Day, on my birthday, on that day, on the morning of July 2, on Sunday afternoon, on a cold winter evening等。
8. nstructions:建议你在30分钟内,根据下面所给的题目和提纲用英语写出一篇不少于80词的短文。 A Wonderful Time 1.一段美好的时光 2.具体描述
该命题作文的文体为记叙文。根据提纲要求记叙一段美好的时光并进行细节描述，文章应开头点题，将笼统的一段美好时光具体化，如国庆节、同学聚会等，然后进行具体的描述。具体描述时可按事件本身的发展顺序进行。写作时态以一般过去时为主，叙事性文章也通常采用Last Saturday/The other day/Some weeks ago, I did sth.的方式开头；写作主体部分注意文章的连贯性，恰当运用连接词承上启下，如first, then, after that, in the end等；围绕作文主题的句子可以采用：I had a good/nice/happy time with sb., what a wonderful time it was，we enjoyed doing sth.等。
9. Instructions:建议你在30分钟内,根据下面所给的题目和提纲用英语写出一篇不少于80词的短文。 A Birthday Party 1.生日聚会的时间、地点及参加人员 2.生日聚会的经过 3.我的感想
该命题作文的文体为记叙文。记叙一次生日聚会，基本时态为一般过去时。第一段点明生日聚会的时间，如：yesterday, the day before yesterday, last week等，地点如：at home, in the dormitory, in a restaurant等，以及参加人员如：my parents, my friends, my classmates, my colleagues等。第二段按照时间顺序记叙事件的经过。第三段描写自己的生日感言。写作时注意语言精炼，按照已给出的信息去写，不必有太多的发挥，用自己熟悉的短语、句型去体现要点。
10. Instructions:建议你在30分钟内,根据下面所给的题目和提纲用英语写出一篇不少于80词的短文。 A Job Interview 1.面试的职位、时间及地点 2.面试的经过 3.面试的结果
该命题作文的文体为记叙文。根据中文提纲记叙一次求职面试，首先交待清楚面试的职位如：sales assistant, English teacher, secretary, accountant, computer programmer等，时间如：last Monday, on April 2th等，以及面试地点如：in a local company/corporation/school等，然后按照时间顺序记叙面试的经过，最终记叙面试的结果，如果面试成功，则可按照范文的方式结尾，如果面试失败，则可采用：I was so nervous that the manager was not satisfied with my performance, and I missed this opportunity. However, I knew “Failure teaches success”. 回忆性文章的基本时态为一般过去时，写作时注意不遗漏重要信息。
